MINISO Group Holding Limited

(A company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REASHSEMRLNEREELH)

Stock Code BB X5 : 9896

2024

ANNUAL REPORT
FERS




Contents
B &%

Company Information

NAEER

Change of Financial Year End Date

FRVBEERER

Financial Performance Highlights
AR E

Business Review and Outlook
FiEMEREE M RE

Management Discussion and Analysis
B E 5w AT

Directors’ Report
EEeNmE

Directors and Senior Management
EERaREEE

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Other Information

Hib &

Independent Auditor’s Report
B R EEN RS

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss
REBmE

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

ReEBEmkEMEmRER

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

FAaMBHRRER

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
BAEREDE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
RERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
bRE BRI EE

Five Year Financial Summary
LFEMBRE

Definitions

Bz

10

25

35

50

56

78

92

98

99

100

102

104

106

238

239



Company Information

NEEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. YE Guofu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHU Yonghua

Mr. WANG Yongping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. XU Lili (Chairperson)
Mr. ZHU Yonghua
Mr. WANG Yongping

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (Chairperson)
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. WANG Yongping

Mr. YE Guofu

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Yongping (Chairperson)
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHU Yonghua

Mr. YE Guofu

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing
Ms. WONG Hoi Ting

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. YE Guofu
Ms. WONG Hoi Ting

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

8F, M Plaza

No. 109, Pazhou Avenue

Haizhu District, Guangzhou 510000
Guangdong Province

China

BE
HITES
RS S (EEREFHTE)

BAFHTES
(GE 3 3n
REEERAE
FoxFkiE

FHERR
ARt (/%)
REEERE
FoxFhE

FHzEE
RS (T
HRRL L
TP

B R

RENRGXEREZES

EoxFRE(EE)
R+
R AE
RE=ERE

BEATRNWE
RIBRIAAE
iR

RERAER
BEE S
BYELt

TEANEER ETEEXMR

a3

BRE

BN TSR

BINARE 1095

$h 2 EI5812 (H4R - 510000)

2  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Flats B-D, 35/F, Plaza 88

88 Yeung Uk Road

Tsuen Wan, the New Territories
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shop 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Citibank N.A.

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation

Company Information
AFEH

BETEERMR

B
RS
15 E 8885
Plaza 88
35#B-DE

AfREE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

D

EEH TSR

BEDFAD

G R IEERBIEG) THAMARFREE
1% B0

B

IR

EFTE105%

AT RESE

EBRODERE
BAPREBLEELAR AT
B

BT

2 RER1835%
A
17181712-171655 4

R ETEERBFE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

ERERRT
TEHEIRTT
PISIRITRA BIRA T
FE R RRITRG BRAT
RERRIRTRGERA T

2024F[EE o HAIER 3




Company Information

NEEH

HONG KONG STOCK CODE
9896

NYSE SYMBOL
MNSO

COMPANY WEBSITE

https://ir.miniso.com

4  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

BHREBRONAR

9896

T P ACHS

MNSO

NOIEEN

https://ir.miniso.com




Change of Financial Year End Date

On January 17, 2024, the Board announced that it has resolved to
change the financial year end date of the Company from June 30
to December 31 with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Company
published its audited consolidated financial statements covering a
period of six months from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023. The
annual report for the current annual financial period covers a period
of twelve months from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 (the
“fiscal year ended December 31, 2024”).

Given the foregoing, certain comparative information are for a
period of six months from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023,
and hence may not be directly comparable. To enhance the
comparability of the current year’s financial results, the Company
has also included in this annual report the unaudited financial
results of the Company for the twelve months ended December
31, 2023, which are derived from the arithmetic combination of the
financial results as disclosed in the annual report of the Company
for the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the annual report
of the Company for the twelve months ended June 30, 2023, after
arithmetic adjustments made to exclude the financial results of first
six months of the relevant period as disclosed in the interim report
published by the Company for the six months ended December 31,
2022.

FRTRFEEEH

M2024F1H170  EFg/MHEEEABERRT
NP FEEEEBMR6 A30BEkA12 8318 » Al
R o Eift - ARA T REHR2023F7 A1 H
#EZ 2023412 A31 H IE/NE A BRINKEEZES
gk o NEEMBRE RN FRRE2024F 1
F1BEE2024F12A31 B I+ EAHE (&=
202412 A1 B LBBEE]) -

A ESCRRi - H A LEEE R 82023F7 A1 AR
£2023F12 A31 H IE/~ @ AERE - Bt algefal
BEELE - AREAFEVBEENITLERNE - K&
NN BEE2023F12 A31 B+ @A K
KERT TS EE (BERAARIEZE2023412 H31
HIEANEAMFREHRE AR RIEZE2023F6 H30
HE+-EAMFEREPYHBEENEREH -
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Financial Performance Highlights

MBRABE

For the six months ~ For the twelve months For the fiscal year
ended December 31, ended December 31,  ended December 31,

2023 2023 2024
HZE20235F HZ20235 HZ20245

12 A31 B 1A A 1243181+ =EA 1231 B ILITEE

(Renminbi (RMB”) in thousands, except percentages and per share data)

(ARE(TARE]) T B REREERIN)

Revenue YA 7,632,467 13,838,797 16,994,025
Gross profit £ 3,241,039 5,698,431 7,637,060
Operating profit &2 &7 1,553,707 2,819,648 3,315,789
Profit before taxation #1718 1,652,742 2,980,947 3,347,532
Profit for the period/year £,/ AF|;E 1,256,077 2,273,995 2,635,428
Profit for the period/year attributable to: AT~ A LEA5H,/FRFE

- Equity shareholders of the Company — A al iz 5 1,248,405 2,253,241 2,617,560
- Non-controlling interests —JFi2 ki & 7,672 20,754 17,868
Earnings per Share §R 27

- Basic (RMB) —&& (AR L) 1.00 1.81 2.11
- Diluted (RMB) — % (AR¥ 1) 1.00 1.80 2.10

Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)

KRERRE CG(EREBIRE ) E1]) 1,302,509 2,356,729 2,720,612
Adjusted net earnings per Share (a non-IFRS measure)

KREERFEF E(ERRBREEN) ER)

- Basic (RMB) —&& (AR¥ L) 1.04 1.88 2.18
- Diluted (RMB) —#& (AR# L) 1.04 1.87 2.17
Adjusted EBITDA (a non-IFRS measure)

LREEBITDA(H (IR B B3R5 £8) 1518) 2,009,617 3,571,405 4,334,325

For the twelve months ended December 31,
HE12A31BIET @A

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20214
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited
A& e A& A& RET
(RMB, in thousands)
(AREF )
Revenue Yt A 7,556,203 10,128,707 9,925,619 13,838,797 16,994,025
Gross profit EF| 2,073,046 2,856,884 3,464,079 5,698,431 7,637,060
Operating profit £ %/ 62,326 817,831 1,370,150 2,819,648 3,315,789

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
ADFERSRRERFE (BE),/ (1,624,576) 573,626 1,065,481 2,253,241 2,617,560
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Notes:

M

@

Information contained in this table have been provided to enhance
the comparability of the current year’s financial results in light of
the change of financial year end. In addition to the audited financial
results of the Company for 2024 and the unaudited financial results
for 2023 as further detailed above, this table also contains the
unaudited financial results of the Company for the twelve months
ended December 31 for 2020, 2021 and 2022, which are derived
respectively from the arithmetic combination of the financial results as
disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the twelve months
ended June 30, 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively, after arithmetic
adjustments made to exclude the financial results of first six months
of the relevant period as disclosed in the interim report published by
the Company for the six months ended December 31, 2019, 2020
and 2021, respectively, and arithmetic combination with the financial
results of the six months as disclosed in the interim report published
by the Company for the six months ended December 31, 2020, 2021
and 2022, respectively, to arrive at the twelve-month unaudited
financial results for the corresponding year.

This table contains the unaudited financial information of the
Company as at December 31 for 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively,
which are extracted from the interim report published by the
Company for the six months ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and

GEE

M

Financial Performance Highlights

MBRRBE

RHARBAENEHN ST RS EERVBRFEL
BHMNBR TAFEMBEEN LM - B EX
Frife — Rl MR R R 2024 FREBAH VB EE X
2023 F R B MBEE 2N ARBEHGH
20204 - 20214F [ 2022F12 A31HIE+—f@A
HIRE BT EE - Do RlIRE AR TE Z£2020
F - 2021F %2022 6 A30H IE+ =& B B9F#HRFT
BENVEEENNEHS O (KCEEEELGIR
BENARLE DRI EREE20194F « 20205F K&
2021412 A31 H1E73E A 8 Bl & 895 B AR
RINE R B F5 2248 ) IR Bt BR A AN A B 90 Bl F 3 8
HZE2020%F + 20214 £2022F12 A31 HILAEA
WHPHSRENNEAVBEENEHSH - RETE
MEFEEN T (8 A REETTIEES -

AREEHERRFDHIR20204F + 2021 4F 22022
F12 AT HMAREEATHEER - D REsE A
NEITIEEMEZE20204F - 2021 4F 220224 12 A 31
A 1k 758 A 8 R s o

2022, respectively.

As of December 31,2
#Z12A3189
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2020 &

2021 F 2023
Unaudited
A&
(RMB, in thousands)
(ARETTT)

Audited
s

Non-current assets JEREI 4 & 1,185,770 3,205,191 3,253,688 4,157,675 6,464,627
Current assets B & & 9,121,137 7,841,592 8,743,692 10,327,634 11,655,501
Total assets & E 10,306,907 11,046,783 11,997,380 14,485,309 18,120,128
Current liabilities ) & & 3,512,743 3,827,032 3,711,558 4,406,979 5,727,189
Net current assets FRE1 4 & 5,608,394 4,014,560 5,032,134 5,920,655 5,928,312
Total assets less current liabilities

BEERRDAR 6,794,164 7,219,751 8,285,822 10,078,330 12,392,939
Non-current liabilities 3£/ 218 & 460,276 487,974 476,795 887,113 2,037,417
Total liabilities 42 & f& 3,973,019 4,315,006 4,188,353 5,294,092 7,764,606
Net assets FEE 6,333,888 6,731,777 7,809,027 9,191,217 10,355,522
Non-controlling interests FEH2fk i 9,198 (4,562) 1,602 23,022 40,548
Equity attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company A7 Bl & R R B (L s 6,324,690 6,736,339 7,807,425 9,168,195 10,314,974
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Financial Performance Highlights

MBRABE

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES

In evaluating the business, MINISO considers and uses adjusted
net profit, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted basic and diluted net
earnings per share as supplemental measures to review and assess
its operating performance. The presentation of these non-IFRS
financial measures is not intended to be considered in isolation or
as a substitute for the financial information prepared and presented
in accordance with IFRS. MINISO defines adjusted net profit as
profit for the period excluding equity-settled share-based payment
expenses. MINISO defines adjusted EBITDA as adjusted net profit
plus depreciation and amortization, finance costs and income
tax expense. MINISO computes adjusted basic and diluted net
earnings per share by dividing adjusted net profit attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company by the number of Shares used
in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation on an IFRS
basis.

MINISO presents these non-IFRS financial measures because they
are used by the management to evaluate its operating performance
and formulate business plans. These non-IFRS financial measures
enable the management to assess its operating results without
considering the impacts of the aforementioned non-cash and other
adjustment items that MINISO does not consider to be indicative
of its operating performance in the future. Accordingly, MINISO
believes that the use of these non-IFRS financial measures provides
useful information to investors and others in understanding
and evaluating its operating results in the same manner as the
management and the Board.

These non-IFRS financial measures are not defined under IFRS
and are not presented in accordance with IFRS. These non-IFRS
financial measures have limitations as analytical tools. One of the
key limitations of using these non-IFRS financial measures is that
they do not reflect all items of income and expense that affect
MINISQ’s operations. Further, these non-IFRS financial measures
may differ from the non-IFRS information used by other companies,
including peer companies, and therefore their comparability may be
limited.
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These non-IFRS financial measures should not be considered in
isolation or construed as alternatives to profit, basic and diluted
earnings per share, as applicable, or any other measures of
performance or as indicators of MINISO’s operating performance.
Investors are encouraged to review MINISO’s historical non-IFRS
financial measures in light of the most directly comparable IFRS
measures, as shown below. The non-IFRS financial measures
presented here may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies. Other companies may calculate
similarly titled measures differently, limiting the usefulness of such
measures when analyzing MINISO’s data comparatively. MINISO
encourages you to review its financial information in its entirety and
not rely on a single financial measure.

The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit and adjusted
EBITDA, both non-IFRS measures, for the six months ended
December 31, 2023, the twelve months ended December 31,
2023, and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 to the most
directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in
accordance with IFRS, which is profit for the period/year.

For the six months For the twelve months
ended December 31,

Financial Performance Highlights

MBRRBE

It FE I (BRI E R MR T RELE
B SBmEANE  SEREARLEERN (ER)
HEMEMEERFENBERIER - MEREERE
BmEERRNER - REEREBREERUT
REZ AL (ERY SRS ER) HRRHEESL
FECEIFR B I RS R A EIE - AXFr25IR3E
(BIREAF 3RS R MR R 6 A AL AR PR
2HMBLUBRERFELER - AR R BEURME
B E AR ENRE - MRS TEBERE
LEoTRaERNEERRNERE - RElERS
BET2EEMEYBEER - MIHRBEE M5

iR -

TEREHMEE2023F12 A31HIEANEA - &E
2023F12 A31H 1L+ =1E A K# E2024F12 A 31
B 1E B S A4S B R A R AL T EEBITDA(3S
AIECEIBR B3R & 2 R1)) 518 ) B4R 5 ( B BR B 75

EYEAN B K 2R E A A B TS HEAZ (A
Hi,EAFE) ETTHER -

For the fiscal year
ended December 31,

ended December 31,

#HZE12A31H BZ=12A31H HZ12H31H
g IE+={EA LT
2023 2024
2023F 20244
(RMB in thousands)
(ANRETTT)
Profit for the period/year ¥,/ R I8 1,256,077 2,273,995 2,635,428
Add back: i/ -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
AR SRR IR D TR 46,432 82,734 85,184
Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)
SFHEFAE GBI I BREER) B1F) 1,302,509 2,356,729 2,720,612
Add back: i/ -
Depreciation and amortization 7% K #4 285,241 464,245 808,694
Finance costs B A 25,202 43,479 92,915
Income tax expense FT{5 ¢ &2 396,665 706,952 712,104
Adjusted EBITDA (a non-IFRS measure)
S AEEBITDA GEC IR M 5 522 R)) 81%) 2,009,617 3,571,405 4,334,325
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR THE REPORTING
PERIOD

We are a global value retailer offering a variety of trendy lifestyle
products featuring IP design. Since we opened our first store
in mainland China in 2013, we have successfully incubated
two brands — “MINISO” and “TOP TOY”. We have built our
flagship brand “MINISO” as a globally recognized retail brand
and established a store network worldwide. Our flagship brand
“MINISO” offers a frequently-refreshed assortment of lifestyle
products covering diverse consumer needs, and consumers are
attracted to our products’ trendiness, creativeness, high quality and
affordability.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the total number of
MINISO stores in mainland China and overseas markets increased
from 6,413 as of December 31, 2023 to 7,504 as of December 31,
2024. The number of TOP TOY stores increased from 148 as of
December 31, 2023 to 276 as of December 31, 2024. For the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024, the aggregate GMV of the Group
reached approximately RMB30.4 billion.

Brands and Products

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, we launched an
average of over 1,180 SKUs in “MINISO” channels per month,
and we offered consumers a wide selection of over 12,600 core
SKUs, the vast majority of which are under the “MINISO” brand.
Our MINISO product offering spans across 11 major categories,
including home decor, small electronics, textile, accessories,
beauty tools, toys, cosmetics, personal care, snacks, fragrance and
perfumes, stationery and gifts.

Under the “TOP TOY” brand, we offered around 11,100 SKUs as of
December 31, 2024 across major categories such as blind boxes,
toy bricks, model figures, model kits, collectible dolls, Ichiban Kuiji
and other popular toys.

HEHRBEEE

B —REENIPEFT AFECHEELHEMTR
EEREEMNEHEBETERN - H2013FEFH
Wb FARR 58 —RPIE LASR - BAMIE AR T M fE
mig - DRI ZAIER A TOP TOY] - HMEH
EEME2AERIITEARIRRUNTERME
WERBREEANEY TGRS - FRMIMEE RS
[RElEm | RHBEEEL RSB LFINEEREE
M AImEEBEELEEMNE R - AEE - 8lE -
amEMESUERNERRSEES -

HZE2024F 12 A1 HIELHBFE - AEENHEH
Wit NGNS BB P E B SR E 22023 F
12 31 BM6,413RIENEEE2024F12 A31BH
7,504% - TOP TOYPI/EHEHEE 2023412 A31
HE148KIBINEE £2024F12 531 HHY276F
HZE2024F 12 A1 BLEIMBFE - ASREEAD
GMVAETHIARE3041E7T -

mERER

HZE2024F 12 A1 HIEFBFE - BRMOEBEIE
@& EE YT AHELBE1,180ESKU - AHEE
IE{HE12,600E A& HIZ O SKUR EZ EMAES -
B RIBH BRI ZEIERIRE - RANZEIE
mEMAENMEEZZERE  BEAERE NAE
TEM: $H% BREH - FZHTE A ¥
A EAER - TR K CAFESR -

#HZ2024F12A318 » ®RMEITOP TOY RET
IR T #411,100ASKU - MEES ~ FaAk ~ Fift -
PHEEER I —BEMEMSRASTER

-
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Store Network

As of December 31, 2024, we served consumers primarily through
a network of over 7,500 MINISO stores, including nearly 4,400
MINISO stores in mainland China and over 3,100 MINISO stores in
overseas markets. The following table shows the number of MINISO
stores in mainland China and overseas as of the dates presented:

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Y5 48 4%

HZE2024F12A318  HMEEBEAE7,500L K%
BIERPIERBRBEBERERYS  EPEFER
B 44,400 RBENEMPIE - 8IS ERBA
3100KREZEIEMPIE « TRINTHEZHREH - &
B Rt AEI B EIERPIUERE ¢

As of December 31,
HZE12A31H

2023
20234

Number of MINISO stores ZEIBRFEHE

Mainland China 1 B Ayi, 3,926 4,386
Directly operated stores H ‘& /& 26 25
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z 814 % A9/ 3,878 4,335
Stores operated under distributor model 3295 22 26

Overseas /&4 2,487 3,118
Directly operated stores B & /& 238 503
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model 8|4 % AFIE 283 404
Stores operated under distributor model R IEFT)E 1,966 2,211

Total &5t 6,413 7,504

We have expanded our TOP TOY store network in mainland China
since 2020. TOP TOY has also begun to expand to overseas
markets since 2024. This strategic move aligns with the Company’s
plan to expand globally and strengthen its brand presence. As of
December 31, 2024, we had a total of 276 TOP TOY stores, 272
of which located in mainland China. The following table shows the
number of TOP TQOY stores in mainland China and overseas as of
the dates presented:

E2020F 8 - HMEEEAFBERAITOP TOYF
JE4R4E - AR - TOP TOYJRiA2024 FRIMAIBRE SN
i - E—BREEEEFA ARG 2RIERLER
MIEFENNETE - #E2024F12 8318 » &M
HE276 RTOP TOYFIJE » 272 R KA B R ©
TRIWRHZZ2FHRBE - PEAFEINHTOP
TOYPYJEEE -

As of December 31,
HZ=12A31H

2023
20234

Number of TOP TOY stores TOP TOYFi/E & &

Directly operated stores B & /& 14 40
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z 814 % A9/ 134 236
Total &3 148 276

2024F [EHRE o RAIER 11




Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

EFERtAPEEE

HZE2024F12A318 ' K25 X BAIERE S

26 R A AIE MR IEFIEMIBKTOP TOYE & /ES) »
BOEFE A EMEEERMTOP TOYFIES
HEERRAEBRABRATES -

Store operations in mainland China

As of December 31, 2024, apart from 25 directly operated MINISO
stores, 26 distributor MINISO stores and 38 directly operated
TOP TOY stores, all of our other MINISO and TOP TOY stores in
mainland China were operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
model.

TRIRAFRERE,FEES BN EIE R

The following table shows the aggregate numbers of MINISO stores

in mainland China for the period/year indicated:

Directly operated stores H&JE

PS5 488K

For the six
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

178 A
2023
20234

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
BE12A31H

E+=f@A

2023
20234

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31H

IERIERFE

2024
20245

Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year £,/ F¥IFI/5 &2 15 16 26
Number of new stores opened during the period/year £,/ F AR EHFHFIEEE 13 15 10
Number of closed stores during the period/year? £ /R FAB P EZER 2 5 11
Net increase/(decrease) in number of stores during the period/year
8/ FRPIESENFEM Oh) 11 10 (1)
Number of stores at the end of the period/year 2,/ 4 K3 E&E 26 26 25
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model 2814 % AP/
Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year &,/ F#IFI L2 3,569 3,290 3,878
Number of new stores opened during the period/year 8,/ F NG ERFFIEHED 412 745 756
Number of closed stores during the period/year® &,/ REEAH) P EEE 103 157 299
Net increase in number of stores during the period/year £,/ R EEE A FE 1 309 588 457
Number of stores at the end of the period/year £,/ 4 KFIE&E 3,878 3,878 4,335
Stores operated under distributor model X329/
Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year &,/ F#IFI L2 20 19 22
Number of new stores opened during the period/year &1/ E RN EMHFIEHE 2 3 4
Number of closed stores during the period/year® &1,/ FREEEIFIFIEHER - - -
Net increase in number of stores during the period/year £,/ R EEE A FE 1 2 3 4
Number of stores at the end of the period/year #,/ 4 KFIE&E 22 22 26

Notes:

(1)

The number of MINISO Retail Partner stores opened or closed during
the period/year excluded the movement of stores relocation and
upgrade.

BT -

R/ FARXSBEANZEERAPIEHETS
FEPYERE R THR -

FZEIERPIERSRRERME - PIEEOZE
FIUBTEEIE N - PUEFTERISHM BB AR - X
LPYEEERN R B RIA R AHREME B (10E
FROBERAPIIE -

(2)  The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such @
as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners for other considerations, as applicable.
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Our ability to penetrate into various tiers of cities is evidenced by
our proven track record of successfully penetrating into various
lower-tier cities in mainland China despite our previous experience
operating in mostly high-tier Chinese cities. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024, the number of net new stores in first-
and second-tier cities accounted for around 59%.

The following table shows the aggregate number of MINISO stores
in mainland China by city-tiers as of the dates indicated:
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BABRPZANEECHRAZRETR — 25
W BREMEENZ2EINSEET - KK
2B B Z AR AR T A R T R B AR R (E 2 58
B9 o {2 202412 A31 A IEIREE - —— &5
PSR EHFHIBE 4 559% o

TRIVREEMT B EBIZHHERE 0 hE A
FEIERPIERE

As of December 31,
BZ12831H

2023

20234

Number of MINISO stores in mainland China R E At I B RIERFIEHE

First-tier cities — 4R35 522 587
Second-tier cities Z&R ™ 1,617 1,822
Third- or lower-tier cities = 43 3 (K 4533 77 1,787 1,977
Total &5t 3,926 4,386

The MINISO Retail Partner model represents a mutually beneficial
relationship between us and the MINISO Retail Partners, where
we achieve rapid store network expansion with consistent brand
image and consumer experience in an asset-light manner, and our
MINISO Retail Partners attain attractive investment opportunities.
Our MINISO Retail Partners are also motivated to maintain a loyal
relationship with us.

ZRIEBABARKRTHMERAEBAZANE
BEANBE  BRAARBEESABRRENPIES
MIEKR - RE—BHREERIEEERR - MA
BIERARERSTERSINNEREKS - RANH
BIEBALBEBNERPRTLHOAERE -
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The following table shows the number of our MINISO Retail
Partners that invested in MINISO stores in mainland China for the
period/year indicated:

Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the beginning of the period/year”

TRIRATRERE,FERE BN AE R
IERBEIAERARE

For the six
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

1F7NEA
2023
20234

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
#Z=12A31H

E+=1@A

2023
20234

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,

HZ12H31H

ERBEFE

2024
20245

B/ ENREIEBABED 1,022 981 1,049

Number of new MINISO Retail Partners during the period/year

B FRITERAIE B ASE 79 148 161

Number of terminated MINISO Retail Partners during the period/year®

/RN ENERIERAZBER 52 80 139

Net increase in number of MINISO Retail Partners during the period/year

8/ ERNREIEHABEFLM 27 68 22

Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the end of the period/year

B/ FREAIEHAEE 1,049 1,049 1,071
Notes: PR -

M

The number of MINISO Retail Partners at a given date is calculated
based on the number of individuals and entities with effective
contractual relationships with us on that date.

The number of terminated MINISO Retail Partners for the six months
ended December 31, 2023, the twelve months ended December 31,
2023 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 were 52, 80 and
139, respectively. The increase in the number of terminated MINISO
Retail Partners for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 was
mainly due to our optimization of MINISO Retail Partners structure,
which reduced several long-tail MINISO Retail Partners. As of
December 31, 2024, there were 1,071 MINISO Retail Partners that
invested in MINISO stores in mainland China, and 626 of them had
invested for over three years. We had one distributor for the MINISO
brand in Tibet, China during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.
As of the date of this annual report, there has been no conversion of
our collaboration partners in mainland China from a MINISO Retail
Partner to a distributor, or vice versa.

The majority of our TOP TOY stores in mainland China are operated
under the MINISO Retail Partner model as well. As of December 31,
2023 and 2024, we had 42 and 64 MINISO Retail Partners operating
TOP TOY stores, respectively. Some MINISO Retail Partners in
mainland China may invest in both MINISO and TOP TOY stores.
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HZE2023F12 A31HIENEAR - #ZE2023F12A4
31HIET A A KEZE2024F12 A31 B IFBI B
BRI ZRIABABE DRI A5207 ~ 8017 ~ 139
i - HE2024F12 A1 B I REFE » RIENE
Bl ABENRLN  TEEARBEMEREIEEA
HEETERE  BLOTETRERAARA -BZE
2024%12A318 » B1,071UZRIABAKREFH
B EIERFE - EPe26f D E=F UL -
B ZE2024F12 AT AL BEFE - HMEHERA
BEIZAERREHNRIER BEAFHEAE -
BMEFRAMOEERHTERREIERAEA
RIBE - RZIA °

P E A A EE D TOP TOYFIE TR & A4 %
AEXTEL - 220234 £2024%F12 A31H -
DRlE 420 K64 HBIE R ALLETOP TOYFIJE -
— R E A REES B AR ERRREZEER
K TOP TOYFIJE -




Store operations in overseas markets

We have adopted flexible store operation models, including direct
operation, MINISO Retail Partner model and distributor model as
we expand our global footprints, depending on the growth potential,
local regulation and other factors in the markets. In consideration of
the evolving local regulatory requirements, market conditions and
their operational needs, our overseas franchisees may sometimes
convert from a MINISO Retail Partner to a distributor, or vice versa.

As of December 31, 2024, in overseas markets, there were 503
stores directly operated by us and 2,615 stores operated under the
MINISO Retail Partner model and distributor model.

The following table shows the aggregate number of MINISO stores
in overseas markets for the period/year indicated:

Directly operated stores H&JE
Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year £,/ F¥IFI/5 &2

Number of new stores opened during the period/year &1/ FRNFHEMNHFIEHE

Number of closed stores during the period/year? £ /R RBIEIPIEZED

Net increase in number of stores during the period/year £,/ RP5[E & E #)Z 120

Number of stores at the end of the period/year £,/ ERFIEE 2
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z&I5 % AFIE
Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year £,/ F¥IFI/E &2

Number of new stores opened during the period/year &/ FRNFHEMNFFIEHE

Number of closed stores during the period/year® £ /R BIEIPIEZED

Net increase in number of stores during the period/year £,/ RP5E & & #)E 120

Number of stores at the end of the period/year £/ ERFIEE 2
Stores operated under distributor model X3P/
Number of stores at the beginning of the period/year £,/ F¥IFI/E &2

Number of new stores opened during the period/year &}/ FRNFREMNFFIEHE

Number of closed stores during the period/year? £ /R B EIPIEZED

Net increase in number of stores during the period/year £,/ RP5[E & E #)/E 120

Number of stores at the end of the period/year £,/ ERFIEE 2
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ERIHISNFEES
HAERR2HROFEBEHNRE - RIEM ST
RE&ED - EMERMEMRAER - BT —FKIIE
MFEEZES - BREEE - BRIEBARMK
ERN - EEIEHAEECNETENR - MHK
HREENLERR - RS MBEREREH
FRIEBABE SRIER - RZTFA -

HZE2024F12 A318 © /85 M5 - HAIHEAB 503
FEZE  ZBAIABAPIERAIEPE2,615F °

TRIVRRARERE, FEBINT 5L 8B M
JEHREL

For the six
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

IE+=f@A
2023
20234

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31H

IEBTBE

2024
20245

176 153 238
87 124 279
25 39 14
62 85 265

238 238 503

252 246 283
55 79 145
24 42 24
31 37 121

283 283 404

1,759 1,716 1,966

247 405 402
40 155 157

207 250 245

1,966 1,966 2,211

2024 EHE o EBRAIER
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Note: MI5E -

ZAERMERSERABER - wPYERELH2E -
PRSI - PIUEFEESNMREEEL - K
P EEEATIR BRI EBASRETENEME
& (anE R ) BRI E -

(1)  The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such 1)
as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners or distributors for other considerations, as applicable.

TRIVREEMT BRS8N T 5ERE
BamPIELRR

The following table shows the aggregate number of MINISO stores
in overseas markets by region as of the dates indicated:

As of December 31,
BZ12A31H

2023
20234

Number of MINISO stores in overseas markets /NN B EIERFIEHE

Asia excluding China 251 (FF EIBR I 1,333 1,611
North America 1tZEM 172 350
Latin America £ =) 552 637
Europe B/ 231 295
Others Hfib 199 225
Total &5F 2,487 3,118

EXRBDEITE - RABBEAEEEEHEIR
MEELRNEHRREBSE - BARMNPIERE
& o TRIRRATREREFERMEEINTIEH

In the majority of overseas markets, we expand our store network
by collaborating with local distributors with abundant local
resources and retail experiences. The following table shows the

number of our distributors in overseas markets for the period/year REFHE :
indicated:
For the six For the twelve For the fiscal
months ended months ended year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
H#Z=12A318 HZ12A31H BZ12A318
EREA ET=A FEBEE
2023 2023 2024
20234 20234 2024
Number of distributors at the beginning of the period/year® 8,/ F ¥ IEEHHED 229 212 230
Number of new distributors during the period/year® &,/ FRITEMHIEELHER 8 25 61
Number of terminated distributors during the period/year®
B/ EREFMRIZEEE 7 7 39
Net increase in number of distributors during the period/year
B/ ERREREEFEM 1 18 22
Number of distributors at the end of the period/year ],/ FE R IEHEHED 230 230 252
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Notes: MI5E -

(1)  Number of distributors at a given date is calculated based on (1) RETHHEOKREBSENREEZEBEREMT
EERAERBENEAMEEZSSHE -

the number of individuals and entities with effective contractual
relationships with us on that date.

(2)  Change of contracting entities by the same distributor is not taken (2) HEEREFEIKRIEOREFEER  TZEHA—
REEEESREENER

into account in the calculation of numbers of new or terminated
distributors.

220235 22024 F12 A31H » KBTS
DREATSR R4 ZEIEBA - BEIEB AR
ENEZE2024F12 A31 A LB BRFE AP -
TERHREERAARARERLN -

As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, we had 78 and 114 MINISO
Retail Partners in the overseas markets, respectively. The increase
in the number of MINISO Retail Partners for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 was primarily due to the increase in the number
of MINISO Retail Partners in Indonesia.

Other Key Operating Data HitERES &

The following tables set forth certain of our key operating data TREFHNFAP DRI A B Rt &8 N 5 ) & BIlE
of MINISO stores in mainland China and overseas markets, mPYJE RS T R iE & R

respectively:

For the six
months ended
December 31,

HZE12H31H

LE7NEA
2023
20234

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,

HZE12A31H

IE+=fEA

2023
20234

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,

HZ=12A31H

IERF B B

2024
20245

MINISO stores in mainland China F B R & AIE RS

Total GMV®™ (RMB in millions) £2GMV)( A RE B E ) 6,895 13,035 14,008
Total number of transactions (in millions) X Z# & (5 &) 183.2 346.7 368.1
Total sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKU#2$5E (B &) 484.4 946.2 978.8
Average spending per transaction (RMB) FHZEE (A RET) 37.6 37.6 38.1
Average selling price (RMB) & E (AR TT) 14.2 13.8 14.3
Same-store® GMV Growth (%) [E/5®© GMVIE & & (%) 35%~40% 30%~35% Down high-
single digit

THREELE

Notes: BfaE -

(1) Includes GMV generated through MINISO offline stores and Online to (1) PEBRBAERETIIERELEET ([020])
Offline (“020”) platforms. FaELENGMV °

(2)  Includes stores that opened prior to the beginning of the comparative (2 PRERELBHBABICHE  BEEBBERDE
“E - BRLBREINEES T BB30 BHPE -

periods and remained open as of the end of the comparative periods
and closed for less than 30 days during both comparative periods.

2024 ERE o BAER 17




Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

MINISO stores in overseas markets
wHATHENBRIERAE
Total GMV (RMB in millions)
BCGMV(AREBHET)
Asia excluding China 25 (FREIERSM)
North America 1t
Latin America $z T S
Europe B
Others £t

Same-store™ GMV Growth (%)

For the six
months ended
December 31,

HZE12H31H

17 1EA
2023
20234

6,452
2,323
824
2,411
575
319

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
#H=12A31H

IE+=@A

2023
20234

10,989
4,108
1,282
4,140

896
563

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31H
LEBEE

2024
2024 £

14,001
5,039
2,141
4,897
1,260

664

up mid-single digit

FJEN GMVIE K & (%) 20%~25% 25%~30% R B A 2
Asia excluding China 25;M (FR B 4SM) up mid-teens up high-teens  up high-single digit
YIS ohe e < b1 v ¢ BnSEE
North America 3£ M 70%~75% 75%~80% flat
Latin America $i7 T £ 30%~35% 35%~40% up mid-single digit
12 hn B B
Europe B/ up mid-teens up mid-teens flat
RN R e+ ¥
Others E A down low-single digit up low-single digit down mid-single digit
TR AR 2K I8 IMEAEN L B TR B &

Note: MI5E -

(1) Includes stores that opened prior to the beginning of the comparative (1) EEELSHABIIERE BEEBBERDE
periods and remained open as of the end of the comparative periods 3 BREEINEE ST EE30BHPYE
and closed for less than 30 days during both comparative periods.
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The following table sets forth the GMV of MINISO brand in mainland
China through online channels for the period/year indicated:

MINISO brand in mainland China = Bl it: /9 & £ 8 7 @ h#
Total GMV through online channels® i i@ 4% _F 2R B &S HIAAGMVO

Business Review and Outlook
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TREJINFRHAR, FELEERDEETER
BB AR L RBEGSHGMY

For the six
months ended
December 31,

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31H

HZE12H31H

IE+=1@A
2023
20234

(RMB in millions)
(ANREBRET)

IR FE

2024
20245

321 637 791

Note:

(1) Excludes GMV through O20 platforms which is accounted for in GMV
through offline channels.

Our TOP TOY brand started operating in December 2020 in
mainland China. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024,
our TOP TOY brand achieved a total GMV of RMB1,410.4 million
through multi-channels. The following table sets forth certain of our
key operating data of TOP TQY stores in mainland China.

TOP TOY stores in mainland China Bl Xf£#9TOP TOYF3 /&
Total GMV (RMB in millions) #GMV(A RE B &)

Total number of transactions (in millions) %X 2422 (A &)

Total sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKU42$4E (B &)
Average spending per transaction (RMB) F¥I & B8 (AREETT)
Average selling price (RMB) I EE (ARKETT)

Same-storet GMV Growth (%) [Fl/5 " GMV1E & % (%)

it

(1) TEERBO20FAELEMGMV BT BB
TEREEARGMV -

HFIBTOP TOY R EEF 2020412 A 72 B A 51
BB - H{E2024F12 A31 HILFKEE » TOP
TOYREBBALZRBERMBGMVARY1,41048
BT o NREFIFEAMTOP TOYFIERE T %

BEBUE -

For the six
months ended
December 31,
EHZ=12A31H

1E75E A
2023
20234

445
3.8
7.1

118.7
62.5

80~85%

For the twelve
months ended
December 31,
HZE12A31H

IE+=AA

2023
20234

814
6.7
12.9
121.3
63.3

45%~50%

For the fiscal
year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31H

IER B E

2024
20245

1,148
10.5
19.9

109.5
57.8

up mid-
single digit
2 B B
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Note:

(1) Includes stores that opened prior to the beginning of the comparative
periods and remained open as of the end of the comparative periods
and closed for less than 30 days during both comparative periods.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Very Substantial Acquisition of Shares in Yonghui
Superstores Co., Ltd*

References are made to the announcement of the Company
dated September 23, 2024 and the circular of the Company dated
November 22, 2024 in relation to a very substantial acquisition.

On September 23, 2024, the Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into share purchase agreements
with independent third parties, respectively, to acquire an
aggregate of 2,668,135,376 shares in Yonghui Superstores
Co., Ltd* CxEEBM M, B A R]) (representing approximately
29.4% of its entire issued share capital), at the consideration in
the amount of RMB6,270,118,134 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,916,461,457, converted at the exchange rate of RMB0.90655
to HK$1.0000 for illustrative purpose) (the “Yonghui Acquisition”).
Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd*, a listed company on the SSE (stock
code: 601933), is a retail chain operator featuring fresh produce
management, mainly operates hypermarkets, supermarkets and
community supermarkets and has approximately 821 outlets
spanning across more than 25 provinces and municipalities across
the mainland China as of September 30, 2024.

The Yonghui Acquisition was approved by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on January 17,
2025. The Yonghui Acquisition has already been completed in the
first quarter of 2025.

*

For identification purpose only

W3

(1) BERELRYRABRIEHE BELRHERDE
BE - BRLEEEIANEESTEBH30 BHFTE

BERRNBHER

BRERBEKEETROBERATRRMNIEERE
RUEBSEIE

EMARMARNR A A2024F9 A23HARE A
NEHHA2024F 11 A22 AREK - ARG —
HIFFEEAREEEFIR -

R2024F9H23H  AREBAEZENB A
AP RIEBYE = L BERHE  UWKEAH
2,668,135,376 & K IBAAT AX (5 B PR A R AR 1D (%Y
HEER2EOHITRAN29.4%) » HEAARE
6,270,118,134 7T (1HE 12 476,916,461,457 T * 1%
AR #0.906557T 5%,1.000078 T K FE Red i - (£
AR ([KEBEWEEIE]) - KIEBMmRMDBR
ARG EZFT £ (BHRES :601933) © 2
—RUAHERELEAFOMEHBMELYR £
DERAGABT BATSEAEEBRT - B2
20249 A30AMIEAHEAIB821K - B HAM
w25 EE (M EET o

KIBWIESIED EARARRIIENR2025F1 A17H B
FR R RIRE EH#bE - sxIBIREEEIEE 142025
FE-FERTMK °
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Issue of Equity Linked Securities and Entry into Call Spread

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated
January 7, 2025 and January 14, 2025 in relation to the issue of
equity linked securities and entry into call spread by the Company.

In January 2025, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with UBS AG Hong Kong Branch and The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited for the issuance of
equity linked securities by the Company, which are convertible debt
securities that shall be settled wholly in cash, with an aggregate
principal amount of US$550,000,000 and an expected maturity
date on January 14, 2032 (the “Equity Linked Securities”). The
initial exercise price of the Equity Linked Securities is US$8.2822
per Share, subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
customary prescribed corporate actions. The Equity Linked
Securities have been approved by the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”) to be listed and quoted
on the Official List of the SGX-ST.

Further, the Company and UBS AG, London Branch and The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (the “Call
Spread Counterparties”) entered into a call spread (the “Call
Spread”), which is separate from, but is part and parcel of, the
Equity Linked Securities, and comprise:

(@ Lower Strike Call: a call option transaction granted by the
Call Spread Counterparties to the Company, exercisable at
the discretion of the Company, entitling the Company to (a)
the difference, settled in cash, between the exercise price of
the lower strike call, which is equivalent to the exercise price
of the Securities, and the volume weighted average price per
Share over a specified period of trading days, converted to
U.S. dollars at the prevailing exchange rate, and multiplied by
(b) the number of Shares underlying the lower strike call being
exercised; and
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BITRERBB SR LERPEEES

EI IR AN T B B 5202541 A7 H K%2025%1 A
14HMRE - RABBARRBRITIREHNES K
RN ERHREE -

M2025F1H » ARa|HIRIREBB BT RES
EEEZRITERARBADRBITIRERBES
FIVRBWE  ZEEFARRERES - AU
WEBEHEE A4 48%/5550,000,000% 7 K T8+
ZIHAR A52032F1 148 ([ RE#HMES]) - BE
BHINEHFNUIRTTEE BTN 8.2822K T 7]
REEETETHTRARTAETUAR - REH
WESDEFINEEARSMBERAE ([FRF))
HOERF R IERBE LT RRE -

BHN - ARFRIGREERIANTREE LSES
RITERAR ((BRPEEEHFH T LERY
REE ((AREEES))  FRIREEZBEINK

SHBES  BEEKREEHBESNH—HD 0 e
7

(@ TIRERME : BRPBEEHFIRTARQ
ANEBERPERS - AJHARERBITE - &%
FTARRAENRIE TR B R E N IRKIET -
@UAEHEEN TRITEEREERS A HHE
NERBRMDKRENE B ZHNERE (R
ERMERLBAEITAE) - FAD) TRE
TREERTS R BE &
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(b) Upper Strike Warrant: a call option transaction with an
expected exercise price of HK$102.1 per Share, representing
a premium of 110.0% over the Delta Reference Price (for
reference and illustration only) and a premium of 99.9% over
the Stock Reference Price, granted by the Company to the
Call Spread Counterparties, exercisable at the discretion of
the Call Spread Counterparties, which would entitle the Call
Spread Counterparties to receive newly allotted and issued
Shares (the “Upper Strike Shares”), the maximum number of
which is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
customary prescribed corporate actions. As at January 7,
2025, the maximum number of Upper Strike Shares that may
be issued was 66,407,407 Shares (representing approximately
5.31% of the then total issued and outstanding Shares),
which does not exceed and will be issued under the general
mandate granted by the Shareholders to the Directors on
June 20, 2024 to allot and issue new Shares. The Company
has received approval from the Listing Committee of the
HKEX for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Upper
Strike Shares issuable under the Upper Strike Warrant.

The Call Spread is structured such that the timing, size and
economics of the exercises under the Call Spread is able to match
the exercises under the Equity Linked Securities. This overall
structure will enable the Company to raise funds in a form similar
to convertible debt securities, whilst deferring potential dilution to a
higher effective exercise price.

The Company raised total net proceeds of US$457,079,647
(equivalent to HK$3,553,839,963) from the offering and sale of the
Equity Linked Securities and the Call Spread. The Company plans
to use the net proceeds for overseas store network expansion,
supply chain optimization and development, brand building and
promotion, additional overseas working capital and other general
corporate purposes, and to purchase its Shares and/or ADSs from
time to time pursuant to its share repurchase programs.
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(b) LRRBRESE: AARRRTERPEEEY
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Share Repurchase Programs

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated
August 30, 2024, March 21, 2025 and March 28, 2025 in relation to
the share repurchase program adopted by the Company to conduct
share repurchase no more than HK$2 billion in value of its Shares
and/or ADSs from the open market over a 12-month period starting
from August 30, 2024, and as extended to be valid until June 30,
2026 (the “Repurchase Authorisation”).

On March 28, 2025, the Company has entered into share
repurchase agreements for an aggregate repurchase amount of up
to approximately HK$1.8 billion, including up to a maximum amount
of HK$900 million for an automatic share repurchase program for
the repurchase of Shares (the “Hong Kong Repurchase Program”)
on the HKEX and the repurchase of ADSs on the NYSE for up to a
maximum amount of approximately US$115 million under the Rule
10b5-1 of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in
the U.S (the “Rule 10b5-1 Repurchase Program”, and together
with the Hong Kong Repurchase Program, the “Share Repurchase
Programs”), both of which will be covered by the Repurchase
Authorisation. The Company has applied for, and the HKEX has
granted, a waiver from strict compliance with the requirements
under Rule 10.06(2)(e) of the Listing Rules in respect of the share
repurchases to be made pursuant to the Hong Kong Repurchase
Program and an approval under Rule 10.06(3) of the Listing Rules in
relation to the Share Repurchase Programs.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events that might affect us since the end of the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Business Outlook

Looking ahead to 2025, we will remain focused on our long-term
strategic goals: firmly advance further globalization, strengthen our
product offerings and optimize our store network. Going forward,
we expect to further grow our business by pursuing the following
strategies.

We will participate in global competition and differentiate ourselves
through two angles: cost advantage and product differentiation.
While adhering to our value-for-money proposition, we will continue
to produce high quality products featuring IP design to make
lifestyle products more fashionable and trendy.

In mainland China, we will continue to expand and upgrade our
sales network. We will further penetrate cities that we have already
covered through a variety of store formats while also constantly
enhancing the MINISO Retail Partners program.

Business Review and Outlook
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

For overseas markets, we will further expand our store network
by adopting a flexible operating model for each market and will
continue to expand our presence in strategic markets such as
North America, Asia and Europe.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK, STRATEGIC UPDATE
AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

In spite of the uncertainties brought by the macro environment,
looking forward to fiscal year 2025 we will remain focused on our
long-term strategic goals: delivering on our globalization strategy,
bolstering the strength of our product offerings and optimizing
our store network. Going forward, we expect to further grow our
business by pursuing the following strategies.

Engaged in global competition, we will take cost advantages and
product differentiation as key points. While sticking to our value
for-money proposition, we will continue to produce high-quality
IP products featuring IP design to make lifestyle products more
fashionable and trendy.

At the same time, we will actively implement the “Super Store”
strategy to build a strong brand image in consumers’ minds. We
are also targeting “Big Beauty”, “Big Toys” and “Big IPs” as super
categories, and further exploring the room for improving average

GMV per store.

In China, we will expand and upgrade our store network by
capitalizing on the opportunities in both high-tier and lower-tier
cities and taking on more new MINISO Retail Partners to further
penetrate more cities in China that we have already covered.

For overseas markets, we will further expand our store network
by adopting a different operating model for each market, and will
continue to expand our presence in strategic markets such as
North America, Asia and Europe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

For the six  For the twelve  For the fiscal
months ended months ended year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
#=12A318 #HXE12A318 #Z12A31A

LE7]1E A IE+={@A LEBEE

2023 2023 2024
20234 2023%F 20245
(RMB in thousands)
(ARETT)

Revenue YA 7,632,467 13,838,797 16,994,025
Cost of sales $HEMA (4,391,428) (8,140,366) (9,356,965)
Gross profit £F 3,241,039 5,698,431 7,637,060
Other income E A4 A 18,993 22,617 21,595
Selling and distribution expenses 4% & 7 #4552 (1,363,114) (2,281,080) (3,519,534)
General and administrative expenses — & M7 T = (357,689) (677,394) (931,651)
Other net income HAth/F U A 21,105 62,361 114,696
(Credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables

B 5 REMBHFIE (FEE5E) FEBERRE (2,080) 2,708 2,469
Impairment loss on non-current assets 3£ 8 & & R (B 518 (4,547) (7,995) (8,846)
Operating profit A8 FI;E 1,553,707 2,819,648 3,315,789
Finance income 81754 A 123,969 204,510 118,672
Finance costs B/ A 7R (25,202) (43,479) (92,915)
Net finance income B 75U A58 98,767 161,031 25,757
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax

D AR EARBRIRE A BIRFE - B FE 268 268 5,986
Profit before taxation %1 lH 1,652,742 2,980,947 3,347,532
Income tax expense FT15%:i 5 2 (396,665) (706,952) (712,104)
Profit for the period/year i, A F8 1,256,077 2,273,995 2,635,428

Profit for the period/year attributable to:

UTALEEH, FRFIHE :
— Equity shareholders of the Company —ANA Al 25 I R 1,248,405 2,253,241 2,617,560
- Non-controlling interests — FE¥ZAE#E %5 7,672 20,754 17,868
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Revenue

Our total revenue was RMB16,994.0 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December
31, 2023: RMB13,838.8 million; for the six months ended December
31, 2023: RMB7,632.5 million), which consisted of 60.7% revenue
generated in mainland China and 39.3% revenue generated in
overseas markets.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was RMB9,357.0 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December 31,
2023: RMB8,140.4 million; for the six months ended December 31,
2023: RMB4,391.4 million).

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Our gross profit was RMB7,637.1 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December 31,
2023: RMB5,698.4 million; for the six months ended December
31, 2023: RMB3,241.0 million), and gross margin was 44.9%
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2023: 41.2%; for the six months
ended December 31, 2023: 42.5%). The increase in gross margin
was mainly attributable to (i) higher gross margin in overseas
markets contributed by product optimization and higher revenue
contribution from directly operated markets, and (ii) higher gross
margin of TOP TOY due to a shift in product mix towards more
profitable products.

Other Income

Our other income was RMB21.6 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December 31,
2023: RMB22.6 million; for the six months ended December 31,
2023: RMB19.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses were RMB3,519.5 million for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,281.1 million; for the six months
ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,363.1 million). Excluding
equity-based compensation expenses, our selling and distribution
expenses were RMB3,506.1 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December 31,
2023: RMB2,211.4 million; for the six months ended December 31,
2023: RMB1,321.6 million), which was primarily due to the increase
in Company’s investment into directly operated markets such as
in the U.S. market. As of December 31, 2024, the total number
of directly operated stores in overseas markets was 505, which
doubled as compared to a year ago. For the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024, the revenue from directly operated stores has
also doubled, while related expenses including rental and related
expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses together with
payroll excluding share- based compensation expenses increased
by 72.2%. Promotion and advertising expenses increased by 37.7%
in 2024, as a percentage of revenue stabilizing at around 3% as a
percentage of our total revenue in both comparative periods for the
full year and six months ended December 31, 2023 respectively.
Licensing expenses increased by 29.2%, stabilizing at around 2%
as a percentage of our total revenue in both comparative periods.
Logistics expenses increased by 51.0%, mainly reflecting the rising
freight costs caused by the tension in international shipping.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses were RMB931.7 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2023: RMB677.4 million; for the six
months ended December 31, 2023: RMB357.7 million). Excluding
equity-settled share-based payment expenses, our general and
administrative expenses were RMB859.9 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December
31, 2023: RMB664.4 million; for the six months ended December
31, 2023: RMB352.8 million), which were primarily attributable to
the personnel-related expenses in relation to the growth of our
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Other Net Income

Our other net income was RMB114.7 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December
31, 2023: RMB62.4 million; for the six months ended December 31,
2023: RMB21.1 million). The year-over-year increase was mainly
due to an increase in investment income in wealth management
products and an increase in fair value of an investment, partially
offset by a net foreign exchange loss.

Impairment Loss on Non-current Assets

Our impairment loss on non-current assets was RMB4.5 million
and RMB8.8 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023
and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, respectively (for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2023: RMB8.0 million).
We recorded impairment loss on non-current assets of directly
operated stores.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded operating profit of
RMB3,315.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,819.6 million;
for the six months ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,553.7 million).

Net Finance Income

Our net finance income was RMB25.8 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December
31, 2023: RMB161.0 million; for the six months ended December
31, 2023: RMB98.8 million). The year-over-year decrease was
mainly due to a decrease in interest income as a result of decrease
in both principal and interest rate in bank deposits, coupled with an
increase in finance cost due to increased interest expense on lease
liabilities in conjunction with the Company’s investment in directly
operated stores.

Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense of RMB712.1 million for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2023: RMB707.0 million; for the six months ended
December 31, 2023: RMB396.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the Period/Year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a profit for the year of
RMB2,635.4 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,274.0 million;
for the six months ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,256.1 million)

Adjusted Net Profit (a non-IFRS measure)

We recorded an adjusted net profit for the year of RMB2,720.6
million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,356.7 million; for the
six months ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,302.5 million) which
represents profit for the period/year excluding equity-settled share-
based payment expenses.

Adjusted EBITDA (a non-IFRS measure)

We recorded an adjusted EBITDA of RMB4,334.3 million for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2023: RMB3,571.4 million; for the six months
ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,009.6 million), which represents
adjusted net profit plus depreciation and amortization, finance
costs and income tax expense.

Net Cash from Operating Activities and Free Cash Flow

Our net cash from operating activities was RMB2,168.3 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2023: RMB2,330.3 million; for the
six months ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,097.5 million). Our
capital expenditure was RMB762.5 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 (for the twelve months ended December 31,
2023: RMB360.9 million; for the six months ended December 31,
2023: RMB264.8 million).

Current Ratio

Our current ratio decreased from 2.3 as of December 31, 2023
to 2.0 as of December 31, 2024, primarily due to the increase in
trade payables related to our inventories, and short-term loans and
borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREWED T

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT OUR
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Liquidity and Source of Funding

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, we funded our
cash requirements principally through cash generated from our
operations. As of December 31, 2024, our cash, cash equivalents,
restricted cash, term deposits, and other investments recorded in
current assets were RMB6,698.1 million (as of December 31, 2023:
RMB6,887.0 million).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this annual report, we did not make or hold
any significant investments during the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024. Given the completion of the Yonghui Acquisition only
took place in the first quarter of 2025, it did not have any impact
on the financial results of the Company for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed in this annual report, we did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, consolidated
affiliated entities or associated companies during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024. Given the completion of the Yonghui
Acquisition only took place in the first quarter of 2025, it did not
have any impact on the financial results of the Company for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2024, none of our Group’s assets was pledged.

Cash Management Policy

We believe we can make better use of our cash by making
appropriate investments in short-term investment products, which
generate income without interfering with our business operation
or capital expenditures. Our investment decisions with respect to
financial products are made on a case-by-case basis and after due
and careful consideration of a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the market conditions, the economic developments, the
anticipated investment conditions, the investment cost, the duration
of the investment and the expected benefit and potential loss of the
investment. We have established a set of internal control measures
which allow us to achieve reasonable returns on our investment
while mitigating our exposure to high investment risks. These
policies and measures were formulated by our senior management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to make full use of idle funds, improve the utilization rate of
surplus funds, and increase our income, under the premise of not
affecting our normal business activities, subject to approval from
our chief financial officer, we may purchase a certain amount of
wealth management products from financial institutions. According
to our internal policies, the manager of our treasury department
should make proposals to invest in wealth management products
to our chief financial officer and such proposals must be reviewed
and approved by our chief financial officer. In assessing a proposal
to invest in wealth management products, a number of criteria must
be met, including but not limited to the following:

° the purchase of wealth management products is limited to
low-risk products such as term deposits, principal-guaranteed
and interest-paying products, treasury notes issued by banks,
and wealth management products with risk level below R2.
The purchase of high-risk financial instruments such as
securities and futures is strictly prohibited.

° the expected return of the purchased wealth management
products should be not lower than bank’s deposit interest rate
for term deposits of the same period, the product structure
should be relatively simple, and the purchases should be
made from financial institutions with large operation scale,
overall strength and good credit standing.

° the treasury department is responsible for setting up a
detailed ledger for wealth management products, the manager
of the treasury department manages the financial products,
and tracks the progress and safety of wealth management
products. In the event of an abnormal situation, the manager
of the treasury department should report the situation to the
chief financial officer in a timely manner so that we can take
effective measures immediately to reduce potential losses.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2024, we did not have any detailed future plans
for material investments or capital assets.

Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2024, our gearing ratio was 5.5%, calculated
as loans and borrowings divided by total equity as of the end of the
year and multiplied by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Foreign Exchange Risk

Our financial reporting currency is RMB and changes in foreign
exchange rates can significantly affect our reported results and
consolidated trends. In addition, our results of operations, including
margins, are affected by the fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.
Our international operations generate revenues primarily in U.S.
dollars. Generally, a weakening of RMB against U.S. dollar has a
positive effect on our results of operations, while a strengthening of
RMB against U.S. dollar has the opposite effect. We have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to such risk.
To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for our
operations, appreciation of RMB against U.S. dollar would have an
adverse effect on RMB amount we receive from the conversion.
Conversely, if we decide to convert RMB into U.S. dollars for the
purpose of making payments for dividends on our Shares or ADSs
or for other business purposes, appreciation of U.S. dollar against
RMB would have a negative effect on U.S. dollar amounts available
to us.

Contingent Liabilities

Commitment of Tax Payments

In connection with the acquisition of land use right and the
construction of the headquarters building in Guangzhou, Miniso
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“MINISO Guangzhou”) entered into a
letter of intent on November 26, 2020 with the local government
of the district where our new headquarters building is located and
committed to pay an aggregate amount of tax levies of no less than
RMB965.0 million to the local government in Guangzhou for a five-
year period starting from January 1, 2021, with RMB160.0 million
in 2021, RMB175.0 million in 2022, RMB190.0 million in 2023,
RMB210.0 million in 2024 and RMB230.0 million in 2025. If we fail
to meet the committed amount for any of the five calendar years,
MINISO Guangzhou will have to compensate for the shortfall.

We had met the commitments for the calendar years of 2021, 2022
and 2023 and therefore MINISO Guangzhou was not required
to make any compensation to the local government. In March
2024, MINISO Guangzhou provided a performance guarantee
of RMB210.0 million issued by a commercial bank to this local
government in respect of the commitment of tax payments for
the calendar year of 2024, which is valid from April 1, 2024 to
March 31, 2025. The Directors have assessed that, based on
the projection of and actual relevant taxes and surcharges paid
and payable during the calendar year of 2024, we expect to be
able to meet the commitment for the calendar year of 2024 and
thus it is not probable that MINISO Guangzhou needs to make
any compensation to the local government under the above
performance guarantee. As such, no provision has been made in
respect of this matter as of December 31, 2024.
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Securities class action

In August 2022, a putative federal securities class action was
filed against the Company and certain of its officers and Directors
(“Defendants”), alleging that Defendants made misleading
misstatements or omissions regarding the Company’s business
operations and financials in violation of the Securities Act of 1933
and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The action is captioned
In re MINISO Group Holding Limited Securities Litigation, 1:22-
cv-09864 (S.D.N.Y.). Lead plaintiff was appointed in November
2022 and filed the operative complaint to the court. We and other
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the complaint, and the motion
was granted by the court in February 2024, with leave to amend.
Plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration of the court’s decision,
which was rejected by the court. Plaintiff has until April 28, 2025
to file a further amended complaint. As of December 31, 2024,
our Directors were unable to assess the outcome of the action or
reliably estimate the potential losses, if any.

Capital Commitment

As of December 31, 2024, our capital commitment was RMB633.5
million, compared to RMB837.2 million as of December 31, 2023,
which was attributable to the construction of the headquarters
building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

We had a total of 7,003 full-time employees as of December 31,
2024, including 2,742 in China and 4,261 in certain overseas
countries and regions. The following table sets forth the number of
our employees categorized by function as of December 31, 2024.

BERFHMBUER

HZE2024F12A318  HMILHF7,0038=RBE
8 Hrih2, 742201 A K 4,261 AL K LLF N
BREHE - THREFIHE2024F12 31 B IR
BEEIDHEB AR -

Function Number of Employees
B RE EE A
Product Development and Supply Chain Management & i 53 %5 B {H fg 8 & 78 1,233
General and Administrative — % &2 1T 533
Operations % 4,580
Sales and Marketing 4% & 4§54 167
Technology #fif 211
Business Development 753 & 157
Logistics #i 122
Total &5 7,003

Our total remuneration cost incurred for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 was RMB1,475.9 million, while it was
RMB580.8 million for the six months ended December 31, 2023.

The number of employees employed by the Company varies from
time to time depending on needs and employees are remunerated
based on industry practice. The remuneration policy and package
of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from
pension funds and in-house training programs, discretionary
bonuses, share awards and share options from the Company’s
share incentive plan may be awarded to employees according to
the assessment of individual performance.
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On January 17, 2024, the Board announced that the financial
year end date of our Company has been changed from June 30
to December 31 with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Board
is pleased to present this Directors’ report together with the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Director
Mr. YE Guofu (B ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili (tRE22Z2)

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (5<% %)

Mr. WANG Yongping (E5KkF)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 50 to 55 of
this annual report.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January
7, 2020, as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company completed
its initial public offering on the NYSE on October 15, 2020 and the
Company’s ADSs have been listed on the NYSE since then. The
Company’s Shares were subsequently listed on the Main Board of
the HKEX on July 13, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of the Company’s subsidiaries are the
retail and wholesale of design-led lifestyle and pop toy products
across the PRC, other parts of Asia, America, Europe and certain
other countries. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
and segment results based on geographical locations during
the Reporting Period are set out in Note 1 and Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group, as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Company’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Company that have occurred since the end of the Reporting Period,
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
an analysis of the Group’s financial performance and the Group’s
key relationships with its stakeholders who have a significant
impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success depends,
is set out in the sections headed “Business Review and Outlook”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 34 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of this Directors’
report. Events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the Reporting Period is set out in “Recent Developments
After the Reporting Period” in the section headed “Business Review
and Outlook”.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our business involves certain risks as set out in the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus and the Form 20-F for the
Reporting Period filed with the SEC. The following list is a summary
of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, some
of which are beyond its control.

Risks related to our business and industry

Risks and uncertainties related to our business and industry
include, but are not limited to, the following:

° Our success depends upon the continued strength of our
brands. If we are unable to maintain and enhance our brands,
our business and operating results may be adversely affected;

° The growth and profitability of our business depend on the
level of consumer demand and discretionary spending. A
severe or prolonged economic downturn in China or around
the world could materially and adversely affect consumer
discretionary spending and therefore adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations;

° Our success is dependent on the continued popularity of our
products, our continued innovation and successful launches
of new products, and our anticipation of and timely responses
to changes in consumer preferences;
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If we are unable to offer our products at prices that are highly
appealing to consumers or maintain competitive prices, our
business and results of operations would be materially and
adversely affected;

If we fail to offer high-quality products to consumers, our
business, reputation, results of operations and financial
condition will be materially and adversely affected;

Expanding product offerings may expose us to new
challenges and more risks;

If we are unable to attract purchases from new and existing
consumers, our business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected;

We primarily rely on our retail partners and distributors to
expand our store network. If we are unable to expand our
store network successfully, our business, results of operations
would be adversely affected;

If we, our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors fail to
successfully operate MINISO stores, our business and results
of operations would be adversely affected;

Our international operations are subject to a variety of costs
and legal, regulatory, political and economic risks;

If our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors do not
satisfactorily fulfill their responsibilities and commitments,
our brand image, results of operations could be materially
harmed;

If we fail to maintain the relationship with our MINISO Retail
Partners or our local distributors or fail to attract new MINISO
Retail Partners or local distributors to join our store network,
our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be materially and adversely affected; and

lllegal actions or misconduct of our MINISO Retail Partners,
local distributors, sub-contractors or sub-distributors, third-
party suppliers or other service providers, or any failure by
them to provide satisfactory products or services could
materially and adversely affect our business, reputation,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks related to doing business in China

A substantial portion of our business operations are conducted in
China and we face various risks and uncertainties related to doing
business in China, in particular, risks arising from the legal system
in mainland China, including risks and uncertainties regarding the
enforcement of laws and that rules and regulations in mainland
China can change quickly with little advance notice, and the risk
that the Chinese government may intervene or influence your
operations at any time, or may exert more control over offerings
conducted overseas and/or foreign investment in China-based
issuers, which could result in a material change in your operations
and/or the value of your securities. Risks and uncertainties related
to doing business in China include, but are not limited to, the
following:

° The PCAOB had historically been unable to inspect our
auditor in relation to their audit work performed for our
financial statements and the inability of the PCAOB to
conduct inspections of our auditor in the past has deprived
our investors of the benefits of such inspections;

° The ADSs may be prohibited from trading in the United
States under the HFCAA in the future if the PCAOB is unable
to inspect or investigate completely auditors located in
China. The delisting of the ADSs, or the threat of their being
delisted, may materially and adversely affect the value of your
investment;

° The PRC government has significant authority in regulating
our operations and may influence our operations. It may exert
more oversight and control over offerings conducted overseas
by, and/or foreign investment in, China-based issuers, which
could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to offer
or continue to offer securities to investors and may cause the
value of our Shares or the ADSs to significantly decline or be
worthless;

° Changes in China’s or global economic, political or social
conditions or government policies could have a material and
adverse effect on our business and results of operations;

° Uncertainties with respect to the legal system in mainland

China could adversely affect us. Certain laws and regulations
could limit the legal protections available to you and us;

38 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

BETESEEBEENRR

BPBAHOMERELETHFARE - BHRESE
HETEKLEXGABNAR LI EEN - LEE
KEHTEAMERERNAR (BIEERE R EH
R AT EPEAME R B E e
FRBIRAGEAMER T RET AR ) AR P EIK
FRRTREBERS TR ER THE L AR - kA8
HBIMNE R FE S B BT AR IR B HE A
FHEE B EHETHERL KB TES
BEXLEAEY - BERELLEBEFENRR
RAEEAZBRENRRIAT

s XEARAREHEBERBEEUEEIREH
PR BED BRI I RR IR R ER T
tE MEBEARARGHEBEZERBEEE
BHEMAZBEETRENHNETREEZEZX
FREHNNE

*  IRIEHFCAA - XBEITFFER AT BB AR IR (<
RBAREHEBERZBEGEAETEEAN
BHMAETEHREXHE ) KR LAEXER
5 o XEFERBIR RS Z BRI ELB R L
SHHETRENBEELEERTNZE

o  FEEFREMOES EHEERANEE®E
EAREREBRMHER o PEIBUT A g B
BATNTEBINEITH BT S P BT AR
SR EFEINE ZMESE MITH] - E iR
AIZE LRBIKE2HBRRMAMIEEEREE
S IEERENEE ) - AR ERR MR
B MERGFEROEENE NERAEE
& :

o ERZHNEE AT BRRRBITR
FHB T ALY WRMN LY RS RIS
EATFIZE :

o EIRMAARERAMA T REE RIS I
FMEETMEE - B TAERERATERFIER
R BETNEREMAERREDE




° Litigation and negative publicity surrounding China-based
companies listed in the U.S. may result in increased regulatory
scrutiny of us and negatively impact the trading price of
the ADSs and could have a material adverse effect upon
our business, including our results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows and prospects; and

. MINISO Group Holding Limited is a Cayman holding company
and we may rely on dividends and other distributions on
equity paid by our mainland China subsidiaries to fund any
cash and financing requirements we may have, and any
limitation on the ability of our mainland China subsidiaries or
Hong Kong subsidiaries to make payments to us could have
a material and adverse effect on our ability to conduct our
business.

Risks related to the ADSs and our Shares

Risks and uncertainties related to our ADSs and our Shares include,
but are not limited to, the following:

o The trading price of the ADSs and our Shares has been
volatile, which could result in substantial losses to investors;

° The concentration of our share ownership among executive
officers, Directors, and principal Shareholders and their
affiliated entities will likely limit investors’ ability to influence
corporate matters and could discourage others from pursuing
any change of control transaction that holders of our Shares
and the ADSs may view as beneficial; and

° Techniques employed by short sellers may drive down the
market price of our Shares or the ADSs.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

We are committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment,
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details
of such will be set out in our ESG Report published on the same
date as this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as may be disclosed in the ESG Report, we have complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this annual
report, no related party transaction disclosed in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for which disclosure is required.

Logistics and Distribution Centre Lease Agreement

Reference is made to the results announcement of the Company
dated August 30, 2024 in relation to, among others, the connected
transaction of the Company. On August 30, 2024, the Company,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, MINISO Guangzhou, as the
tenant, entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”)
with Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“MINISO
Zhaoqing”), as the landlord and a connected person of the
Company, in relation to the lease of certain warehouses located
in Zhaoqing City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The Lease
Agreement has a fixed term commencing from October 16, 2024 to
December 31, 2027 (both days inclusive).

Rent and property management fees under the Lease Agreement
are subject to progressive increment each year at a fixed rate. The
total rent and property management fees payable (inclusive of tax)
during the term of the Lease Agreement shall be in the range from
RMB20.8 million to RMB25.5 million. A security deposit of RMB5.9
million which is equivalent to three months of rent and property
management fees (inclusive of tax) shall be payable by MINISO
Guangzhou within 30 days of signing the Lease Agreement.
Pursuant to IFRS 16, the value of the right-of-use assets to be
recognised as at the lease commencement date by the Group in
connection with the Lease Agreement was approximately RMB63.6
million.

As MINISO Zhaogqing is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of YGF
MC Limited which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ye, MINISO Zhaoging
is an associate of Mr. Ye and therefore also a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the entering
into of the Lease Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder constitute a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Lease Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated August 30, 2024.
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PARTIALLY EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Procurement of Cosmetics and Beauty Products Framework
Agreement

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
November 29, 2024 in relation to the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. On June 27, 2022, MINISO
Guangzhou (for itself and on behalf of other members of the
Group) entered into a framework agreement (the “Procurement
of Cosmetics and Beauty Products Framework Agreement”)
with Wow Colour Beauty (Guangdong) Technology Limited (“Wow
Colour Beauty”) in relation to the procurement of cosmetics and
beauty products by the Group, with effect from the Listing Date.
Pursuant to the Procurement of Cosmetics and Beauty Products
Framework Agreement, Wow Colour Beauty would supply certain
cosmetics and beauty products to the Group in the ordinary and
usual course of business. The Procurement of Cosmetics and
Beauty Products Framework Agreement has a term of three years
commencing on the Listing Date and ending on June 30, 2025 (both
days inclusive).

On November 29, 2024, MINISO Guangzhou (for itself and on
behalf of other members of the Group) has entered into a renewed
Procurement of Cosmetics and Beauty Products Framework
Agreement with Wow Colour Beauty for a term ending on
December 31, 2026.

As Mr. Ye indirectly holds approximately 78.4% equity interests in
Wow Colour Beauty in aggregate, which includes approximately
1.6% equity interests held through his spouse, Wow Colour Beauty
is an associate of Mr. Ye and therefore also a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the renewed Procurement of Cosmetics and
Beauty Products Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The proposed annual cap for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2024 was RMB20.0 million. The actual transaction amount for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 was approximately RMBO0.1
million.
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IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company
dated September 15, 2023, March 12, 2024 and November 29,
2024 respectively in relation to the relevant continuing connected
transactions of the Company and its subsequent termination.
On June 27, 2022, Miniso Hong Kong Limited (“MINISO HK”),
for itself and on behalf of other members of the Group, entered
into a framework agreement (the “IP Licensing, Sales and
Distribution Framework Agreement”) with MINISO Lifestyle
Nigeria Limited (“MINISO Nigeria”), pursuant to which MINISO
HK grants to MINISO Nigeria (i) exclusive licenses for the use of
certain intellectual property rights in Nigeria owned by MINISO HK,
including but not limited to trademarks, particular package and
decoration, patents, technical know-how and operation standard
(the “Licensed IP Rights”) that are owned by us charged by a one-
off license fee based on the term of the licensing arrangement;
and (i) an exclusive right to establish MINISO stores in Nigeria as a
distributor of the Group, with effect from July 13, 2022.

MINISO Nigeria will use the Licensed IP Rights within the scope
specified in the IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework
Agreement. In addition, under the agreement, MINISO HK will sell
and distribute to MINISO Nigeria the products under the brand of
MINISO, including products which comprise intellectual property
licensed by external IP licensors collaborating with the brand of
MINISO. On March 12, 2024, in order to align with the new financial
year end date of the Company, MINISO Development Hong Kong
Limited, for itself and on behalf of other members of the Group,
entered into a revised framework agreement (the “Revised IP
Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement”)
with MINISO Nigeria, with a term commencing on the date of the
agreement and ending on December 31, 2026 (both days inclusive).

As MINISO Nigeria is controlled by YGF MC Limited which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ye, MINISO Nigeria is an associate of Mr.
Ye and therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Revised IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The proposed annual cap for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2024 was RMB46.0 million. The actual transaction amount for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 before the termination of the
relevant agreement as detailed below was approximately RMB15.7
million.
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On November 29, 2024, MINISO Development Hong Kong
Limited entered into a termination agreement (the “Termination
Agreement”) with MINISO Nigeria in relation to, among others,
the early termination of the Revised IP Licensing, Sales and
Distribution Framework Agreement with immediate effect. Upon
such termination, all rights and obligations of the parties to the
Revised IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement
shall cease and no party shall have any claim against each other in
connection with the Revised IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution
Framework Agreement. Further details of the early termination
of the Revised IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework
Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
November 29, 2024.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been entered
into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

Confirmations from the Auditor

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised),
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has
expressed unqualified conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect
to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions entered into in
the Reporting Period:

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;
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(i)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual caps as set by the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, less than 30% of our total revenue
was generated from our five largest customers combined and less
than 30% of our total purchases was made from the five largest
suppliers combined.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the best of the Directors’ knowledge owns
more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in
any of our five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting
Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of our
Company’s securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Company’s properties are
held for development and/or sale or for investment purposes.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for the
Reporting Period are set out in Notes 22 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements and “Other information — Purchase, sale or
redemption of the Company’s listed securities” in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as of the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed percentage of
public float under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations
of RMB6.4 million.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

Our Group did not issue any debentures during the Reporting
Period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “2020 Share Incentive
Plan” in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.

For further information in relation to the issuance of equity linked
securities by the Company in January 2025, please refer to the
section headed “Recent Developments After The Reporting Period”
in this annual report and the announcements of the Company dated
January 7, 2025 and January 14, 2025.

DIVIDEND

On March 12, 2024, the Board approved the distribution of a special
cash dividend in the amount of US$0.2900 per ADS or US$0.0725
per Share, which has been paid on April 9, 2024 for holders of
Shares and April 12, 2024 for holders of ADSs. The aggregate
amount of cash dividend paid was approximately US$90.6 million.
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On August 30, 2024, the Board approved the distribution of an
interim cash dividend in the amount of US$0.2744 per ADS or
US$0.0686 per Share, which has been paid on September 23, 2024
for holders of Shares in Hong Kong and September 27, 2024 for
holders of ADSs and Shares of record as of the close of business
on September 13, 2024, New York Time and Beijing/Hong Kong
Time, respectively. The aggregate amount of cash dividend paid
was approximately US$85.2 million.

On March 21, 2025, the Board approved the distribution of a final
cash dividend in the amount of US$0.3268 per ADS or US$0.0817
per Share, to holders of ADSs and Shares of record as of the close
of business on April 8, 2025, New York Time and Beijing/Hong
Kong Time, respectively. The ex-dividend date for holders of Shares
in Hong Kong was April 7, 2025; and the ex-dividend date for
holders of ADSs was April 8, 2025. The payment date was April 17,
2025 for holders of Shares and around April 23, 2025 for holders of
ADSs. The aggregate amount of cash dividend has been paid was
approximately US$101.4 million (RMB740.4 million at an exchange
rate of RMB7.2993 to US$1.0000), which was approximately 50%
of the Company’s adjusted net profit for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 and was distributed from additional paid-in
capital and settled by a cash distribution.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 163 of the Articles of Association and subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless against all actions, proceedings,
costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or liabilities which they
or any of them incurred or sustained, other than by reason of such
Director’s own dishonesty, wilful default or fraud, in or about the
conduct of our Company’s business or affairs (including as a result
of any mistake of judgment) or in the execution or discharge of his
duties, powers, authorities or discretions. A permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance)
for the benefit of the Directors has been in force for the Reporting
Period.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 102 to
103 and in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had distributable reserve
of RMB10,106.7 million.
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LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of December 31, 2024, the loans and borrowings of the Group
was RMB571.3 million.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Our executive Director entered into a service agreement with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for
an initial term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third
annual general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date,
whichever is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required
under the Articles of Association). The term of appointment shall
also be automatically renewed for successive periods of three
years. Either party may terminate the agreement by giving not less
than 30 days’ written notice.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for an initial term
of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). The term of appointment shall also be automatically
renewed for successive periods of three years. Either party may
terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’ written
notice, or such shorter period as the parties may agree upon.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to have
a service agreement with any member of our Group other than
agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established the Compensation Committee to formulate
remuneration policies.

The remuneration is determined and recommended based on
each Director’s and senior management personnel’s qualification,
position and seniority. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board upon
recommendation from the Compensation Committee.

The Directors and the senior management personnel are eligible
participants of 2020 Share Incentive Plan, details of which are set
out in this annual report and Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Notes 27, 31 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
and there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
or contract of significance for the provision of services has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by KPMG. There was no change in our Company’s
independent external auditors during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holdings companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate; and none of the Directors, or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or
had exercised any such right.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of our Controlling Shareholders and Directors confirms that
during the Reporting period, he or she did not have any interest in a
business which materially competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with our business, and requires disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Mr. YE Guofu
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong
April 24, 2025
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. YE Guofu (¥ E), aged 47, has served as a director since
January 2020 and was re-designated as an executive Director with
effect from the Listing Date. Mr. Ye is our founder and has served
as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Company since February 2020. Mr. Ye is responsible for the overall
strategy, business development and management of our Group.

Mr. Ye founded MINISO Corporation, the predecessor of our
Group, in August 2009 and has since then served as the chief
executive officer of MINISO Corporation until August 2018. After
MINISO Guangzhou, our PRC holding entity before we established
our offshore holding structure, was established in October 2017,
Mr. Ye has since then been serving as a director and the general
manager of MINISO Guangzhou. Mr. Ye accumulated immense
mastery in trendy fashion during the period of Chinese economic
transformation and seized the opportunity to improve the social
quality consumption patterns, bringing a new business model in
China.

Mr. Ye has also served as a director of Yonghui Superstores Co.,
Ltd* (SSE: 601933) since March 2025.

Mr. Ye received his junior college diploma in economic
management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in
China in July 2001.

*

For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. XU Lili (k% %£), aged 43, has served as our independent
director since October 2020 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Ms. Xu has served as an independent director of Yalla Group
Limited (NYSE: YALA), a social networking and entertainment
platform company listed on the NYSE, since February 2021. In
addition, Ms. Xu has served as the chief financial officer of ClouDr
Group Limited (HKEX: 9955), a chronic condition management
solution provider in China, since October 2020. Prior to that, Ms.
Xu served as the chief financial officer of Tongdao Liepin Group
(HKEX: 6100), a company engaging in the provision of a variety
of talent acquisition services to individual, businesses and head
hunters listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from March 2014
to September 2020 and an executive director from March 2018
to September 2020. Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions
at General Electric Company (NYSE: GE), a high-tech industrial
company listed on the NYSE, including as the chief financial officer
of GE Power Generation Services China, from January 2005 to
March 2014.

Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business
from Nanjing University in China in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London
School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom
in November 2004. Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the
Board of Accountancy of Washington State of the United States
since June 2012.
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EENRSREERE

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (K # %), aged 44, has served as our
independent director since October 2020 and was re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Mr. Zhu has been the founding partner of Long-Z (formerly Meituan
DragonBall Capital), a venture capital fund, since January 2017 in
charge of the overall investment of Long-Z and a vice president of
Meituan (HKEX: 3690) (formerly Meituan Dianping). Mr. Zhu served
as an executive director of the department of investment in modern
agriculture and food at Legend Holdings Corporation (HKEX: 3396),
a leading industrial investment and operations company in China
listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from November 2014 to
December 2016. Mr. Zhu worked at Tiantu Capital, an investment
management company, from July 2007 to October 2014 including
as a partner from December 2013 to October 2014.

Mr. Zhu received a master’s degree in finance from Newcastle
University in the United Kingdom in December 2005.

Mr. WANG Yongping (£7K¥F), aged 56, has served as our
independent director since November 2021 and was re-designated
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from the
Listing Date. Mr. Wang has served as the president of China
Commercial Real Estate Association since August 2016 and as a
vice chairman of the Commerce Economy Association of China
since April 2018. Mr. Wang has also served as an independent
director of Easyhome New Retail Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE: 0785),
a China-based company engaging in investment, development,
merchandize distributorship, marketing and service of the home
building material industry and listed on the SZSE, since December
2019, and an independent non-executive director of SCE Intelligent
Commercial Management Holdings Limited (HKEX: 0606), a China-
based investment holding company that mainly provides integrated
property management services listed on the Main Board of the
HKEX, since June 2021, and an independent director of Winner
Technology Co., Ltd. (SZSE: 300609) (“Winner Technology”), a
China-based company principally engaged in offline consumer
behavior data analysis, and listed on the SZSE, since May 2023,
and a director of Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd* (SSE: 601933)
since March 2025. From April 2017 to May 2020, he served as an
independent director of Winner Technology.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang was an independent director of Shanghai Youyouto
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Youyouto”), a
limited liability company established in the PRC principally engaged
in the operation of children’s indoor amusement park, from March
2016 to March 2019, where he was primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on its operations and management.
Shanghai Youyouto was declared bankrupt on December 22, 2020
and is currently in the process of liquidation. Mr. Wang confirmed
that he was not involved in the management and operation of
the business of Shanghai Youyouto. During his directorship with
Shanghai Youyouto, Mr. Wang attended the meetings of Shanghai
Youyouto as its independent director whenever notified and had
reviewed meeting proposals and resolutions provided to him in
relation to the composition of the board of directors, appointment
of new directors and amendment of Shanghai Youyouto’s articles
of association. Mr. Wang confirmed that he had not breached his
fiduciary duties and duties of due diligence during his directorship
with Shanghai Youyouto. Mr. Wang further confirmed that to the
best of his knowledge and belief, as of the Latest Practicable Date,
no claims had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the liquidation of
Shanghai Youyouto.

Before joining our Group, Mr. Wang held various senior
management positions in several national commercial real estate
institutions. Mr. Wang served as a director at Beijing Sperry Real
Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. from March 2014 to February 2020. He
also served as an executive general manager mainly responsible for
its daily management at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Real Estate
Consulting Co., Ltd. from April 2011 to December 2020. Mr. Wang
served as an executive vice secretary-general, vice chairman and
secretary-general at China Federation of Urban Commercial Outlets
Construction Administration from November 2003 to July 2010. He
served as a director at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Commercial
Investment Co., Ltd. from September 2011 to July 2017. Mr. Wang
also served as an executive editor-in-chief and editor-in-chief at
Journal of Commercial Economics from May 2002 to September
2018 and as a reporter and a chief reporter, mainly responsible for
business news gathering and editing at China Business Herald from
September 1990 to April 2002.

Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in economics from
Hangzhou College of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang
Gongshang University) in China in July 1990.
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EENRSREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management team comprises Mr. YE Guofu, an
executive Director, Ms. YANG Yunyun and Mr. ZHANG Jingjing.

Mr. YE Guofu (¥ &) See “~ Executive Director” for the biography
of Mr. YE Guofu.

Ms. YANG Yunyun ($EE), aged 48, has served as a vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Ms. Yang is
responsible for the risk management and internal controls of our
operations.

Ms. Yang has been serving as a director of MINISO Corporation
since August 2009 and served as an executive vice president of the
risk management center of MINISO Corporation from September
2009 to August 2018. After MINISO Guangzhou was established,
Ms. Yang has served as an executive vice president of MINISO
Guangzhou in charge of risk management since August 2018 and
served as a director of MINISO Guangzhou from December 2018 to
March 2020.

Ms. Yang completed a specialist online course on mental health
education at Beijing Normal University in July 2020.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (JR¥5 %), aged 38, has served as the chief
financial officer and vice president of our Company since January
2028. Prior to his promotion as the chief financial officer, Mr. Zhang
served as the vice president of capital markets of our Company
from September 2022, in charge of our Company’s capital markets
matters, including investor relations, strategic investment and
acquisitions, as well as corporate strategy and treasury. Mr. Zhang
joined us in January 2021 as the director of capital markets. Mr.
Zhang has 13 years of experience in capital markets. He started
his career in auditing at PricewaterhouseCoopers, after which
he served in various roles mainly in capital markets in the U.S.,
Hong Kong and China A share markets, including Qutoutiao Inc.
(NASDAQ: QTT) and Weibo Corp. (NASDAQ: WB). Mr. Zhang
has served as a director of Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd* (SSE:
601933) since March 2025. Mr. Zhang received his dual bachelor
degrees in World History and Business Administration from Nankai
University in June 2011 and is currently an FMBA candidate of the
executive program at China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Zhang is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

*

For identification purpose only
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Our joint company secretaries are Mr. ZHANG Jingjing and Ms.
WONG Hoi Ting.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (5R¥ ) See “Senior Management” for the
biography of Mr. ZHANG Jingjing.

Ms. WONG Hoi Ting (Z8l1F) has been appointed as a joint
company secretary with effect from the Listing Date. Ms. Wong
is a manager of the listing services department of TMF Hong
Kong Limited, responsible for providing corporate secretarial and
compliance services to listed companies. She has over ten years
of experience in the corporate secretarial field. Ms. Wong is an
associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.
Ms. Wong holds a bachelor of social sciences from Lingnan
University in Hong Kong in October 2009 and a master of science
in professional accounting and corporate governance from City
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 2014.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no changes in
information of Directors of the Company that are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

We have received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and our Board considers each of them
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to upholding and implementing the highest
standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out under Part 2 of
the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period. The
Group will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the

Directors during the Reporting Period and will review the coverage
of the insurance annually.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised one
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Director
Mr. YE Guofu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHU Yonghua

Mr. WANG Yongping

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 50 to 55 in
this annual report.

The Board has met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
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TEERRE

As regards the code provision under the Corporate Governance
Code requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to
provide all Directors with updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries of the Company update and provide
the Directors with written training materials in relation to their roles,
functions and duties from time to time.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the Reporting Period is set
out below:

Name of Director

EENS

Mr. YE Guofu
ERELE

Ms. XU Lili
REE

Mr. ZHU Yonghua
REEESRAE

Mr. WANG Yongping
EXRFERE
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Nature of trainings attended
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Notes:

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or
briefings

B: making speeches at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

C: participating in training provided by law firms and that relating to the
business of the Company

D: reading materials on various topics, including corporate governance
matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, Listing Rules and other
relevant laws

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
recommends, but does not require, that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company deviates from this code provision as we do not
have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Ye
currently performs these two roles of the Company. Mr. Ye is our
founder and has extensive experience in our business operations
and management. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairperson and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for our Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
this structure will enable our Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of our Company if and when it is
appropriate taking into account the circumstances of the Group as
a whole.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The executive Director entered into a service agreement with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial
term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual
general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever
is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required under the
Articles of Association). The term of appointment shall also be
automatically renewed for successive periods of three years. Either
party may terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’
written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial term of
three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). The term of appointment shall also be automatically
renewed for successive periods of three years. Either party may
terminate the agreement by giving not less than 30 days’ written
notice, or such shorter period as the parties may agree upon.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to have
a service agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Articles of Association provide that the Company may by
ordinary resolution appoint any person to be a Director or remove
any Director (including a managing Director or other executive
Director) before the expiration of his or her term of office. In
addition, the Board may, by the affirmative vote of a simple
majority of the remaining Directors present and voting at a Board
meeting, appoint any person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. An appointment of
a Director may be on terms that the Director shall automatically
retire from office (unless he or she has sooner vacated office) at the
next or a subsequent annual general meeting or upon any specified
event or after any specified period in a written agreement between
the Company and the Director, if any; but no such term shall be
implied in the absence of express provision. Each Director whose
term of office expired shall be eligible for re-election at a meeting of
the Shareholders or re-appointment by the Board.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, and for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
of Directors and succession plans for the Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda
and accompanying meeting papers are provided to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the Board
meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend
a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings and an annual
general meeting were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance in
Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and general meeting
are set out below:

RIBEH - BT THRBEFSSHNL —RARRBF
RE EFLFESTZER BEFZReTILR

RAEWFFEHIIWMT -

Number of meeting(s) attended/Number of meeting(s) held

Audit Compensation

HESBRE BITERRHY

Nominating

and Corporate

Governance
Committee Annual
Committee Committee meeting general
Board meetings meeting REREE meeting
Name of Director meetings BT EES FMEES EREES BR=R
EEpnA Exeel 22 23 23 BERE
Mr. YE Guofu B = %4 4/4 N/A 5@ 1/1 11 11
Ms. XU Lili $%R% %87+ 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. ZHU Yonghua 2k #5504 4/4 4/4 1/1 11 11
Mr. WANG Yongping T K5t 4/4 4/4 1/1 11 11

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
also holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors each year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Management Trading of Securities
Policy (the “Code”), with terms no less exacting than the Model
Code, as its own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors and relevant employees of securities in the Company and
other matters covered by the Code.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Code
during the Reporting Period.

BREMEFTSSHR  EFSIENEGFELER
MEFHENBR TEREFRTESRTEE

HERZNRETA
AAFRERNEREBHRHBE ([FH)) (i
ATBREETA (RO 4 %X%W#W A
REE S AR A A A R AR S K
FRIIOEMER -

RAZRER(FHARS
EH—FETTA -

SR - SEFHEREN R

62 MINISO e Annual Report 2024



RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION BY
THE BOARD

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The Board
regularly reviews the functions and responsibilities delegated. The
senior management needs to obtain approval from the Board prior
to entering into of any significant transactions.

The Board reserves the right to make decisions on all substantial
affairs of the Company, including: to approve and oversee all policy
and matters, overall strategy and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other major financial and operational issues.

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views
and inputs are available to the Board. The Directors may, at the
Company’s expense, seek independent professional advice, views
and input as considered necessary to fulfill their responsibilities
and in exercising independent judgement when making decisions
in performing their duties according to such policy. The Board will
review the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism
on an annual basis. The Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board independence mechanism for the
Reporting Period and considered it to be effective.

The Directors are also encouraged to independently consult with
the senior management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board confirmed that corporate governance is a collective
responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in complying with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, and to make recommendations and
report related issues to the Board;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

()  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s reporting policies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG
Yongping. Ms. XU Lili, being the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee, is appropriately qualified as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

(@)

(b)

©

to monitor the integrity of our financial statements and our
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they
relate to our financial statements and accounting matters;

to review the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting; and

to review all related party transactions for potential conflict of
interest situations and approve all such transactions.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the HKEX and the Company.

The Audit Committee convened four meetings during the Reporting
Period to:

review the financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the six months ended December 31, 2023,
and the audit report prepared by the external auditor;

review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended June 30, 2024;

review the quarterly results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and
September 30, 2024, respectively;

review the financial reporting systems, internal control, and
risk management systems and procedures; and

discuss matters with respect to the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company with senior management
of the Company.
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Compensation Committee

The Company has established the Compensation Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Compensation Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr.
WANG Yongping and an executive Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr.
ZHU Yonghua is the chairman of the Compensation Committee.

The primary duties of the Compensation Committee are:

(@) to review and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to Directors’ compensation;

(b) to evaluate the performance of our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer and review and make recommendations
to the Board regarding the terms of their compensation; and

() to review and approve the compensation of our other
executive officers and senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Compensation Committee are
available on the websites of HKEX and the Company.

The Compensation Committee convened one meeting during the
Reporting Period to:

o review the remuneration policy and package for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and make

recommendation to the Board;

° assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company; and

° review and approve matters relating to the share incentive
plan adopted by the Company, including the grant of RSUs.
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Remuneration of Senior Management

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration by band of members of
the senior management of the Company (whose biographies are set
out on page 54 of this annual report) is set out below:

Remuneration band
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REEH - NAFSREREKE (RBRESHNAF
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Number of senior management

FrEEaE EREEE AR
Nil to HK$4,000,000 Z %4,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$4,000,000 to HK$7,000,000 4,000,000 T2 7,000,000/ 7T 1
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee BENMEEREES
The Company has established the Nominating and Corporate NAFEERCETHRAY & AE R EERST

Governance Committee in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili,
Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG Yongping and an executive
Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr. WANG Yongping is the chairman of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

The primary duties of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee are:

(@ in respect of its nomination functions, to develop and
recommend to the Board criteria for Board and committee
membership, recommend to the Board the persons to be
nominated for election as Directors and to each of the Board
Committees, and develop and recommend to the Board a set
of corporate governance guidelines; and

(b) inrespect of its corporate governance functions, to ensure that
our Company develops, reviews and assesses periodically,
and at least annually, the adequacy of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and to ensure our
Company’s compliance with the requirements of the NYSE
and the HKEX and make recommendation to the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the websites of HKEX and
the Company.
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The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee convened
one meeting during the Reporting Period to:

° review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° review the board diversity policy of the Company;

° consider the re-appointment of the retired Directors and
discuss matters relating to procedure of nomination of
Director candidate by Directors’ evaluation and succession
plan;

° review and implement the Company’s policy and practices on
corporate governance; and

° review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and the relevant disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination Policy

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve diversity of the Board, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. The Board reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level,
including gender diversity, as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage and enhancing its ability to
attract, retain and motivate employees from the widest possible
pool of available talent. In particular, the Company currently
has one female Director, alongside three male Directors and
will continue to work towards enhancing the gender diversity of
the Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in reviewing
and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, and industry and regional experience.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee will discuss periodically and
when necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company had a total of
four Directors, including one female Director. In terms of gender
diversity of the Board, the Company targets to maintain at least
the current level of female representation in its Board and will
continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members of the Board over time as and when suitable candidates
are identified. There is a diverse mix of educational background
and professional experience among the Board members. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and considers that appropriate balance
has been stricken among the Board members in terms of skills,
experience and perspectives.

The Company values gender diversity and will continue to take
steps to promote gender diversity at all levels, in particular the
Board and senior management levels. In addition, the Company
is committed to providing career development for its staff with an
aim to promote them to senior management. The Company will
also take into account gender diversity in staff recruitment at mid to
senior levels so as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board.

The gender ratios in the Company’s workforce as at December 31,
2024 are as follows:

Female

g

Number

AR ERBNESL

Director =& 1
Overall employees” 2488 T " 1,782
- Senior management® — =4} &2 E@ 1
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Male

B
Number As % of total
A HEBNESL

As % of total

25.0% 3 75.0%
65.0% 960 35.0%
33.3% 2 66.7%

The Company considers the current gender ratio in the workforce
to be appropriate and will continue to ensure that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels are appropriately structured so that
a diverse range of candidates are considered and gender diversity
across the workforce is maintained.
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Notes:

1) Due to the protection of employee privacy (including gender) in some
overseas countries and regions, the number disclosed here only
includes the employees and senior management in mainland China.

(2)  Details of the senior management are set out in the section headed
“SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on page 54 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period to
truly and fairly reflect the situation of the Group and the results and
cash flows of the Group.

The senior management of the Company provides such explanation
and information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial statements of the Company,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR’S SCOPE OF WORK

The statement by the auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 92 to 97 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social and
governance risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees risk management
functions directly and also through the Audit Committee and the
senior management.
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The senior management is responsible for the overall
implementation of risk management and internal control plans
and policies determined by the Board and managing the risks in
connection with all of the Company’s business operations. The
senior management identifies, assesses and takes measures
against any significant risks that the Company is facing, and
reviews the risk assessment report on a regular basis and reports
to the Board on a regular basis.

The Board did not identify any significant unresolved areas of
concern during the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and monitoring and overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems through the internal audit department, and
reporting and making recommendations to the Board where
appropriate.

With effect from the Listing, the senior management has confirmed
and will confirm to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for each financial year.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings by the internal
audit department, will review the effectiveness of the Company’s
and its subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for
each financial year, and will consider whether such systems are
effective and adequate.

The annual review will also cover the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and
relevant resources. The Board, supported by the Audit Committee
and senior management, reviewed the management reports and
the internal audit reports. For the Reporting Period, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company effective and adequate (including the processes for
financial reporting and compliance with the relevant Listing Rules).

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In order to ensure the market and stakeholders
are timely and fully informed about the material developments in the
Company’s business, the Board has adopted the inside information
disclosure policy regarding the procedures of proper information
disclosure. As such, the inside information will not be passed on to
any external party.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICIES

The Company has adopted the Policy of Compliant and
Whistleblowing and the Policy of Compliance Accountability in
accordance with code provision D2.6 of the Corporate Governance
Code, as well as the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the
Code of Anti-Corruption, the Rule of Integrity Self-Discipline in
accordance with code provision D2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code. These policies outline the principles and guidelines that
the Company intends to apply to promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations and establish a whistleblowing
policy and system for employees and those who deal with the
Company to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity with the
related department of the Company, which will then report to the
Audit Committee about any material improprieties related to the
Company. These policies are reviewed from time to time to ensure
their relevance and appropriateness to the Group’s business,
corporate strategy and stakeholder expectations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration of the auditor for their audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting
Period is as follows:

Services rendered

RARE

BB e BB R R

ARBERBMATA(EEE AT TARXED2.6
RE CIRFRREIE) R(ARBMESE) ARGTE
(ERERSTAD FRGRXED2.7FN(ERT AR
BRESTRD - (REEMBBIED) RCRRBRIEEH
) o RFEBRBA T AR BEEARAMIEE);
B DMRENXRRBIOERER - EVERBRK
NEg BREREREARRBREEAIBERESRM
AR REREPIR L EDT - MaxabPIRER S RERT
ZEEREERARANERNERNETR - %%
BRIFERERN - BMREEARENER X
Bl R MR B TR BB E E 1 -

B BB BN &

ZEEN R S BRI AR AR E N E LIFRE R
Z BRI

Amount

=8

(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

Audit fees™ T E RO 15,000
Audit-related fees® BT AAE @ 5000
Tax fees® FHiIEE RO 600
Al other fees® PfrE E fth & ® 317
Total 5t 17,026
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Notes:

(1)  “Audit fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the Reporting
Period for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for the audit of our annual financial statements or services that
are normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements.

(2)  “Audit-related fees” represents the aggregate fees billed for each
of the fiscal years listed above for assurance and related services
by our principal accounting firm that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are
not reported under audit fees in footnote (1) above.

(8) “Tax fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the Reporting
Period for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for tax compliance and tax advice.

(4)  “All other fees” represent the aggregate fees for services rendered by
our principal accounting firm other than services reported under “Audit
fees” and “Tax fees”.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (“Mr. Zhang”), our chief financial officer and
vice president, was appointed as our joint company secretary
with effect on the Listing Date. In order to uphold good corporate
governance and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also appointed
Ms. WONG Hoi Ting (“Ms. Wong”) of TMF Hong Kong Limited
(a company secretarial services provider), to act as another joint
company secretary and to provide assistance to Mr. Zhang for
performing his duties as a company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Wong’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Zhang.

During the Reporting Period, each of Mr. Zhang and Ms. Wong has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has discretion on whether to distribute dividends,
subject to certain requirements of Cayman Islands law. In addition,
our Shareholders may by ordinary resolution declare a dividend,
but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the
Board. In either case, all dividends are subject to certain restrictions
under Cayman Islands law, namely that our Company may only pay
dividends out of profits or share premium account, and provided
always that in no circumstances may a dividend be paid if this
would result in our Company being unable to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Even if we decide to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon our
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors that the Board may deem relevant.

We are a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. We
may rely on dividends from our subsidiaries in China and overseas
for our cash requirements, including any payment of dividends
to our Shareholders. PRC and other regulations may restrict the
ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. In particular, PRC
laws require that dividends be paid by PRC companies only out
of the profit for the year calculated according to PRC accounting
principles. PRC laws also require a PRC company to set aside
at least 10% of its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory
reserves, which are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, each of our PRC subsidiaries
may pay dividend from the after-tax profit after (i) it sets aside
as general reserves at least 10% of its after-tax profit until the
cumulative amount of its reserves reaches 50% of its registered
capital, and (ii) any losses of such PRC subsidiary from prior years
have been offset. Dividend distribution to our Shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by our Shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

If we pay any dividends on our Shares, with respect to holders
of the ADSs, our depositary, as the registered holder of Shares,
will pay such amounts to the ADS holders to the same extent as
holders of our Shares, in proportion to the Shares underlying the
ADSs held by such ADS holders, subject to the terms of the deposit
agreement, including the fees and expenses payable thereunder.

As the Company attaches great importance to provide reasonable
return to investors, the Board has approved and adopted the
Dividend Policy on July 27, 2023, which aims to provide foreseeable
returns to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy is effective from
July 27, 2023.
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Pursuant to the Dividend Policy of the Company, subject to
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the Articles
of Association, in principle, the Company is targeting an annual
dividend no less than 50% of its annual adjusted net profit, a non-
IFRS financial measure, which is defined as profit for the period
excluding equity settled share-based payment expenses.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividends and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time. There can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely and non-selective disclosure of corporate information which
enables Shareholders and investors to make properly informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend the annual general meetings to
answer the Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at https://ir.miniso.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has reviewed and
considered the implementation of the Shareholders’ communication
policy to be effective as the information of the Company has been
disseminated in a timely and effective manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the election of Directors.
Poll voting has been adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’
meetings. Details of poll voting procedures are included in the
circular dispatched to Shareholders. The circular also includes
relevant details of proposed resolutions and/or biographies of the
Directors standing for election. The results of the voting are posted
on the websites of the Company and HKEX in a timely manner after
each general meeting of the Shareholders.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to Articles of Association.
Extraordinary general meetings of the Company may be convened
on the written requisition of any one or more members holding,
as at the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate Shares
representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carry the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company. The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not
within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting
to be held within a further twenty-one (21) calendar days, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the right to vote
at general meetings, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three calendar months after the expiration of the said twenty-one
(21) calendar days.

As regards proposing a person to stand for election as a Director,
relevant procedures are available on the Company’s website.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following for the attention of the joint company
secretaries:

Address: 8/F, M Plaza, No. 109, Pazhou Avenue, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou 510000, Guangdong Province, China
Email: ir@miniso.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The information of the Shareholders may be disclosed as
required by law.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the Amended and Restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company on July 11, 2022, which
took effect from the Listing Date. During the Reporting Period, there
was no change in the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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Other Information

Hh & ¥

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the HKEX pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the HKEX
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interest in the Shares

EERBSITRAERAQAREEM
MESEER R - ARG R ERERET
MRS XA

R2024F 128318 EERARNRESITHAS
AR B S EREEE (F& R (GEH LAFE &)
EXVIB) R - B G RERETREEA@R
$F<< EARHIEEM]) EXVEET R ESH MimmMA
RAMEBRATHER AR (BIERIE(BEF LSS
W01 B B SCEH E F SR A A i &ok
2) % )pafﬂAzﬁ/ATm‘%; HREAEEM) 3
35211%?%9’125.5%%5’1% HRE  (c)RIEIZAE
SFREBAAA T&Hﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁiﬁ&/ BEINAT

RIR G K
Number of
Shares underlying
outstanding options/
restricted shares/
restricted share
units granted

RTEBBRE

Approximate
% of shareholding

Numberof EREZRHEKH,  in our Company
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares ZRHRMENH RAARA B
S/ e BAEE HERHEE BB DY
Mr. Ye Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061@ (L) - 63.2%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/ 14,000,000¥ (S) 1.1%
interest of spouse
BE4 SEEREL BB EERIABEEEAS
Mﬁ%m
Ms. XU Lili Beneficial interest - 20,0009 (L) 0.002%
"RBLL EnEn
Mr. ZHU Yonghua  Beneficial interest - 42,5289 (L) 0.003%
REELE EaEn
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Notes:

Q)

@

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,249,871,833 Shares
in issue as at December 31, 2024. The letter “L” stands for long
position and the letter “S” stands for short position.

Represents (i) 328,290,482 Shares held by Mini Investment Limited;
(i) 203,401,382 Shares held by YGF MC Limited; and (i) 257,849,197
Shares held by YYY MC Limited. The short position represents Mr.
Ye, through an entity controlled under YGF Trust, has delivered a total
of 14,000,000 shares under credit support arrangement with a return
obligation. For further details of Mr. Ye’s interest in our Company,
please see the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” on the next
page.

Represents Ms. Xu’s entitlement to receive up to 20,000 Shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted to her under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan.

Represents Mr. Zhu’s entitlement to receive up to 29,476 Shares
pursuant to the vesting of RSUs granted to him under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan and his beneficial interest in 13,052 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO; (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKEX.
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Other Information

Hh & ¥

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRRROREBRD FHERR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND 3
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2024, the following persons (other than the 202412 A31H - THIAT (e RARFmEF
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests BERNEERARNTZSTBABRIN R &HE
have been disclosed in this annual report), had an interest or short DA HEEBIB(ES RIEEN) EXVBE2RE
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be 3D BRI B B 22 B 3% 52 ok AR 8 A AR 2 BRI
disclosed to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 2 (BHRHEED) £336 K BT ENEZMMER
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required PRE

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate

% of
shareholding
in our
Number of Company!
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares RAATRERN
B RENE RGEE AR DLW
YYY MC Limited® Beneficial interest 257,849,197(L) 20.6%
Rl Lo
YYY Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 257,849,197(L) 20.6%
R AR R
YGF MC Limited® Beneficial interest 203,401,382(L) 16.3%
Rl o
Mini Investment Limited® Beneficial interest 328,290,482(L) 26.3%
14,000,000(S) 1.1%
Rl Lo
YGF Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 328,290,482(L) 26.3%
14,000,000(S) 1.1%
R AR R
Mr. YePRH®) Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061(L) 63.2%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/interest 14,000,000(S) 1.1%
of spouse
B4 e00e ZrEEER TIBETRIAEEEEAS
[T £
Ms. Yang®®®e Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061(L) 63.2%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/interest 14,000,000(S) 1.1%
of spouse
15 2 T @B0E ZrEEER TIBETRIAEEEEAS
[T £
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Notes:

Q)

@

3)

@)

®)

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,249,871,833 Shares
in issue as at December 31, 2024. The letter “L” stands for long
position and the letter “S” stands for short position.

YYY MC Limited is wholly-owned by YYY Development Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of BVI. All
shares of YYY Development Limited are held by TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. on behalf of YYY Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee,
and Ms. Yang and her family members as beneficiaries. Ms. Yang
is both the settlor and protector of YYY Trust and is deemed to be
the controlling person of the YYY Trust. Under the SFO, Ms. Yang is
deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company held by
YYY MC Limited.

YGF MC Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ye.

Mini Investment Limited is wholly-owned by YGF Development
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of BVI. All shares of YGF Development Limited are held by TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. on behalf of YGF Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the
trustee, and Mr. Ye and his family members as beneficiaries. Mr. Ye
is both the settlor and the protector of YGF Trust and is deemed to
be the controlling person of the YGF Trust. Under the SFO, Mr. Ye is
deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company held by
Mini Investment Limited.

Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang are spouses, and are therefore deemed to be
interested in the equity interests held by each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or any of its Associated Corporations” had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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2020 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was first adopted by the Board
in September 2020 and was further amended in June 2022, the
amendments of which took effect upon the Listing. Since the
Listing, the 2020 Share Incentive Plan was subject to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. The Company relies on the transitional
arrangements provided for under the new Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which became effective on January 1, 2023.

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended,
are as described below.

Purpose

The purposes of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan are to attract
and retain qualified personnel, provide incentives to employees,
consultants and directors of our Group, and promote the success
of our business.

Eligible Participants

Eligible participants include employees, consultants, and directors
of our Group (the “Participants”). The plan administrator may,
from time to time, select from among all Participants to whom
awards in the form of share options (the “Options”), a right to
purchase restricted Shares (the “Restricted Shares”) or a right to
purchase RSUs (collectively, the “Awards”), will be granted and will
determine the nature and amount of each option.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum aggregate number of Shares that may be issued is
147,301,128 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate”) of which only up to
71,485,122 Shares may be issued pursuant to Awards granted in
the form of Options.

As of January 1, 2024, Awards representing 7,071,028 Shares were
available for grant under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. During
the Reporting Period, RSUs representing a total of 21,597,470
underlying Shares were granted to eligible Participants pursuant to
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2024, Awards
representing 4,812,885 Shares were available for grant under the
2020 Share Incentive Plan.
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As of January 1, 2024, 48,527,444 new Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme Mandate. During the Reporting Period,
no new Shares were issued pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan. As of December 31, 2024 and the Latest Practicable Date,
29,013,916 new Shares (representing approximately 2.3% of the
weighted average number of Shares of the Company as of the
Latest Practicable Date) were available for issue under the Scheme
Mandate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all Options that may be granted in aggregate does not exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue and is subject to an annual
limit of 3% of the total number of Shares in issue in any financial
year.

Remaining life and option period

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan commenced in September 2020 and
shall continue in effect for a term of ten years with a remaining life
of approximately five years, unless sooner terminated under the
terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan.

The plan administrator shall determine the time or times at which
an option may be exercised in whole or in part, including exercise
prior to vesting; provided that the term of any option granted under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan shall not exceed ten years. The plan
administrator shall also determine any conditions, if any, that must
be satisfied before all or part of an option may be exercised. There
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Vesting period

In general, the plan administrator determines the vesting schedule,
which is specified in the relevant award agreement.

Limit for each Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
Options granted and to be granted under the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan and any other plan of our Company to an eligible Participant
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
issued and outstanding at the date of any grant.
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Consideration and exercise price

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan does not
specify the amount payable on application or acceptance of the
Awards and the period within which payments or calls must or
may be made. The plan administrator determines the terms and
conditions of any award granted pursuant to the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan, including, but not limited to, the exercise price,
grant price, or purchase price. The plan administrator determines
the exercise price for each award, which is stated in the relevant
award agreement shall not be lower than the fair market value of
the Shares on the date of grant, which shall be the higher of: (i) the
closing sales price for such Shares or securities as quoted on the
principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed (as determined by the Board or the
committee delegated with the authority to administer the plan) on
the date of grant, and (ii) average closing sales price as quoted on
the principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Outstanding Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs granted

As of December 31, 2024, the number of underlying Shares
pursuant to the outstanding Options granted amounted to 3,907,464
Shares, representing approximately 0.3% of the issued Shares. The
outstanding Options are held by 136 grantees. Up to a maximum of
71,485,122 Shares may be further issued upon the exercise of the
Options to be granted under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. Of the
3,907,464 Options, 2,585,464 have vested and 1,322,000 remained
unvested as of December 31, 2024. All the Options under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan were granted between January 16, 2020 and
October 15, 2021 (both days inclusive), before the Listing Date.
The exercise price of the Options granted under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan is US$0.00 per Share or US$0.036 per Share.

Save for the Awards which were lapsed during the Reporting Period

as disclosed below, there was no Award which was cancelled
during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has not granted further Options under the 2020  ZANA R L B Hi18 B ERIE2020F (%15 2B =1 &
Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date. Details of the BT EMERE - RBREH - RIE2020F f 70 UE
movements of the Options granted under the 2020 Share Incentive  ZTEIIR FHERAEL S FBNOT -

Plan during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Weighted

average

closing price

of Shares

immediately

Number of Numberof  before the

Options Numberof Number of Number of Options date of

outstanding ~ Options  Options  options outstanding exercise

asof  granted lapsed  exercised asof  during the

January1, duringthe duringthe duringthe December31,  Reporting

2024 Reporting Reporting  Reporting 2024 Period
BENME  Perod  Period  Perod HENUE RHNEEE
Exercise 1818 REER  REEE  REER  128MA  BRAE
Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price BOEMY REM BAMM  BEEN  ROEN AMANNE
RRARZSER RFEH BEA 1A %8 BREZE BREYR BREHE EBREHE RREMA VOUOE
Director
gz
Xu Ll October 15, 2020 50% of the number of Shares shall ~ Maximum exercisable term ~ US$0.00 20,000 - - - 20,000 N/A
become fully vested upon grant is ten years from the date ~ per Share
and 50% of the number of Shares ~ of grant
shall become fully vested after 1
year of the date of grant
2% 0100158 BOBENS%ERETETLEE ERFEHETHNERAT  EBRO00ET TR
REREEM%ENETRE-  FERATE
Fhar5E
Other grantees (in aggregate) January 16,2020 and 5 years Maximum exercisable term  US$0.036 5,149,104 - 221200 1,040,440 3,887,464 US$5.30
September 27, 2020 isten years fromthe date ~ per Share
of grant
EfARA(BH) 22051 A1682020 55 BRTEMEHIERAT  BR006ET 530ET
E9AR FERATE
Total 5,169,104 - 221200 1,040440 3,907,464
ait

The Company has not granted further Restricted Shares under the RARR BT B HAR B EARIE 2020 F ik {7 BB 51 &
2020 Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date. As of December ETRAZREIRG - BE2024F12H31H - £
31, 2024, there were no Restricted Shares outstanding under the 2020 F JLHE M BhET 21T - WA TE SN X2 BR I A%
2020 Share Incentive Plan. (I
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Details of the movements of the RSUs granted under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan which will be satisfied by new Shares during
the Reporting Period are as follows:

REE -

i/r/«-
%Dy—v—

*ETEQOQOi%Tﬁ?%&EFJri‘J?T‘?E’Uﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ
Bt BBAL G PARTBR 42 75 =,

""""" ﬂ'RI'| ZZD_F :

Weighted
Number Number average
of RSUs Number Number Number of RSUs closing price
Closing outstanding  of RSUs of RSU  of RSUs outstanding of the Share
price  Fair value asof  granted lapsed vested asof immediately
ofShares  of RSUs  January1, duringthe duringthe duringthe  December before the
immediately at the date 2024 Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 31,2024 date of
beforethe  ofgrant EZE0UE Period Period Period EZ204F vesting
dateof grant  RRHRA 1A18 RESEE  WMEES REEE 12R%1A  RENEE
REREE RENM R BX¥M CHEN RTEM BEEHA
Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Purchaseprice  Performance target  ®F AAIN IRHRG IRARG ZRHRG IRIRG  SRHRG fimg
RRAR AR RFEH 5EA REE XEEE KinfE ENHE By EfHE ENHE  TOUmE
Five highest paid individuals ~ March 20, 2024 5 years with 10%, 10%, 15%, ~ US$0.00001 Conditional upon the US$5.17  US$5.48 - 1143540 - - 1143540 -
during the Reporting Period in 20% and 45% of Shares per Share fufillment of appraisal
aggregate vested on the the first to fifth targets during the
anniversary of the date of vesting period
grant, respectively
RESHRLEEEAT(A) 202453A208 5 10% 10% 15%  BROOIET  FEBEAZRAREN SN7ET  548%ET
0% R4l ERH A #
F-ZEREFARIGE
Other grantees (in aggregate) ~ March 20, 2024 5 years with 10%, 10%, 15%, ~ US$0.00001 Conditional upon the US$5.17 US$5.48 - 19727950 1,357,962 - 18,369,988 -
20% and 45% of Shares per Share fulfilment of appraisal
vested on the the first to fifth targets during the
anniversary of the date of vesting period
grant, respectively
AMERA(G3) NAEI[NE SEH 0% 10%15%  BROOONET FBEEAZREEEN SuET  S48%T
20% Ras% it BRI A %
£-EFREENNIGE
Total 20,871,490 1,357,962 - 19,513,528
ait
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Details of the movements of the RSUs granted under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan which will be satisfied by existing Shares

during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Name or category of grantee  Date of grant Vesting period

RRAR AR RFEH FEA

Director

iz

Zhu Yonghua October 20, 2023 22,472 Shares shall vest in
equal portions on October
20,2023, January 15, 2024,
April 15,2024 and July 15,
2024, respectively

AR 0035108208 22472 RS R 2003F

107208 - 20451515
A 2024%4 4158 22024
FTR15R5E
October 15,2024 39,300 Shares shall vest in
equal portions on October
15, 2024, January 15, 2025,
April 18,2025 and July 15,
2025, respectively
39,300 DRI 20245
10A158 202551 15
A - 202554 158 12025

204E10A158

E7R1585E
Five highest paid individuals ~ December 6, 2022 3-4 years
during the Reporting Period
in aggregate
REEHDABRRAL(BH) 0RE1A6E  34F

Purchase price
REE

US80.00 per Share

BR000%T

US$0.00 per Share

&1@

RO.Q0ET

US80.036 per Share

BIR0.0%6ET

Performance target

RERE

NA

TER

NA

AER

NA

TER

Closing

price
of Shares
immediately

before the

date of grant  ZRAIRA

RHREE

RF A%

K

US86.24

82437

US$4.58

4585

Us$2.79

21957
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Number

of RSUs

outstanding

Fair value asof
of RSUs

at the date

January 1,
2024
BRo0uE
1A18
RENM
ERHRG
EgA

of grant

Us$6.27 16,856

827

US§4.17 -

4TET

US$2.89 100,200

28957

Number
of RSUs
granted
during the
E]
Period
REEH
Rl
ZRHRG
Bfg

39,300

Number
of RSUs

Number
of RSU
lapsed vested

duringthe  during the

Reporting  Reporting

Period
REER
EERN

ZRHRS

Efi#R

Period
REEH
BRXH

ZRHRG
B8R

0 16,856

- 9,824

- 33,400

2024 EHE o EBRAIER

Number

SBHEDT

Weighted

average

of RSUs closing price

outstanding
as of
December
31,2024
HE0uE
128318
R
ZRHRS
EHE

20476

66,800

87

of the Share
immediately
before the
date of
vesting
RiREE
BRAMA
fimeE
HlkmE

Us$s.27

521X

US$4.58

458ET

Us$5.17
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Weighted

Number Number average

ofRSUs ~ Number ~ Number  Number of RSUs closing price

Closing outstanding  of RSUs of RSU  of RSUs outstanding of the Share

price  Fair value as of granted lapsed vested asof immediately

ofShares  of RSUs  January1, duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  before the

immediately at the date 2024  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 31,2024 date of
beforethe  ofgrant  BZ204% Period Period Period EZ204% vesting
date of grant - ERHRH 1818 RHEE REEE  RESE 12R%A  RORER
RONEE BRMRF BOEM Ref BXMN BBEN BGEAM BEANH

Name or category of grantee ~ Date of grant Vesting period Purchase price Performance target T AMAIN SRHRE SRHRG SRAURG ERHRG  ERARG il
REAREZER Bsilik BRA RER REEE G B%A By BRHE ERBA  ERHE  VHUGE
Other grantees (in aggregate)  December 6,202 3-4 years US$0.036 per Share  N/A USS2.79  US$2.89 285,400 - 73,600 86,000 125800  US$5.16
AfbARA (B3) 022512768 345 BIRO0BET il 2T9RT 289%T 516%T
December 6, 2022 3years US80.036 per Share /A USs2.79  US$2.89 113,600 - 28,000 20,000 65,600 US$5.01
NNERAGE 3F BR0.036%T TER QOET 289K S01ET
December 20,2022 3years US80.036 per Share ~ N/A USS265  US$278 7,600 - - 3,800 3800 USSs.84
202512A208 3 5HR0.036ET TR 265EFT  2TBET S84ET
March 20, 2023 3 years US50.036 per Share /A US$4.38  US$4.45 76,680 - - 25,560 51120 US$5.17
2003%3£208 3 5HR0.036%T TR ABET  445ET SATET
March 20, 2023 5 years US$0.036 per Share ~ Please refer to the US$4.38  US§4.45 5,084,800 - - 1016960 4,067,840 US$5.17
announcement
published by the
Company on March
21,2023 for details
2353A208 5% 500365 FEAHANA 438ET  445ET 573
202353218
s
June 21, 2023 3years US80.036 per Share /A US$4.02  US$3.99 169,920 - - 56,640 113,280 US$5.18
203567218 3 BR0.036%T TR 40RET 399%T 5.18%7
October 10,2023~ 3years US$0.036 per Share /A US$6.50  US$6.50 26,040 - - 8,680 17,360 US§4.53
X2BF10A108 3% BR0.036% T TR B50XT 650X 4535
December 20,2023 3 years US$0.036 per Share /A US§4.96  US$4.72 77,160 - 66,160 2200 8,800 US$5.84
2023512208 3 5HR0.036%T TR 49EFT  ATER 58T
March 20, 2024 3years US$0.036 per Share /A US$5.17  US$5.07 - 169,920 - - 169,920 N/A
WAFIFNE  3F BR006ET AER SITET S0TER AER
June 20, 2024 5 years US$0.036 per Share /A US$5.11 US$5.23 - 50,800 - - 50,800 N/A
NAFEFNE 55 BR006ET TER SMEL ST &R
September 20,2024 3 years US80.036 per Share /A US§417  USS4.12 - 84,840 31,800 - 53,040 N/A
2024595208 3 5R0.0365%T TR ATET AER TR
December 20,2024 3 years US$0.036 per Share /A US$5.83  US$5.84 - B110 - - 381,120 N/A
NUEANR 3F BR00BET il SHET  SBUET B li
Total 5,058,256 725,980 199,560  1,279920 5,204,756
ait

Further details of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan (including the 2020 F &t BB ET Bl A3 — B FE 1B (BB AR AR
accounting standard and policy adopted for assessing the fair value D ERENR QS EEMERMR T ER RBR) & ER
of the share awards) are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated BRI EREH 23

financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased a total of
5,997,000 Shares at an aggregate consideration (including all the
relevant expenses) of HK$186.5 million on the HKEX and a total of
1,415,586 ADSs (5,662,344 Shares) at an aggregate consideration
(including all the relevant expenses) of US$22.7 million on
the NYSE. As of March 21, 2025, all such Shares and ADSs
repurchased during the Reporting Period have been cancelled. The
total number of Shares and ADSs cancelled for the repurchases
made during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 represents
approximately 1% of the Company’s total share capital as of
December 31, 2024.

Particulars of the repurchases made by the Company during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 are as follows:

HKEX B§32 Fir

Price paid per Share
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BE HEIFEOAQTN LHES

PEREE] - AR B REE S FTIAREHE (B S FTa R
F) 186.5 B BE Lo T 515,997,000 k& 5
MRNER A BEE (REMEMRBMNY) 22788
EIUEEE T HEH1,415,586 % =B 1F LA (5,662,344
RERS (7 ) - B Z2025%43 A21H @ FIEERSHAC
BN H FIEBRF e B RE - 8{22024F 12 8
31 AR FEE R T EOR G RERFRE
HIE AN FIE E2024F12 A31 HAARRA#I1% -

AARAREE2024F12 A31 B IEMBERERH
EIEFBENT

Aggregate consideration

SRR A T HER paid (including all the

Highest price Lowest price relevant expenses)

(HKS) (HKS) (HiKs1000)

No. of Shares 2R%E

Trading Month repurchased BEeE BIEE (BEFEHEBREX)

X% A% E R 2 E (B) (&) (F#&x)

January 2024 1,055,200 33.45 31.00 34,357
202451 A

February 2024 175,000 34.00 33.70 5,939
2024F2 A

July 2024 2,300,800 35.10 32.05 78,625
202447 A

September 2024 2,466,000 31.75 22.90 67,558
20249 A
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NYSE 432 fit
No. of Shares

Price paid per Share

Aggregate consideration

as represented MR A T HER paid (including all the

by the ADSs Highest price Lowest price relevant expenses)

repurchased (US$) (US$) (US$°000)

E X 2 EHE

Trading Month FRERAR BaE BIEE (BEmAEHEENX)

X5 B H R 10 BB (E7m) E3) (F=x)

January 2024 1,018,400 5.00 4.28 4,845
202441 A

July 2024 701,740 4.14 3,118
202447 A

September 2024 3,741,404 3.21 13,945
20249 A

October 2024 200,800 3.75 771

202410 H

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities listed on the HKEX or on the NYSE (including sale of
treasury shares as defined under the Listing Rules) during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024. The Company did not hold any
treasury shares (as defined under the Listing Rules) as of December
31, 2024.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

On July 13, 2022, the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the
HKEX. The net proceeds from the Global Offering were HK$482.1
million. As of December 31, 2024, there has been no change in the
intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The
Company has fully utilized the residual amount of the net proceeds
in accordance with such intended purposes within 48 months from
the listing of its Shares on the HKEX as expected.

Br ECEREEEEE SN - REIE2024F12 431 8 1L
BREE  ARRRETANBAGMERE - HE
B 0] AR A BN BE A2 AT sk 4B R AT _E T AU AEfR] 38 55 (B
BRECETRAD FIEENEFR) - #2024
12A431 8 - ARRILEFEEMCEMRE) FE
EWEFR -

RRBEMEREAR

#2022%7 A13H - BDPEEZATER LT o 2Bk
BEFRSHIERE B482 1 AEBTT - B 22024%F
128318 @ Zpi R ARER KRB RATEHRIE
B | —HEENEREFER TR EY
&) o RATEIEMTEEN AR D ER R T L8 481E
AABREZERTERAERRESBEREFENS
B o
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% of

Unutilized

amount
as of

Amount December 31,

Amount

of net
proceeds
utilized
during the
fiscal year
ended
December 31,
2024
HZ20245F
12A31H1E

Other Information

Hb & ¥

Amount

of net
proceeds
unutilized

as of
December 31,
2024
HZ2024F

MBEE 12A318
2BAN AEAM
Fﬁ?%*k Fﬁ?%fﬁ’\
(HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(BE#ET) (BE#ET)

2023
EZE20235F

12A31H
RBASHE

of net
proceeds
FreR8
BHEEHE
(HK$ million)
(BAB#BT)

total net
proceeds
PSR
BEREEL

Purpose

itk

Store network expansion and upgrade

PIE B IER AR 25% 120.5 - - -
Supply chain improvement and product development
HERBNERRE 20% 96.4 - - -
Strengthen our technology capabilities
2R R PR R AiTRE 20% 96.4 20.6 20.6 -
Invest in brand promotion and incubation
RENMEHEERIEE 20% 96.4 - - -
Capital expenditures, which may include, among others,
acquisitions of, or investments in, businesses or assets
that complement our business
BARX - Ehr e Bl B NER LR ER
KEE 5% 24.2 - - -
Working capital and general corporate purposes
HEECM—RARIAR 10% 48.2 - - -
Total &5T 100% 482.1 20.6 20.6 -
MATERIAL LITIGATION B KR
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company was not PRAF IR EARDIN - RNRE RSP R A

AIERFRHME - RIEH - EFLTHBAEM
PR ANEERREE IR ERFRARE

involved in any material litigation or arbitration during the Reporting
Period. The Directors are also not aware of any material litigation or
claims that are pending or threatened against the Company during
the Reporting Period.

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL REPORT IR EFEERSE
The annual report and the consolidated financial statements of the R2025F4 4248 @ KEEGHAZ RREEHAE

EBEREH 2 FRERE MFEMFHHRE -

Group for the Reporting Period were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on April 24, 2025.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR HR S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
MINISO Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MINISO
Group Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 98 to 237, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

HEREREEERERAFTARRZ
B RS
(REEHEZMAE LRI EREFLA])

=R

R BTN FEISE237ENZAIE R EE
BERAR ([ERRDKEMBAR ([E£E M
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HRGAMERRE - BEZA LFEMNLGREER
X RABEkHEMEARER  SGEEZEEHE
Mz eRnEaERUARKEVBHRENT - BEE
SEBRME -

BRE  ZEREMIERREBREEERE SR
BEeRAhr(BEBRMEHREENSHEL) EEM
e T EEEPR2024512 A31 B4R A BT
BRRREEZALEFENGEMBRRERGEAE
eRE WEREBREB(AREN) HIRBEEREZ A
i -

ERRHOER

BAEREFEEHMASRMH(EEETERD
ETE - RPIEZFE TAENEECD EARR
S ZBE B R A M REAENEEIF P
TEE— S - RIBEESHMASHEMN(EES
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR HR S

BFREEITEE

RRETFEERERMNERAE - RREAH
HAEMBRRNBARAEENER - ZFHEHE
BABABRBGEMBEREA MDA R ETRE
B BT EHREREHEBNESR -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Assessment of impairment of long-term assets of self-operated stores

AMEEEENRBEERE

Refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 127 and 128.

BRI A R 11 RI12RE 127 R 128 EHIE B ©

The Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMETNAREZEE

The Group had property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets related to self-operated stores of

RMB475,771 thousand and RMB2,264,064 thousand

respectively, as of December 31, 2024.

B ZE2024512A31H - ESENEZEHBNYME - BE
BEUAREREEES IR ARKA475,771,000C R AR

#£2,264,064,0007T °

As discussed in Note 2(h)(ii), each individual self-operated
store is a separate cash-generating unit (“CGU”). For
self-operated stores where an indication of impairment is
identified, an impairment assessment will be performed by
comparing the carrying value of the self-operated stores
with their recoverable amounts being the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the carrying
value of the self-operated stores exceeds their recoverable
amounts, the Group writes down the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets which belong to the
self-operated stores to the estimated recoverable amounts.
MM 2(h) (i) T ataR - BEEEEEREBNREEEEM
(IReEAEM])  HERRETKNELENS @ E5E
RALREEENREERE KRB SE - BRAABERD
EXRAREREBE(ARSERKLE)ETRERN D - HE &
ERREEBREINE S  EEESKELEMENY
¥ BB LREAEAEEERRETAG T WEESHE

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter
included the following:

BB BB TRt FRNBHEF R

e We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the
Group’s impairment assessment process for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to
the self-operated stores. This included controls related
to the determination of the market rentals.

o FHMFAHEEEEHALPIERBME  BELRENA
R AEEENRENEIRFEBE T RGO
SRICAIFEETHN AR - EREEETTISHESHEH
B o

e For those self-operated stores with an impairment
indication, we involved valuation professionals with
specialized skills and knowledge, who assisted in
evaluating the reasonableness of the comparable
transactions used by the Group to estimate market
rentals for a selection of those self-operated stores,
by comparing the respective market rental with the
passing rent, location, floor level and property size.

o HNMPLABRBENRNBEZER  HMSIATERZE
EREMABNEEERAL  wfIBBEEES L
B BERDERE EMSHSLER  HHFEES
ERNEHBoEEEMTSHEHSN LR FINEIE
o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR HR S

Assessment of impairment of long-term assets of self-operated stores

FEEEENRMEERE

Refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 127 and 128.

BRI E RN 11RI12RE127 R 128 B IEE1H

The Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET A REZEE

We identified the assessment of impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to
certain self-operated stores as a key audit matter. Complex
auditor judgement was required in evaluating the market
rentals used by the Group in estimating the self-operated
stores’ fair value less costs of disposal. Specifically,
specialized skills and knowledge were needed to evaluate
the reasonableness of comparable transactions used by
the Group to estimate the market rentals.
HFSEETEEERENDE  BERREBEREREEE
mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ ETEESEANGE
BEEATFBEREREXARMERNTSESR  FE
BB RT HIET - BRRE - T EHEPIRO BT &R AT
EEEANEETISHENA LR SNSRI

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR HR S
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B AR HR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group to express as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

ERIRCEBE LR ETEANBRES - Hf1E
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

April 24, 2025

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR HR S
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Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss
meBEER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

(UARBT 2 - BREREIEN)

For the For the

six months ended year ended

December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

HZ2023F BZ20245%

12A31BLERER 12B31ALEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Revenue YA 5 7,632,467 16,994,025

Cost of sales $HERK A 6 (4,391,428) (9,356,965)

Gross profit 7 3,241,039 7,637,060

Other income E T A 18,993 21,595

Selling and distribution expenses $5& K 2 $#55% 6 (1,363,114) (3,519,534)

General and administrative expenses — & % 1T BB 2 6 (357,689) (931,651)

Other net income ELf;F A 7 21,105 114,696
(Credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables

BESREMENIE (FEFR) FEBERRE (2,080) 2,469

Impairment loss on non-current assets 3B & E R ERE (4,547) (8,846)

Operating profit 4 758 1,553,707 3,315,789

Finance income B HA 123,969 118,672

Finance costs B #§ M7 (25,202) (92,915)

Net finance income B1F5UL A F 48 8 98,767 25,757

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax

MRS EARNKRED TS  REFHE 268 5,986
Profit before taxation % A 5 1,652,742 3,347,532
Income tax expense FT5HFx% 9 (396,665) (712,104)
Profit for the period/year i,/ & KA 1,256,077 2,635,428

Attributable to: LA A +FE{E :

Equity shareholders of the Company Zx 72 Bl & IR 5 1,248,405 2,617,560
Non-controlling interests JF¥2 gz 7,672 17,868
Profit for the period/year &,/ R %78 1,256,077 2,635,428
Earnings per share S 2 7l

Basic earnings per share (RMB) SRERER| (AE¥ ) 10 1.00 2.11
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) G52 5| (ARET) 10 1.00 2.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMI M BtrE SRR — 5D ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmRkEMEERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

(UARY¥F T2 - BREREEN)

For the For the

six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024

HZ20235F HZE20245
12A31ALERER 12A31ALFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Profit for the period/year 1,/ R #7E 1,256,077 2,635,428

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
BE AR E 7 EE R -
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign operations

BREBNEBURBRNELEZR (32,504) 19,128
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period/year

0/ ERHELEE (FE) hE (32,504) 19,128
Total comprehensive income for the period/year £,/ £ X2 HE KN A5 1,223,573 2,654,556

Attributable to: LA™ A L FE{E :

Equity shareholders of the Company A2 AlEHKR R 1,217,804 2,635,833
Non-controlling interests 2Rz 5,769 18,723
Total comprehensive income for the period/year 81,/ £ R 2 E R £ 48 1,223,573 2,654,556

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMT B 5T Adr B TS mRER A —3 5 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

e BRI R

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(ARBEF 25

As at December 31,
M12H31H

2023 2024

2023%F 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
A B+ T ARBF T

ASSETS ¥&
Non-current assets FERE & &
Property, plant and equipment 2% - fE &R 1& 11 769,306 1,436,939
Right-of-use assets {f A& E 12 2,900,860 4,172,083
Intangible assets B E = 19,554 8,802
Goodwill B2 21,643 21,418
Deferred tax assets IELERIBEE 9(c) 104,130 181,948
Other investments EAt1i%& 13 90,603 123,399
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b fEULFR1E 15 135,796 341,288
Term deposits EHITE 100,000 140,183
Interests in equity-accounted investees
LU A A RN E A TR 15,783 38,567
4,157,675 6,464,627
Current assets B EE
Other investments Efth1Z & 13 252,866 100,000
Inventories & 14 1,922,241 2,750,389
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H fth fEUR 7018 15 1,518,357 2,207,013
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R IRE&ZEY 16 6,415,441 6,328,121
Restricted cash Z[RFIIRE 17 7,970 1,026
Term deposits E#1F 210,759 268,952

10,327,634 11,655,501

Total assets EEH % 14,485,309 18,120,128
EQUITY #=

Share capital &< 22(a) 95 94
Additional paid-in capital EZN A& 22(a) 6,331,375 4,683,577
Other reserves EAthf#{& 22(b) 1,114,568 1,329,126
Retained earnings B 1,722,157 4,302,177

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AR T ERRREGELS 9,168,195 10,314,974
Non-controlling interests JEiE IR #E 23,022 40,548
Total equity #5458 9,191,217 10,355,522
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Consolidated Statements

LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities IR EI & &

of Financial Position
e B SR R 3R

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(AARBEFTZ25)

As at December 31,
M12831H

2023 2024

2023%F 2024 £

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR+ T ARBF T

Contract liabilities 8B & & 5 40,954 35,145
Loans and borrowings B & &5 19 6,533 4,310
Other payables EffE{FFR1E 20 12,411 59,842
Lease liabilities fHE& & 21 797,986 1,903,137
Deferred income IEZE Wz 29,229 34,983
887,113 2,037,417

Current liabilities R & &
Loans and borrowings B K& &% 19 726 566,955
Trade and other payables & 5 Kk E i fE{ 7B 20 3,389,826 3,943,988
Contract liabilities 8B & & 5 324,028 323,292
Lease liabilities FHE& & 21 447,319 635,357
Deferred income IEZE UKz 6,644 5,376
Current taxation B EA%: 18 238,436 252,221
4,406,979 5,727,189
Total liabilities & &E#& % 5,294,092 7,764,606
Total equity and liabilities #3 & & &4 14,485,309 18,120,128

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on KRBT E LR 2025F 4 A24 Bt R I HETIEE -

April 24, 2025.
Ye Guofu Xu Lili EEE
Executive Director and Chairman Independent director HWITESERER

VPN

TREREE
BUESE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMB e AR e I R A — 2B o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(ARBEF 25

Cash flows from operating activities && EEFTEH LR

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

EHZ20235F

12 A31 AL~ ER
RMB’000
ARET T

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024
HZ2024%

12A31BLLEE

RMB’000
ARBTF T

Cash generated from operations &% ffiSH & 18(a) 1,448,307 2,995,609
Income tax paid B 13§85t (350,766) (827,275)
Net cash from operating activities &% BFT5R & B4 1,097,541 2,168,334
Cash flows from investing activities R &FBFIERER

Payment for purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

BENE  BERRBUREFEENFN (264,766) (762,538)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

RENX - BERIBNAEIE 427 12,446
Payments for purchases of other investments & 2 % & B+ 7k (2,553,982) (14,117,719)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments f& & E 118 & Fr{5 508 2,503,982 14,267,719
Placement of term deposits F A EEER (210,405) (302,158)
Release of term deposits IZEUEHI 581,371 213,521

Interest income F 2 IA 122,231 112,404
Investment income from other investments Ef1% & IR & Iz 14,281 81,145
Loan to an equity-accounted investee

mLERE AR RRE A TRENER - (19,926)
Payments for investments in equity-accounted investees

DR ZARNEREAANRENK (16,066) (18,148)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities R&Z &S/ (FTR) B FE 177,073 (533,254)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

:.‘/TAIEE/)ILE%:Z

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(AARBEFTZ25)

Cash flows from financing activities B & EEERER
Proceeds from capital injection from shareholders, subscription of restricted shares,
restricted share units and exercise of options

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

HZ20235F

12 A31 AL/~ ER
RMB’000
ARET T

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024
HZ2024%

12A31BLLEE

RMB’000
ARBTF T

BRIE - BEXBRHRYD - XRGIRGD ELMITEBREMER 168 649
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B R R FrEmE 18(b) - 563,800
Repayment of loans and borrowings &8 & R & 18(b) - (718)
Payment of capital element and interest element of lease liabilities

YRAEEEENERS I MFIEHD 18(0) (236,519) (725,075)
Payments of repurchase of shares &% {3718 (73,560) (313,416)
Prepayments for repurchase of shares [l B iR {3 &1 708 (87,324) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {1 JF i BiEZ IR S - (1,612)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company

IRFRAARRFEANRE 22(d) (923,664) (1,244,251)
Net cash used in financing activities B &% 8 fT AR & 55 (1,320,899) (1,720,623)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

BeRASEEMALFE (46,285) (85,543)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/year

8/ ENRERALEEY 6,489,213 6,415,441
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

ExSBHMEReNTE (27,487) (1,777)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/year

B/ FRRERRALEEY 16 6,415,441 6,328,121
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMIB e i e I R — 29

financial statements.
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

1.1

106 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

General information

MINISO Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7,
2020, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”)
on October 15, 2020 and the Company’s American
Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) have been listed on the
New York Stock Exchange since then. Each ADS of
the Company represents four ordinary shares. The
Company’s ordinary shares have also been listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) since July 13, 2022.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”). The Group is principally engaged in the
retail and wholesale of lifestyle and pop toy products
across the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
other countries in Asia, America, and Europe, etc. The
Company does not conduct any substantive operations
of its own but conducts its primary business operations
through its subsidiaries.

1

—REMRETEMNBARRE

1.1

—RER
ZRIERERIZRAER AR ([AAF])
R2020F1 A7 ARBEHEREEZME
22Z (R RDEY (1961 FEFEIHIAN - &
AU RIEE) NSRS FMK L AE
NEBREMLAR - AAAEHR2020%10
A15B R E XA AREE - BAREH
FRGFAERAMEEROBELFR ST E
e ARANE—HERFABRRET
I E AR o NAR)E BRI R2022F7
B13BEEBHARSMARAR ([F
BB AT]) B e

BEF AR B MR BRAR R RENE
DR (FEIAKE]) - AEREEXBEEF
EARAME (T ]) RN - =M
BNEEMERREEERTEERALR
MR AERNTE RILEER - A
RS THEEMEEERLES M
EEBEMNBARETIRERELE
) o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1 —REBRFEMBARIBRE (B)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 List of principal subsidiaries 1.2 FEMBARIRE
Set out below is a list of the Company’s principal TREFIARQRR2024F12 A31HH
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024: FTERBARZE
Group’s
Place of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment  Issued and (direct or
Company name and business paid-up capital indirect) Principal activities
FEEH
ML R BRRA=
NEER REBBE BITURBRRA (E#EZEE)
MINISO Universal Holding Limited BVI USD - 100% Investment holding
HEERREE F- 100% HEER
MINISO Global Holding Limited BVI USD - 100% Investment holding
RBERARES En- 100% IREER
MINISO Development Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD - 100% Investment holding
Limited and wholesale of
lifestyle products
BA BT - 100% HREZRBREAELRE
Bt
MINISO Investment Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HKD 80,100,000 100% Investment holding
ZEBERREBTBBRAR BB 80,100,000 7T 100% HREZR
MINISO Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HKD 350,000,000 100% Wholesale of lifestyle
products
ZEEm (FB)BRAF B 350,000,000 77T 100% AEREEMRALE
MINISO (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)ii) PRC RMB 139,693,019 100% Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products
ZEIEm (BN BREERF)) H AR 139,693,0197C 100% HEREERPER
€
MINISO (Henggqin) Enterprise PRC RMB 10,000,000 100%  Brand licensing
Management Co., Ltd. (ii)
REER (BE)CEEEARQAGH  F AR¥ 10,000,0007T 100%  mRhEHRFAT
MINISO International (Guangzhou) PRC RMB 65,000,000 100% Wholesale of lifestyle
Co., Ltd. (ii) products
HEIEmBIRR (BM)BR 2R e AR 65,000,0007T 100% HEREEMRBLE
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1.2 List of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Company name
NEER
MINISO Youxuan Technology

(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (ii)
HEIEER (BM) AR 2R

Pt. MINISO Lifestyle Trading
Indonesia

MINISO Life Style Private Limited

USA MINISO Depot Inc.

MIHK Management Inc.

MINISO LIFESTYLE SINGAPORE
PRIVATE LIMITED

108 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

MBI, R L
REK I

PRC

R

Indonesia

HEfers

India

g

United States

e

Canada

EX

Singapore

A0

1 —REMRFTENBATRE (&)

Group’s

effective

interest

Issued and (direct or
paid-up capital indirect)
KEEW

ERFIE

BRITURBERE (EEREE)
RMB10,000,000 100%
AR #10,000,0007C 100%
IDR53,289,350,000 67%
53,289,350,000EN/E & 67%
INR669,540,570 100%
669,540,570 EE 100%
USD67,041,441 100%
67,041,4413 7T 100%
CAD100 100%
100407T 100%
SGD3,000 100%
3,000%77T 100%

1.2 FEMBLARE ()

Principal activities

Online sales of
lifestyle products

EEREEMRL
HE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

HEREEmMBLE R
g€

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

TRFEERMLER
TE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

HEREEmMBLE R
Z2€

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

ERFEEMRLER
TE

Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products

HRFEEMILE R
T8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1 —RERRFTEMBATRE (&)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 List of principal subsidiaries (continued) 1.2 FEMBRARRE (B)
Group’s
Place of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment Issued and (direct or
Company name and business paid-up capital indirect) Principal activities
rEEW
SRS B 3L BERFI=

NRER RERUME BITURBERA (EEEE)

MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED LIABILITY  Vietnam VND20,000,000,000 90% Wholesale and retail
COMPANY of lifestyle products

W 20,000,000,000% & 0% HEREERMER
33

TOP TOY (Guangdong) Cultural PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Wholesale and retail
Creativity Co., Ltd. (Formerly known of pop toy products
as TOP TOY (Guangdong)

Technology Co., Ltd.) (ii)

BRE AT (ER)X(LEIE i AR #5,000,0007C 100% FmITAERLLE K
BRAR (BRA : BERA#I 6
(BR)RHRAR AR

Mingyou Industrial PRC RMB2,126,000,000 100% Development of
Investment (Guangzhou) headquarters
Co., Ltd. (i)(ii) building

HEBEZRE (BM) AR R F AK#2,126,000,0007T 100% BERERHE

Notes: BisE

()  These entities are wholly-owned foreign companies () ZEEBEHARPEKINIEEEA
established in the PRC. 7)o

(i)  These entities are limited liability companies established iy ZEEBHANTENINBRETA
in the PRC. Al o
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

110 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below. The Group has consistently applied
these accounting policies to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, unless
otherwise stated.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The Company has changed its financial year end date
from June 30 to December 31 on January 17, 2024. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group are for the year ended December 31, 2024. The
comparative information presented in these consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended December
31, 2023 are therefore not comparable.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that other investments are stated at their fair value as
explained in Note 2(m).

2 EBEAEFEE

(@)

BFRER

BEPAR A M SR IR BR @ 51 A
2 (BRI EIEEE ) RMH
(BB imE R &5 2R ([CEIFR &
BmE D) RBFBC(RBED) BFK
BREMRE - ZEHBEHRRTET(E
AR EZ EMARR) RERREGK
S

AEBMRERANERNSHHRREENOT °
BRIEXSBHRA - BRIAKERGE I
BRI R ERAZE SR
BR °

R ERIEEGCEME TRIER]
(B B mEER])  YRAKRENE
A& 5T BAME B R A RSk Al (AR B BR AR
EREASEEENBERNERNEREL
RAEFTH RIS BE AT & st B M T
Mt BRRED  CRAMBHRRAR
BR - BRAEREIINHEE2(C) °

REEE

R2024F1 178 » KRR ZHMBFE
EHEHEHR6 A30BEE A12A31H -
BEMI A= EE 202412 A31 B L4
ERERE ISR - Btk - #£20234F
12A31BIEAEA - ZEHREYFE®RE
FEFMR B RER AR -

B IS RRRA NG EEERE LK
A% BRfFE2m) R AAEBES
SR EAR IR B RS




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following new and amended
IFRSs issued by the IASB to the financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2024:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current (“2020 amendments”) and
amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Non-current liabilities with covenants
(“2022 amendments”)

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases — Lease liability
in a sale and leaseback

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows
and IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Supplier finance arrangements

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the year
ended December 31, 2024 as set out in Note 31. The
amendments do not have a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

Basis of consolidation

U]

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
2 EBEAEFBEE(E)

(c) EBFfECREZE
AEEEHU TR S5 EREESSE
M ] RASS 5T B B B 75 o 15 22 B g
BAREZE2024F12 831 B ILFEME

Bk
o (EFREFER) F15% (BFTA) -
B EZ 25 - HEETERT

B i B ([2020F B A )R
(BB ER]) £15 (BFTA) -
B iR #& 2 25— it R EFE 7T
B E ([2022F &5 )

o (BBRMBHREE) £165% (BF]
) HE-EEHBEXE 1

o (BIREFER) F7H (BFIA) -
B ne kM (BERMEREE
A)FE7%  £MTA  HE-H#
EBEBEZH

AEEWEERANEE2024%12 A31
B IEFE E R AR 2 A ER 2
T2 FEIBESIRMIFEST o ZEERTI R
HASERRENZE HAIBT BN
EENYBARRAN T AL EEEERN

go
d) #HEE%E

() MBATARIEZRES
HBARASANEEITHELE -
MEAEEFRHSEY —BEER
1 A ER 5 75 R U R ] B 21 $R 3 ]
BREERERRAENEN Y EZ
LEH - BIANEEIEHRERE -

e
HERREEEHEARENE - RE
BEEUHREN (AAREMEME
EST-DA
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

U

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until
the date on which control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are
measured initially at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets at the date
of acquisition.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the period between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

2 EBEAETEEGE)

(d)

maEXE (&)

U]

H A B R R R ()

M A BB TRk BRI A
ZAEZEFIEK L AHBERN
A BEmRT - RENEPRE
RGRBER  UWEREBRNILR S
FRESMEMRERNE - ERHE
REMBHRRES 2R - £E
HEVREDTR OB TIARRER
Weas ERIETT A T A

IR RIEFE R AR ERR
ARBRINIE AR - BAKE
BRI S B2 FRE S AR
AIERIMER - BE AR BB AL
ZERAAENASRABERN
BREME - JFEREaRENKE
BB R R A PR F B E TR
L PEIT IR & -

FRERE R N AR A M EAR R A
HAEY BURARBERR
REE(EHEs - AEBREMIEER
N e ERR MEaEEN
Hit 2 EBSERIERR B IHEAR
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BEREREL 2K RARN D A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

U

(ii)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling
interests and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted
investees comprises interests in associates.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Interests in equity-accounted investees
(continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Note 2(h)(ii)). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
reporting period are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable
(see Note 2(h)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interests in equity-accounted investees
(continued)

Unrealized gains arising from transactions with
equity-accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the
extent there is no evidence of impairment.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(h)(ii).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the reporting period, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv) Business combinations

(v)

Except for business combinations under
common control, the Group accounts of business
combinations using the acquisition method when
the acquired set of activities and assets meets the
definition of a business and control is transferred
to the Group (see Note 2(d)(i)). In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets
is a business, the Group assess whether the set
of assets and activities acquired includes, at a
minimum, an input and substantive process and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.

The Group has an option to apply a ‘concentration
test’ that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The optional concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset of group of similar identifiable
assets.

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are assessed to determine if they
are business or asset acquisitions. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
chooses to apply a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(v) Asset acquisition (continued)
When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than
cost in accordance with the Group’s policies are
measured accordingly, and the residual acquisition
cost is allocated to the remaining identifiable
assets and liabilities based on their relative fair
values at the date of acquisition.

When acquiring assets by obtaining a controlling
interest in a legal entity that does not constitute a
business as a step acquisition, the previously held
equity interest is included as part of the cost of the
acquisition and is not remeasured.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized
in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the
construction in progress.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Apartments
Leasehold improvements

30 years

Over the shorter of
lease term or

the estimated useful
lives of the assets

Office equipment 2 -5 years
Store operating equipment 2 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Moulds 1-2years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values,
if any, are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Amortization is calculated write off the cost of intangible
assets with finite useful lives using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Their estimated useful lives
of intangible assets are as follows:

Software 5 years

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@
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Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily staff apartments with lease term
of less than 12 months. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalized are recognized as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease is
capitalized is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(h)(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of items of right-of-use assets, using the
straight-line method over the unexpired lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognized the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and presents
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated statements
of financial position.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)
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Credit losses and impairment of assets

U

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, term deposits,
trade and other receivables).

Other financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including other investments,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

o fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

124 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realizing security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 30 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognized as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with
Note 2(t)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortized cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U
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Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

° significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognized as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets;

° intangible assets;

o goodwill;

o interests in equity-accounted investees; and
o investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

For cash-generating units (“CGU”s) where
an indication of impairment is identified, an
impairment assessment is performed by
comparing the carrying value of the CGUs with
their recoverable amounts. If the carrying value of
the CGUs exceeds their recoverable amounts, the
Group writes down the assets which belong to the
CGUs to the estimated recoverable amounts.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favorable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)
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Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior periods. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the periods in which the reversals are recognized.

o Determination of CGUs
Assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs (e.g. the Group’s individual
self-operated stores).

° Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU
is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

Inventories

Inventories are finished goods which are held for sale,
including the products placed at franchisees’ stores,
and low value consumables to be consumed in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value is recognized as an expense in the
period the write-down occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Loss of inventories is recognized as an expense in
the period the loss occurs. For the products placed at
franchisees’ stores, the Group bears inventory loss up to
a pre-determined loss rate as agreed with franchisees.
The Group requires compensations from franchisees
for the inventory losses in excess of the pre-determined
loss rate.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue (see Note 2(t)). A
contract liability would also be recognized if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognized (see Note 2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(t)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognized
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

Receivables are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(h)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).

Other investments

Other investments are classified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Changes in the fair
value of the investments are recognized in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortized cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
new shares are recognized in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognized in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

2(v).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Employee benefits

U

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Contributions to defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland
China participate in a defined contribution of
basic pension insurance in the social insurance
system established and managed by government
organizations. The Group makes contributions
to basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated
by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognized as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which
is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
There are no forfeited contributions for the MPF
Scheme as the contributions are fully vested to
the employees upon payment to the scheme. The
assets of this pension scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@
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Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contributions to defined contribution plans
(continued)

The Group participates in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans which are
available to all other overseas subsidiaries. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
fund and the Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates certain equity-settled
share-based compensation plans, under which
the Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the Group.

The fair value of share awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve. The fair value is measured
at grant date, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the shares or share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares or share
options, the total estimated fair value of the shares
or share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the shares
or share options will vest.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2 EBEAETHEGE)
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(iii) UBBHBEBROSR(E)

(@) Employee benefits (continued) (9
(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognized
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the period of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to equity).

If new equity instruments are granted to the
employee and, on the date when those new equity
instruments are granted, the entity identifies the
new equity instruments granted as replacement
equity instruments for the cancelled equity
instruments, the entity shall account for the
granting of replacement equity instruments in the
same way as a modification of the original grant of
equity instruments.

At the date the replacement awards are granted,
the entity accounts for any incremental fair value in
addition to the grant-date fair value of the original
award. The incremental fair value is the difference
between the fair value of the replacement award
and the net fair value of the cancelled award, both
measured at the date on which the replacement
award is issued. The net fair value is the fair value
of the cancelled award measured immediately
before the cancellation, less any payment made to
the employees on cancellation.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)
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Share-based payments (continued)

The Group recognizes the effects of modifications
that increase the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement or are otherwise beneficial
to the employee. If the Group modifies the terms
or conditions of the share awards granted without
reducing the number of equity instruments granted
in a manner that reduces the total fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement, or is
not otherwise beneficial to the employee, the
Group nevertheless continues to recognize as a
minimum the original grant date fair value of the
equity instruments granted (unless those equity
instruments are forfeited) as if that modification
had not occurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognizes
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous periods. The amount of current tax payable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

° temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss) and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences;

° temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

° those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)
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Income tax (continued)

The Group recognized deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a
deferred tax asset in full, the future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilized. Such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if all of the following conditions are met:

° the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities;

o they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(®)
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Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of products and the provision of
services.

Revenue is recognized when control over the product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled in exchange for the satisfaction
of a specific performance obligation, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any sales rebates and sales return.

The Group allocates the transaction price expected
to be received from franchisees or distributors to
different performance obligations based on their relative
standalone selling prices. In particular, the consideration
in arrangements with franchisees and distributors
includes sales-based amounts. Such sales-based
amounts are excluded from the transaction price until
the sales by franchisees have occurred and would be
allocated entirely to the franchise/distributor license fees
as they relate entirely to the Group’s promise to provide
franchisees/distributors access to the Group’s brand
name and trademarks.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effects of any significant financing
component if the expected period of financing is
12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U]

Sales of products

Retail sales in self-operated stores

Revenue from retail sales to customers in
self-operated stores is recognized at the point
when the end customer takes possession of and
pays for the products.

Product sales to franchisees

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain franchisees, primarily in the PRC
and Indonesia, which mainly include a license
agreement and a sales agreement (collectively
“Franchise Agreements”), whereby the franchisees
are licensed to operate the franchised stores and
are authorized to sell, in their own retail stores,
the products that they have purchased from the
Group. Revenue from sales to these franchisees is
recognized at the point when they obtain the legal
title of the product and become obliged to pay for
the products, which is when the franchisees sell
the product to their customers in the franchisees’
stores.

For product sales to franchisees, the Group has
determined that the franchisees are the customers
of the Group. The franchisees operate retail stores
at their own chosen locations under the framework
set out under the Franchise Agreements. At
inception of the franchise arrangement, franchisees
are required to place a deposit with the Group
which covers the estimated maximum value of
merchandise that their stores may hold throughout
the franchise period and this amount is reviewed
upon renewal of the franchisee arrangement. The
deposit is refundable at the expiry of the Franchise
Agreement, provided that the franchisees have no
remaining merchandise unsold and have settled
other balances with the Group.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(®)
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Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Product sales to franchisees (continued)

The franchisees employ and manage their
own staff to operate the stores and serve their
customers (i.e. end consumers who visit the
stores), and bear the costs associated with the
operation. The franchisees’ retail stores generally
carry a wide range of merchandise that they
exercise discretion to select from the Group’s
array of product categories.

The franchisees are responsible for the placement,
physical custody and condition of the merchandise
that they have selected after the deliveries are
accepted in stores. They also control the physical
access to merchandise in possession through their
operation of the retail stores. In general, the Group
does not have any obligation or practice to accept
any return of unsold products, except for rare
cases such as a latent defect subject to a product
recall or certain limited seasonal items that have
passed their sales season.

The franchisees have the right to price their
merchandise within a specified range of the
recommended retail price set by the Group. They
also have the ability to carry out discretionary
promotional campaigns for their stores or decide
whether to participate in a promotional campaign
launched by the Group. The franchisees can
offer more discounts on selected items beyond
the range specified in discretionary promotional
campaigns, and will have to bear a substantial
portion of reduced margin from lowering the sales
price for such campaigns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Sales to offline distributors

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain offline distributors, primarily overseas,
which mainly include a master license agreement
and a sales agreement, whereby the distributors
are authorized to sub-license the operation of
franchised stores in its authorized territory and sell
the products that they have purchased from the
Group to the franchised stores in its authorized
territory. Revenue from sales of products to these
distributors is recognized at the point when the
products have been shipped from or delivered to
the specific locations according to the detailed
agreement between the Group and distributors.
Revenue is recognized based on the contract
price, net of sales rebates.

Online sales

Revenue from online sales to customers, which
are conducted through the Group’s self-operated
online stores on third-party e-commerce
platforms, is recognized at the point when the
products are delivered to customers. The Group
has also entered into agreements with certain
online distributors, who are authorized to sell
products to customers through their online stores
on various major e-commerce platforms. Revenue
is recognized when control of the goods has
transferred according to respective agreed terms
of delivery, which is at the point in time when the
distributor obtains control of the distinct good.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

License fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation
service fees

Franchisees and distributors are required to
provide non-refundable upfront payments in
exchange for the franchise right or sub-license
right, which represent primarily their right to
access the Group’s brand name and trademarks.
In addition, franchisees are also required to
pay sales-based royalties and sales-based
management and consultation services fees
for such access. The fixed component of such
royalties is recognized as revenue over the
estimated license period, while the sales-based
component is recognized as revenue when the
related sales occur.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognized as
other income in profit or loss based on the timing
of when the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognized in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

U

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Item included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is United
States Dollars (‘USD”). As the major operations of
the Group are within the PRC, the Group presents
its consolidated financial statements in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the reporting
period are translated into the respective functional
currencies of Group companies at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss and presented within
other net income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)
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Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
(iii) Foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences in the
translation reserve relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

° The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

° One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

o Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

° One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

o The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2 EBEAETEEGE)

(continued)

(W)
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Related parties (continued)

o The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

° A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

o The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

° Note 2(t)(i) — product sales to franchisees: whether
revenue from product sales to franchisees is recognized
at the point when the franchisees sell the product to
their customers in the franchisees’ stores

° Note 2(t)(ii) — license fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation services
fees: whether revenue is recognized over time
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4

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organized by a mixture of both brands and geography. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented two
reportable segments of MINISO brand and TOP TOY brand
during the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the year
ended December 31, 2024.

Other operating segments have been aggregated and
presented as “other segment”. Business included as
other segment did not meet the quantitative thresholds for
reportable segments for the six months ended December 31,
2023 and the year ended December 31, 2024. The segment
information is as follows:

Reportable segments  Operations

MINISO brand Design, buying and sale of lifestyle
products

TOP TOY brand Design, buying and sale of pop toys
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e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEHE(E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities () XL EEREE
Information related to each reportable segment is set ZR 2RO A ?ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ'l QDT o B
out below. Segment profit before taxation is used to ﬁ%Bf'J/F'ﬁﬁHE’\”rE%Zi B
measure performance because management believes J‘ELEEHZ aﬂﬁ%’ﬁﬁﬁ%? S ¥SLI=
that this information is the most relevant in evaluating i -

the results of the respective segments.

As at and for the six months ended December 31, 2023
R2023F12A31 A REZEZA L AEA

Other

Reportable segments segment

2H A3
Total

MINISO TOPTOY  reportable

brand brand  segments
£flBm  TOPTOY BEE:

M mE A&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARETR

External revenues M4 7,251,610 368,842 7,620,452 12,015 7,632,467
Inter-segment revenue 7 ZBREI4LA 2,198 4172 6,370 93,921 100,291

Segment revenue 2 KA 7,253,808 373014 7,626,822 105,936 7,732,758
Segment profit before taxation 7 &l 57| 1,644,839 6,479 1,651,318 2,924 1,654,242
Finance income B4 A 120,064 640 120,704 1,911 122,615
Finance costs 17 & (23,042) (2,146) (25,188) (14) (25,202)
Depreciation and amortization 17 & [ & (245,796) (31,908)  (277,702) (3,058 (280,760)

Other material non-cash items: EtEAFEEER
- (credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables

-BHREMBYGE (FEFR) FEHBRE 2,791) 988 (1,803) @77) (2,080)

- impairment loss on non-current assets

- ERBEERNBEER (3,682) (865) (4,547) - (4,547)
Segment assets 2 HEE 11,547,381 400,602 11,947,983 191275 12,139,258
Additions to non-current assets during the period®* i3Ei8)E i frze* 733,107 75,329 808,436 2,941 811,377
Segment liabilities 23 & & 4,841,577 335870 5,177,447 41403 5218850
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 HEBHRE (E)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DEFE - EEREEE)

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2024
2024512 A1 BRBZZALEE

Other
Reportable segments segment
AZHAH Hittn %
Total

MINISO TOPTOY reportable

brand brand  segments

ZRIER  TOPTOY 2R

m mE AHEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARSI ARMTn AR¥TR ARETT ARETR

External revenues M4 16,002,565 983,525 16,986,090 7,935 16,994,025
Inter-segment revenue 7 A 21,684 13,858 35,542 571,490 607,032
Segment revenue 2R A 16,024,249 997,383 17,021,632 579,425 17,601,057
Segment profit before taxation 1A 2 257 3,255,049 92,428 3,347,477 10,109 3,357,586
Finance income BI75 A 115,431 1,093 116,524 1,651 118,175
Finance costs BT#m A (87,117) (5,798) (92,915) - (92,915)
Depreciation and amortization 7% [ 1% (713,062) (81,2200  (794,282) (5,216)  (799,498)

Other material non-cash items: EftEAZEREER
- reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables

- B RAMERTREEBERD 1,120 841 1,961 505 2,466

- impairment loss on non-current assets

—FERBEEREER (7,040) (1,806) (8,846) - (8,846)
Segment assets 2 & E 12,115,859 939,552 13,055,411 51,843 13,107,254
Additions to non-current assets during the year* #N3ERBEEL N 2,433,807 214,608 2,648,505 7,002 2,655,507
Segment liabilities 2 HEE 6,925,668 681,475 7,607,143 38,956 7,646,099
Note: Mz -
* The additions to non-current assets include additions to * IERBEBEMNIEINBIEDE - BRE KK

property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and % FRAREEREBRAE -

intangible assets.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 HEIHE (E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (iy FEFRDEBEREGBEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial WE LR
statements
For the For the
six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
HZ2023F BZ22024F
12 A31HIEAEA 12A31ALEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥T R
i. Revenue WA
Total revenue for reportable segments 7] 23R % 254U A 7,626,822 17,021,632
Revenue for other segment E 525U A 105,936 579,425
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 S8\ 184 (100,291) (607,032)
Consolidated revenue A H4LA 7,632,467 16,994,025

ii. Profit before taxation {575/
Total profit before taxation for reportable segments
2R HHAABERE 1,651,318 3,347,477
Profit before taxation for other segment £ b5 2581 A 7117 2,924 10,109
Unallocated amounts: A Ei4 %8 :
- Expenses relating to construction of headquarters building and depreciation expense
of apartments for use as staff quarters
BARRERRBRAX RAFE IBRENABITERS (1,500) (10,054)

Consolidated profit before taxation &t B4R A 7 1,652,742 3,347,532
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DIHEE)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FT2WHIERI B BEREPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial HEREREER (B)

statements (continued)

As at December 31,
®12 4318

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

iii. Assets E&E
Total assets for reportable segments 7] £ R 20 & E AR EA 11,947,983 13,055,411
Assets for other segment E 9 2[4 & 191,275 51,843

Other unallocated amounts Efh R Al £ 58
— Assets relating to construction of headquarters building

— R R IEEREREE 2,107,557 2,275,477

— Assets relating to an investment holding company

—REZERAFEEEE - 2,508,145

— Apartments for use as staff quarters

—AEEIBEENRE 238,494 229,252
Consolidated total assets & (& E 458 14,485,309 18,120,128

iv. Liabilities £ 1&
Total liabilities for reportable segments
2w A aERsE 5,177,447 7,607,143
Liabilities for other segment HAth H 2l & & 41,403 38,956
Other unallocated amounts HAth K5 Bt & %8

— Liabilities relating to construction of headquarters building

—HEBRRERBEAE 75,242 118,507

Consolidated total liabilities &t & (&4 %8 5,294,092 7,764,606
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DIHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FEFRDEBEREGEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial HEREREER (&)
statements (continued)
v. Other material items v. HEKXREH

For the six months ended December 31, 2023
HZE2023F12 831 HIE/NEA

Reportable
segment Other  Unallocated Consolidated
totals segment amount totals
A2} EB
ABE Hihn#  ROBESHE aftast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
Finance income B 54 A 120,704 1,911 1,354 123,969
Finance costs 817 7% (25,188) (14) - (25,202)
Depreciation and amortization 478 % & §& (277,702) (3,058) (4,481) (285,241)
Credit loss on trade and other receivables
B 5 LEMEUGIREERIR (1,803) (@77) - (2,080)
Impairment loss on non-current assets
ERBEERBEEE (4,547) = = (4,547)

For the year ended December 31, 2024

HZE2024F12831HILFE

Reportable
segment Other Unallocated Consolidated
totals segment amount totals
A2} H
At ROBEE CXia=Eis
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Finance income B 7545 A 116,524 1,651 497 118,672
Finance costs B %7 (92,915) - - (92,915)
Depreciation and amortization #78 & # (794,282) (5,216) (9,196) (808,694)
Reversal of credit loss on trade and
other receivables
B 5 LHEMEWGIREEEERD 1,961 505 3 2,469
Impairment loss on non-current assets
ERBEERBEEE (8,846) - - (8,846)
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEW®E(E)
(i) Geographic information (i) HIHER
The geographic information analyses the Group’s s & BHE AR R B AT 7E B SR A EL At b [
revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s AMREERWANEREEE - £2
country of domicile and other regions. In presenting PR BRI - D EIURA RN F Ry
the geographic information, segment revenue has been BAUE - Mo EERERNEENME
based on the geographic location of customers and R -
segment assets are based on the geographic location of
the assets.
For the For the
six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
B Z=2023%F BZE20245
12 431 B 1/} fEH 12H31BLLEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥T T
i. Revenue A
Mainland China 9 Bl A, 4,843,127 10,312,116
Asia excluding China T3 (FRBIERSM) 1,157,261 2,541,817
North America 3£ 3N 743,897 1,985,051
Latin America 1 T ZE)M 660,039 1,445,691
Europe B 154,737 414,493
Other H At 73,406 294,857

7,632,467 16,994,025

As at December 31,
M®12H31H

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARET T

ii. Non-current assets kR EEE

Mainland China A B4 At 2,906,878 3,626,187
Asia excluding China 351 (FR B 451) 166,623 413,285
North America 153 M 644,765 1,725,032
Europe BUM 83,246 72,168
Other EAth 45,647 143,858

3,847,159 5,980,530
Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, IERBEETRIFEELEHIBEE - Eft
non-current other investments, non-current term EREIRE R TEEFR AR
deposits and interests in equity-accounted investees. EANRREIRE AR o
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sale of
lifestyle and pop toy products through self-operated stores,
franchised stores, offline distributors in the PRC and overseas
and online sales conducted through the Group’s self-operated
online stores on third-party e-commerce platforms and
through online distributors. Other sources of revenue mainly
include license fees, sales-based royalties and sales-based
management and consultation service fees from franchisees
and distributors.

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue from contracts with
customers is disaggregated by major products and
service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Major products/service lines ZZE 8, ~ R
— Sales of lifestyle and pop toy products
—HEREEmMARITTAERIEE

— Retail sales in self-operated stores

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

5 WA

AEERWATEZREBEBREMNEGINEE
JE - EE R THRERHEEEEREERM
R AER  ABBAREES=7ER
FE LB ERERSBER EREEETH
AREHE - BB ARREZBERE MNER
MREFNEER - ERHEENSTEERE
RERHENEE LG ARBEE -

iy WADEE
ETRP  EEERWAZEEERM
RS R FNIRAFER T D48 o

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024

B E202445%
12A31HILLFE

RMB’000
ARBT T

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

HZE20234F

12 A31 B I/~ E A
RMB’000
AREFIT

—BEETEHE 1,004,114 3,158,895

— Product sales to franchisees

—AMNEEEEER 3,857,191 7,923,836

— Sales to offline distributors

—METRIZEEE 1,660,860 3,369,238

— Online sales

— R LHE 355,380 941,055

— Other sales channels

—EfhiHERE 44,149 48,190
Sub-total /N5t 6,921,694 15,441,214
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued) 5

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (i)

— License fees, sales-based royalties, and sales-based management
and consultation service fees
—EEE  ARNEENETRECAERENIEENEE KRB ARG E

- License fees

LONE: )]

WA 2% ()

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

H £20234F
12 A31H 1/~ EA
RMB’000
ARETFIT

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024

HZE2024F

12A31HLEEE

RMB’000
AR®T T

—BEE 37,074 96,836
— Sales-based royalties
—HERNHENISTEFERE 66,113 131,402
— Sales-based management and consultation service fees
—ERNIHENBERERARARGE 323,182 640,944
Sub-total /N5t 426,369 869,182
- Others*
— Efth> 284,404 683,629
7,632,467 16,994,025
Timing of revenue recognition 4§ A #&52 hx 2]
— Point in time
— T E B A2k 7,195,509 16,101,797
— Over time
—BERFFE RS 436,958 892,228
Revenue from contracts with customers &= & R A 7,632,467 16,994,025
Note: MIaE -
* Others mainly represented sales of fixtures to franchisees * EthFZR2EMMNEEMRIERHEERE
and distributors. 1B o

For the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the #H22023F12 A31 H1E/~ M@ A & 2024
year ended December 31, 2024, the Group did not F12A31ALESFE BiEAEETEPK
have any customer with revenue exceeding 10% of MNMEMERE R E SR AR S E AU A10% LA
the Group’s total revenue for the respective reporting £

periods.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

5 REVENUE (continued) 5 A (%)
(i) Contract balances @iy BRLER
The following table provides information about TREHTRE TS E LR EYRIEHN
receivables, contract liabilities from contracts with ABHEERBER -
customers.

As at December 31,
®12 8318

2023 2024

20234 20245

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiEE ARET T ARET T

Receivables, which are included in ‘trade and other receivables’
FTATE 5 K& H b FEUGERIE | & FE YR IR
— Current portion

— B E S 426,937 674,923
— Non-current portion
—IERBE D 17,612 14,635

Total receivables, which are included in ‘trade and other
receivables’
FTATE 5 R H M FEWRIE | B W GRIB A RE 15 444,549 689,558

Contract liabilities & #I8 (&
— Current portion

—mENE D (324,028) (323,292)

- Non-current portion

—JEmENEB D (40,954) (35,145)
Total contract liabilities & 49 & (G458 (364,982) (358,437)

As at December 31,
M®12H31H

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
AKET T ARBT T

Contract liabilities are analyzed as follows: &4 B EHDHTLAT :
— Advance payments received from customers for purchase of goods

— R B FIEE R RAITENFKIE 267,063 262,412

— Deferred revenue related to license fees

—HEREEBEETEK S 82,914 66,128

— Deferred revenue related to others

—BLE B BARIEIE Y e 15,005 29,897
364,982 358,437
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued) 5 A (%)
(i) Contract balances (continued) @iy BHEERE)
The Group requests 20% to 100% advance payment AEEER - FEMETEANIMIRRER
for purchase of goods from certain domestic and @Al - BEAEEZN20%E100% )
overseas distributors prior to delivery of goods. This HBTANRIE - EEHEETERRKE
gives rise to contract liabilities at the start of a sales HETERNBE BEEBEEHERIE LE
order, until the revenue of sales of products recognized REEMHERABBERNFTIBEAIL

on the corresponding sale order exceeds the amount of
payments received in advance.

Unamortized portion of upfront license fees and others TBNEREBRREESY REMERA
were recognized as contract liabilities. BHBE -
Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EHREENEFHBERNOT :

Contract
liabilities

BNAE

RMB’000
ARBT T

Balance at July 1, 2023 74202347 A1 B 84 & 339,641
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

HRERHIMASNEENRABR SN ERD (292,887)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods

R B E S YHTENFIEmMEE RS L A EEM 267,063
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees

FW BB FIAMEENa B EIEN 36,370
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of others

EH A T E £ B A KB EEMN 14,795

Balance at December 31, 2023
12023912 A31 A& 364,982

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

HAmRHIMAG N8 ENRABRENEERD (324,028)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods

U ZIBESYHNANFTEMESN LB &5 M 262,412
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees

R EIR B FIAME S a B EIEIN 25,174
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of others

R T 2 A Y& K B (B N 29,897

Balance at December 31, 2024
R2024F 12 A31 HA & 358,437
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5 REVENUE (continued)

)

(ii)

Contract balances (continued)

As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, contract liabilities
expected to be recognized as revenue after one year
were RMB40,954,000 and RMB35,145,000, respectively,
mainly represented license fees.

Revenue expected to be recognized in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting dates

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at December 31, 2023 and 2024, the aggregated
amounts of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts were RMB97,919,000
and RMB96,025,000, respectively. These amounts
represented revenue of license fees and others.
Revenue of license fees is expected to be recognized in
the future from license agreements entered into with the
franchisees and distributors. The Group will recognize
the expected revenue in future over the remaining
licensing period, which is mainly expected to occur over
the next 1 to 10 years as at December 31, 2023 and
2024.

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

5 WAGE)

(i

(il

B ()

HE2023F %2024 12H31H - &
HE—FREERBRANEGHNEES
Al A ANREA40,954,000 T AR
35,145,0007T ' TEAIREE -

RENBREBHPEHEEFITINEG
2 TRHS I AR R AIA

(BB IS HREZAD) F15EEBEARANE
#

20234 K 2024F12 A31H - BER
EEBRERNIREERTROEEZR
SBEREED R A AR®E97,919,000 7T &
AR#96,025,0007T » ELSRRKRE
HEERREAMBA - HEBRWATERT
FEARRYENBEMARIEE R T R AE
A mEPER c AEBEBERGTY
HINFER AR RTEHAM A » FaAT1A20234F
N2024F12 A31H » TEHERK1ET0
FEAE o
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE 6 BRHEEBEINFEX
For the For the
six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
H Z=2023%F B ZE20245F
12 A31 B 1E/NEA 12A31HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARET T
Cost of inventories (Note 14(a)) &R AN (Ff3E14(a)) 4,292,806 9,099,543
Payroll and employee benefits (i) T & & 1& 8 12 F(i) 580,801 1,475,943
Rental and related expenses T N 8/ 5 2 80,847 279,429
Depreciation and amortization (i) #72 K 4 ii) 285,241 808,694
Licensing expenses % & 178,241 420,895
Promotion and advertising expenses # /& & B & 246,883 572,435
Logistics expenses ¥/ f 52 203,024 535,021
Travelling expenses = jikF 52 45,827 121,506
Other expenses H bz 198,561 494,684

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and
administrative expenses
HEAKAK - HERD HM—RRITHA 6,112,231 13,808,150
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 6 RUERSHES (E)
Notes: F5E
()  Payroll and employee benefits are analyzed as follows: () IEREERBAIFAT :

(i)

Salaries, wages and bonus

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

#HZ2023F

12 431 B 17 fE A
RMB’000
ARETTT

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024

HZE20245F

12831 BILLEE

RMB’000
ARMT T

e TERIEL 463,208 1,202,421

Contributions to social security contribution plan

It S RIZHFET BB R 53,977 140,311

Welfare expenses & 17,184 48,027

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 23)

IAREZS A5 S VAR ) S A B 2 (B9 7E23) 46,432 85,184
580,801 1,475,943

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution plans
are expensed as incurred and not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the plans prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Depreciation and amortization are analyzed as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 11)

ARE B A E B NE

SFHMERNELR
X MRS RAERSEEHRATR LS

MR KE SR & BIERZ FHK -

(i) FERBEINWAT

For the

six months ended
December 31,
2023

#H Z2023F
12 431 B 17} fE A

RMB’000
ARBTTT

For the

year ended
December 31,
2024
BZE2024F

12A31HLFE

RMB’000
ARBT T

W% - BB KR (FE11) 59,652 157,214

Right-of-use assets (Note 12)

EAREE (ME12) 239,787 684,462

Less: amount capitalized as construction in progress

B BN ERT RN SR (22,604) (45,210)

Intangible assets & & 8,406 12,228
285,241 808,694

The auditor’s remuneration in relation to audit service
provided for the six months ended December 31, 2023 and
the year ended December 31, 2024 were RMB9,600,000 and
RMB15,000,000, respectively.

(ii)

B E2023F12 31 H LN EA K2024%F
12 A31 BIEFE - HAN I e E e RS
MeoR AARK9,600,000LRARE
15,000,0007T
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

7 OTHER NET INCOME 7  HMFWA
For the For the
six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
#HE20234F BZE2024 5
12H31H 12A31H
1E7NEA IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBT T
Net foreign exchange loss J [ i E518 (15,025) (33,730)
Losses on disposal of property, plants and equipment and intangible assets
HEME  BERREURELEENER (1,632) (2,534)
Investment income from other investments E 3% & #9#& & 28 14,281 81,145
Scrap income FE A 5,912 10,742
Net change in fair value of other investments Efbi% & A o BB B) %58 14,270 29,930
Reversal of litigation compensation FfFA8 (&% @] 408 300
Gains relating to cancellation and modification of lease contracts
BRAZIEREREE S R 4,821 15,201
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 5z & — M /B A 7] &9 Wz - 8,759
Others Hfi (1,930) 4,883
21,105 114,696
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
8 NET FINANCE INCOME 8 HMBWAFEHE

For the For the

six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024

HZE2023F HZE2024F
128318 12H31H
1E75EA IEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

Finance income BA 75U A
- Interest income
— FBUA 123,969 118,672

Finance costs 87 75 AR
— Interest on loans and borrowings

—ERREFRFE (90) (1,292)

— Interest on lease liabilities

—HEAENE (25,112) (91,623)
(25,202) (92,915)

Net finance income BA7&UL A 558 98,767 25,757
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

9 INCOME TAXES 9 RSB

(@) Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss: (@ EEHHERTPERNBIE

For the For the

six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024

H Z=20234F B E20245F
12 A31H 12H31H
LE7~ A A ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARMT

Amounts recognized in consolidated profit or loss

EEBRETEIANSE

Current tax ETRI#E

Provision for the period/year 5,4 R # 339,409 789,640
Deferred tax EFLFE

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 9(c))

R 2= A E A A (FTEE9(c)) 57,256 (77,536)

Tax expense FTSFiFIL 396,665 712,104
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9 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@)

Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:
(continued)

1)

2)

3)

Cayman Islands and the BVI

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

Hong Kong

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance, the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% on their taxable income
generated from the operations in Hong Kong. A
two-tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced
in 2018 where the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits earned by a company will be taxed at half
of the current tax rate (8.25%) whilst the remaining
profits will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. There is
an anti-fragmentation measure where each group
will have to nominate only one company in the
Group to benefit from the progressive rates.

Mainland China

Under the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) Law, the
subsidiaries established in mainland China are
subject to a unified statutory CIT rate of 25%.

A subsidiary established in Henggin New Area of
Zhuhai, a pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the
criteria for a preferential income tax rate of 15%
prior to December 31, 2022.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou Nansha, a
pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the criteria for
a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou, the PRC,
is qualified as high and new technology enterprise
and is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% for three years ended December 31, 2024.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

9 FriSH (&)
() EAPHERPERRHBIE < (8)

1) HERSRABEERES
RERASHELABEAREER
AR G0 REERHASES R
BB AESESEMITMAME
i o

2) EE

REBEBEBRITHCRBIEG) - AR
ANEEMBARAREREERN
EIEFE LM ERTIAIZ16.5%
NIRRT EFEH - 201845
SIAFEBMMARS] - REIRIREOE
2EEBTTRERHEMBERIZIRITH
TH)—4(8.25%) BiN - EAFE
RAEEIZ16.5% W - BEERR
woter  BIREERERAEE
A —RRREZREHE -

3) FEAM
RIBCREMEH ([REMEH])
B EHBE AR A E A F
A —R25%HETE B EABH
RGNS ©

ETFRERESAREREESH
EERZMMBAR - 1H2022412
AB1HAIEZHEEFMESHM
KA5% HIEHF ©

EHEARESAREE/MNEDER
YHMBRRNEZHEEMEH
B R15% Mg -

FERBEEMNZRANEB R WA
M EELHE2024F12 A
BB =EFE=BEEMEN
FHE15% o
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e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

9 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@) Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:

(continued)
4) United States

Under United States Internal Revenue Code,
the subsidiaries established in United States are
subject to a unified Federal CIT rate of 21% and
variable state income and franchise tax ranging
from 0.75% to 9.8% depends on which state the

subsidiaries has nexus with.

5) Indonesia

The subsidiary incorporated in Indonesia is subject
to the prevailing statutory tax rate on taxable
income. The statutory tax rate was 25% for
fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and 22%
from fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and

onwards.

6) India

Under the Income Tax Act 1961 enacted in India,
the subsidiary incorporated in India is subject to a
profit tax rate of 26% for fiscal year ended March
31, 2022 and 25.17% from fiscal year ended

March 31, 2023 and onwards.

7) Canada

Under the Canadian federal and provincial tax
rules, the subsidiaries incorporated in Canada are
subject to the combined Canadian federal and
provincial statutory income tax rates ranging from
23% to 31% depending on the location of the

operation.

8) Singapore

Under the Income Tax Act enacted in Singapore,
the subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are
subject to a tax rate of 17% on its chargeable

income.

9) Vietnam

Under the Law on Corporate Income Tax enacted
in Vietnam, the subsidiary incorporated in Vietnam
is subject to a tax rate of 20% on its assessable

income.

9 FriS® (&)
() EAGHERPERRHBIE < (8)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

xH

BBECERBEAFUCE) + FEERFK
SR B AR ZAR21% MR
M — BB EFTER - AR
B BAREBEMEEmE @ &
0.75% £ 9.8 % & 7] & M| F15 £ 1
R RETR R R B -

HERAE

R ENE FE 78 an s Ak 32 H9 BT /8 A &)
HERHWABZBRITEERR
BE - EE 2020912 A31HILF
B RAEMER25%  MBEEZE
202112 A31 B ILMFER -
ETETEA22% o

EE

BIEEEEMA1961 F (B
A RENE MMM B AT
HE2022F3A31HILHHEE
JAIR26% MBI RN FIER - m
E#ZE202343 318 IFBBF
[EFEBIE25.17 % KT R G RS
i o

mngEx
RBCINEREBFHFAETE) + B0
ERFMK BB A RZBREE
LR RE 0 1E23% E31% B0
ERBHIB A ETERE
BRANFTISHR ©

SN

RIS EHECERLE) - B
FT N3 SR AR 2 RO B B A R R FE R
B ER1T% o

MR

RIE B BM R EMERE) -
R AL BT B A BB FE R
TSR A20% o
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

9 INCOME TAXES (continued) 9 MEH (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) RBEAREAENBIEMAREST
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FE = BRI E AR -

For the For the

six months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024

EZE2023%F HZE20245F
12831 H 12H31H
1E7S A A ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Profit before taxation # A F))E 1,652,742 3,347,532

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the jurisdictions concerned

BAIAENBETIE (REBAREEERERANAENREAE 394,856 859,697
Tax effect of share-based compensation expenses (Note 6(i))

&t Sz A~ BN B 2 B A TR 2 8 (BT RE6(1)) 11,401 20,127
Tax effect of other non-deductible expenses

Hip NI A B IE & 7,310 13,060

Effect of preferential tax treatments on assessable profits of certain
subsidiaries (Note 9(a)(3))

BERIEFBLHE THB R RERBAEHZE (H:9()(@3)) (10,756) (101,522)
Tax effect of additional deduction on research and development costs

BIMOBRIAE RN AN IBTE (3,476) (6,179)
Tax effect of exempted and non-taxable income

RN IEERBN S AN TIET & (12,481) (11,978)
Effect of unused tax losses being utilized

EBAREAREBEBENTE (8,002) (56,271)

Effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognized/(being utilized)

wR(BER)IHNREREEENTE 13,718 1,736
Others EHith 4,095 (6,566)
Actual tax expenses EFRFIBRH 396,665 712,104
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

9 INCOME TAXES (continued) 9 MEH (&)
(c) Movement in deferred tax assets () EEMEBEEES
The components of deferred tax assets recognized in RERE P BMRARPERELETIBE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the EAKE S RREHANEDERLE5 00
movements during the reporting periods presented are T
as follows:

Loss from
waiver of
intercompany
Unused  Intra-group Credit receivables of
tax  unrealized lossand discontinued  Right-of-use Lease
losses profits  impairment  operations assets liabilities Others

BREAL
RER REnN  GEERE  LWEEN
REBAE ] HEBR
RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'O0  RMB'00  RMB'00  RMB00  RMB00  RMB'00
ARBTL  ARMIL ARMIL ARMIL ARBIR ARRIRAREIR__ARETR

Deferred tax assets arising from:

RETHBENELHEEE |

At duly 1, 2023 #2023 7R 1R 23436 23152 38,682 60873 (107,037) 115,620 7,791 161,617
Charged to profit or loss RMER AR (392 4781 (7.574) (54,048) 8770 (6,569) (2,230) (57,256)
Exchange rate difference EXZ£E 1) (113) 73 - 363 (370) (153) (231)
At December 31, 2023 R2023512 531 R 23,013 27,820 31,181 6,825 (98,804) 108,687 5408 104,130
Charged to profit or loss BRI 82,060 10,604 7,029 (6,825) (337,147) 333,059 (20,334) 71,53
Exchange rate difference EXZE 437 - (78) - (815) 791 (53) 282

At December 31, 2024 1202412 531 A 105,510 47,514 36,132 (436,766) 442,531 (14,979) 181,948

The Group only recognizes deferred income tax assets REERBERRRAIEEERTSEEA
for cumulative tax losses if it is probable that future ﬁbﬁﬁﬁigﬁrﬁlﬁlﬁiﬁﬁﬁ% e BEFHIE
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those tax ERERREMSHEE -

losses.

168 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement§
e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

9 INCOME TAXES (continued) 9 FiEH (&)
(d) Unrecognized deferred tax assets (d) RERMNELEHRIEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect RETRIEEE AR A TIER E1TH
of the following items, because it is not probable that R RERHBAREEER TR S
future taxable profit against which the losses can be BRI E) A ETIE T DA 85 89 R 2R FE AR B
utilized will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction. i e

As at December 31,
M12831H

2023 2024

2023F 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR+ T ARBF T

Deductible temporary differences B {IBRE B4 = & 54,416 63,546
Cumulative tax losses &1 #iIEEE 774,584 447,814
Total &5 829,000 511,360
(e) Tax losses carried forward (e) HEBIEEE
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was RERELERBEENTIESER 8IS
recognized will expire as follows: AT ¢
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2023 Expiry date 2024 Expiry date
120235 2024 F
12A31H FH R 12H31H ZHEI R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥T T
Expire 2|88 432,759 2024-2044 368,235 2025-2045
Never expire FEZ|Hi H 341,825 79,579
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was REZEERIBEENRIEEBENEB
recognized are related to subsidiaries that are not NAIBE  ZEHMBARIEAEHKIE
expected to derive sufficient taxable profits in the BRI ER R RIES 2 E
foreseeable future before unused tax losses expired. £ AR ERTAE -
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

9

INCOME TAXES (continued)

(

170 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Uncertain tax position

The Group evaluates whether it is probable that tax
authority will accept the tax treatment for each uncertain
tax position (including the potential application of
interest and penalties) based on the technical merits,
and measures the unrecognized benefits associated with
the tax positions. As of December 31, 2023 and 2024,
the Group did not have any significant unrecognized
uncertain tax positions. The Group does not anticipate
any significant increase to unrecognized tax benefit
within the next 12 months. Interest and penalties related
to income tax matters, if any, is included in income tax
expense.

Pillar Two income taxes

In 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development published the Global Anti-Base
Erosion Model Rules (“Pillar Two model rules”) for a
new global minimum tax reform applicable to large
multinational enterprises. Certain jurisdictions in which
the group operates have implemented Pillar Two income
tax legislation based on this framework, and those Pillar
Two income tax laws became effective on January
1, 2024. As all subsidiaries within the Group in those
jurisdictions have jurisdictional effective tax rates in
excess of 15%, the Group has not recognized any Pillar
Two related income tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

Other jurisdictions in which the Group operates are in
the process of implementing their Pillar Two income tax
legislation. Therefore, it is possible that the Group may
be subject to additional Pillar Two income taxes in those
jurisdictions.

9 FfrEH (&)

()

THE TE VB FE AR

AEEF ARG R T ] sE R R 1 iT
MRS S TREBRBMR AN E
B(BREAMNERERMETER) I
B = MRS R R ER A= o &
F20234F K2024F12 A31H » KA&EE
TFIEAE A R R E R E RIS
Moo REEFBF AR ERTBEF R R K
12 AN~ @EL N - EBAEHER
AT B RS K (B )T AFEHH
i °

THRZFREH

M20214 - LBEESERERABE MG
BRHMERMRABEA ([ EZRAE
A UHEEEARAR BRI
EHEEHFINE - XEBE BTN
RERAEER D RB I IELRE ST
ZATEEUAD MRS EZAMERE
R2024F1 A1 B4R - AR AEEEZ
ZREEERANABMMBRARMNERE
EEHERGBBI15% © AL AREBRRE
F2024F12 A31 B It FE W RERT
{RJER S A — FERAMFTIS A ©

AEEEEREAMAZEERIAE
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e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 BREF
(@) Basic earnings per share (a BREXER
For the six months ended December 31, 2023 and B ZE2023F 12 A31 B LA A K&
the year ended December 31, 2024, the calculation of £2024F12A31HLLFE - GRE
basic earnings per share has been based on the profit AR THIRBE AR R BRI R EAG
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company FE A R%1,248,405,000 T B A R ¥
of RMB1,248,405,000 and RMB2,617,560,000 2,617,560,000 7T LA } 1 TEE SN E S AR AN
and weighted-average number of ordinary shares RSP BETENT

outstanding calculated as follows:

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,

2023 2024
EHZE2023F B 220245
12H31H 12A31H
1EREA LEE

Number of shares Number of shares

(0 81 E Ji% 47 B H

Issued ordinary share at the beginning of the period/year

H RN S B 1,244,854,689 1,243,332,789
Effect of shares released from share incentive plan (Note 23)

TR (D 2Bt &3 ARt 2 2 (P 7E23) 281,729 1,311,146
Effect of repurchase of shares (Note 22(b)(v))

Retn BIBEEY 22 (FEE22(b)(v)) (209,553) (5,249,672)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 38 % 4 - 15 €5 1,244,926,865 1,239,394,263
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 10 BREF (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SBREERF
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting EREERMNDBRRCERMERESE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BAMEER - ARBTEINEBERTY
outstanding to assume conversion of all potential IMETFHHAESE -

dilutive ordinary shares.

For the six months ended December 31, 2023 and B £2023F12 A31 H IE/N 8 A k&
the year ended December 31, 2024, the calculation £2024F12A31HLEE Bk
of diluted earnings per share were based on the profit SEAMDREBEARAR BB EEN
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the FEAR®1,248,405,0007T & AR
Company of RMB1,248,405,000 and RMB2,617,560,000 2,617,560,0007T * JA K E3@A% hnAE 15
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of £11,251,635,862/% X 1,246,817,617 1%
1,251,635,862 and 1,246,817,617 shares, respectively, HE - WK AEEF SN E ST ER
after adjusting by the dilutive effect of share incentive B

plan, calculated as follows:

For the six For the

months ended year ended

For the year ended June 30, December 31, December 31,
HZ12A318  BZ12A31A

BZ6A30RLFE LE~{EA L5E

2022 2023 2023 2024
2022 20235 20235 20245

Number of shares  Number of shares  Number of shares Number of shares
RinEE EE EE RAHE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, basic

LERMETHE (£X) 1205527348 1243320377 1244926865  1,239,394,263
Dilutive effect of share incentive plan (Note 23)
BRip a2l & s 2 (Fii2s) 11,110,091 7,024,739 6,708,997 7,423,354

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, diluted
LRRMET S (F4) 1,216,637439 1250545116  1,251,635,862  1,246,817,617
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 V¥ BERRE
Store
Leasehold operating Motor Construction
i vehicles Mog[ds in progress Total
HEEs T At
RMB'000 RMB'00

Cost: B :
AtJuly 1, 2023 2023 7B 18 242,639 147271 54,048 46,723 3,089 45,741 176,389 715,900
Additions /K& - 18,980 9177 10,479 306 11,607 254,784 305,333
Transfer from construction in progress EEE TEEA - 75,184 - - - - (75,184) -
Disposals & - (12461) 19 (6,330 - (6:445) - (26,53
Exchange adjustments E%:5% - (2,685 (59%) (541) (26 - (504) (4.352)
At December 31, 2023 #2023%12 A31 B 242,639 226,283 61,838 49,831 3,369 50,903 355,485 990,348
Additions /K& - 139,312 32,187 24,352 2,067 21,792 626,541 846,251
Transfer from construction in progress B T2 A - 353,208 - - - - (353,298) -
Disposals H& - (12810 (12,200 (3619) - (5,009 - (34538)
Exchange adjustments E %% - 6,405 (1,998) 1,825 @) - 1,060 7,284
At December 31, 2024 #2024 12 A31 B 242,639 712,488 79,821 72,389 5,428 66,786 629,788 1,809,345
Accumulated depreciation: Z5H & :
At duly 1, 2023 RO003 &7 A 1R (16250 (8504 (2845 (26897 (1949 (38740 - (158
Charge for the period iz i (4,357) (39,815) (5,530) (1,208) (232) (8512) - (59,659)
Written back on disposals HERHE - 9,226 322 3,866 - 6,100 - 19,514
Exchange adjustments EZ35% - (210) 510 236 14 - - 490
At December 31, 2023 20234 1231 B 08O (9363 (7549 (4000 RIE @15 S (1)
Charge for the year FA%H: (8,278) (109,207) (12211) (8,363) (457) (18,608) - (157,214)
Written back on disposals HEF&E - 3,703 8,343 85 - 5,765 - 17,896
Exchange adjustments E %% - (5,142) 641 (346) - - - (4,847)
At December 31, 2024 202441231 B 885 (180099 @070 (32629 Red (3399 N )
Impairment; 8 :
At uly 1, 2023 RO023E7 A 1R - 21512 (1,816) 0759 - - - (26,081)
Addition & - (3,459 - (1,089 - . . (454
Whitten back on disposals HEH B - 2,701 - 1,167 - - - 3,868
Exchange adjustments 2352 - 351 158 Iy - - - 551
At December 31, 2023 120234 1231 - 21,919 (1,659 26%) - . § (26,209
Addition & - (5,801) - (3,045) - - - (8,846)
Written back on disposals HER&E - 1,662 - - - - - 1,662
Exchange adjustments E2235% - (545) 150 380 - - - (15)
At December 31, 2024 2024412331 B - (26,60) (1,508) 5.297) - - - (33.408)
Net book value: SEH(E :
At December 31, 2023 #2023 12 A318 222,032 135,001 22,637 23,198 1,202 9,751 355,485 769,306
At December 31, 2024 1202412 8318 213,754 505,786 37,549 34,467 2,804 12,791 629,788 1,436,939
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 9% - BERRE (&)

(continued)

The Group had leasehold improvements and store operating
equipment related to self-operated stores amounting to
RMB128,879,000 and RMB475,771,000 as at December 31,
2023 and 2024, respectively.

In addition, certain of the store-level assets are measured
at fair value based on unobservable inputs (Level 3) on a
non-recurring basis, if determined to be impaired. The fair
value of store-level assets, if determined to be impaired,
are primarily represented by the price market participant
would pay to sub-lease the operating lease right-of-use
assets, which reflects the highest and best use of the
assets. Significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurement include market rental prices. The direct
comparison approach is used as the valuation technique by
assuming a sub-lease of each of the properties in its existing
state with vacant possession. By making reference to lease
transactions as available in the relevant market, comparable
properties in close proximity have been selected and
adjustments have been made to account for any difference in
factors such as location and property size.

N2023F 202412 A31H - NEBHER
HEZEEENEEEERERMIEES
EED Pl AARE128,879,000 T A R
475,771,0007T ©

S BTG EEEE TR IR
ERNTAIBERABE (F=BR)RARE

Bt E (HEEARE) © HFIUEEEEER

BER/RE  MEAABEIZEMS2EE
RERGEEHEERAEEEMNNER &
R T BEENRRSRREER - AREEFE
PATERNEA T BRBAEREMSHEE
Bif - BEBRZEVEARNE=EEMR - £
REELEBAMERMGEERN - K2EREMHS
FRIAMEERS - CEBRONFELRY
¥ U EMDEERSARNTAERE
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12 EAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by LB EERE SR AEEERTDSE
class of underlying asset is as follows: pax il N

Warehouse Land use
Property  equipment right Total
L3 BERE THERE as

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TR AR¥TR
) (i (i)

Cost: {7 :

At July 1, 2023 742023F7A1H 1,157,349 10,791 1,782,410 2,950,550
Additions F& 622,913 - - 622,913
Derecognition #& IE#EF2 (113,564) (143) - (113,707)
Exchange adjustments &= % (14,294) - - (14,294)
At December 31, 2023 74202312 H31H 1,652,404 10,648 1,782,410 3,445,462
Additions /K& 2,093,794 - - 2,093,794
Derecognition #& IF &2 (367,834) (10,648) - (378,482)
Exchange adjustments [ &A% 3,820 - - 3,820
At December 31, 2024 }A2024%F12 831 H 3,382,184 - 1,782,410 5,164,594
Accumulated depreciation: 5H37E :

At July 1, 2023 12023F7A1H (306,822) (7,436) (75,739) (389,997)
Charge for the period HiA 3z H (215,399) (1,784) (22,604) (239,787)
Derecognition #& IE#E:2 79,886 48 = 79,934
Exchange adjustments B &% 5,248 = = 5,248
At December 31, 2023 }42023%F 12 A31H (437,087) 9,172) (98,343) (544,602)
Charge for the year A H (637,772) (1,478) (45,212) (684,462)
Derecognition #& IE#ER2 227,072 10,650 - 237,722
Exchange adjustments [E =% (1,169) - - (1,169)
At December 31, 2024 7A2024F12H31H (848,956) - (143,555)  (992,511)
Impairment: (& :

At July 1, 2023 1R2023%F781H (7,953) - - (7,953)
Derecognition #& IE#ER 7,858 - - 7,858
Exchange adjustments [&E =% 95 - - 95

At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024
FA2023F12 31 H X 2024F12A831H - - - -

Net book value: BRI E{E :

At December 31, 2023 74202312 A31H 1,215,317 1,476 1,684,067 2,900,860
At December 31, 2024 782024512 H31H 2,533,228 - 1,638,855 4,172,083
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 12 FRHEEE (8)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognized BN ERAERNEERBENHAZIAR S0
in profit or loss is as follows: e

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

#HZE20234F HZE2024F
12 A31H 12H831H
LE7NEA IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000
NS e ARBTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

RHREERRSsNEREEERESEM !

Property #1% 215,399 637,772
Warehouse equipment & EE:% & 1,784 1,478
Land use right =+ Hfi{# F# 22,604 45,212

239,787 684,462
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8) T & & E&F & (HIFE8) 25,112 91,623

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with
remaining lease term ending on or before December 31

H15G BATE & R FISATEEARN 12 A31 B Z RIS R H A EAERARI F 2 13,729 75,755
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Rt AHEAETENFTZBERNK 24,802 47,314
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HERS ML BENFENHEHEAENEIR Y
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 18(c) and T BB AT 52 18(c) FFT 5E21 »

Note 21, respectively.
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12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(il

(iv)

Property - right-of-use assets

The Group leases properties for its self-operated stores,
warehouse storage and office space. The leases of
self-operated stores and warehouse storage typically run for
two to twelve years. Leases of offices space typically run for a
period of two to five years.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2024, right-of-use assets related
to leased properties for self-operated stores amounted to
RMB998,032,000 and RMB2,264,064,000, respectively.

Variable lease payments based on sales

Some leases of self-operated stores contain variable lease
payments, which typically range from 1% to 18% of the annual
or monthly sales that each store makes in excess of a certain
breakpoint predetermined with landlord. These terms are
common in retail stores in countries such as United states,
Canada and Singapore where the Group operates.

Warehouse equipment - right-of-use assets
The Group leases warehouse equipment, with lease terms of
two to three years.

Land use right

The Group acquired the land use right of a parcel of land
located in the PRC through the acquisition of a subsidiary, with
an original lease term of 40 years.

Rental deposits

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of the lease
payments and is in the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the rental
deposit should be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the initial fair value and the nominal
value of the deposit is an additional lease payment made by the
Group and it is included in the measurement of the right-of-use
assets.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

12 FRHEEE (8)

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

ME—-EREEE

AEBRBERLE  RERIRSHEEY
¥ - BEERAENHERRER2E12F -
WGP HE BT R2E55F o

N2023F 2202412 A31H - HEHEZE
HEMERBENEAREED A AARE
998,032,000t & A R #2,264,064,0007T °

ERHERN A ZHENR
ETELENENBSTEEENT K2
EBRENTNESERFRAHEESHEXT
BEBENRE DR ZSHEN1%E18% °
BLBEREARELEMENEE - 2K
A SERRNTEEPRER

RERE-EREEE
AEEHEERERE  HH/2E3F -

b A
AEBBRBEE-—FKMBARESTART
BRI In(E e - REHIR405F -

HERS
RENEEREAGTERBEEMN RN —
BB - MEBNCERMFREEL) F5R
MEE - Bt - HERSEREVIGERER
ARABEFE - MR EERREERE
BEzHNZEAAEEXNNEIBEN
R HBDIAEREEENES
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

13 HhRE
As at December 31,
Mm12H318
2023 2024
20244
RMB’000
ARET T

13 OTHER INVESTMENTS

20234

RMB’000
ARBF T

Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
UAARBEREEESBHAEHESNEREE !
Non-current JERE)

— Investment in an unlisted limited partnership enterprise (i)

- EETARABEEREI) 90,603 123,399

Current 78

— Investments in trust investment schemes (i) 15L& & 5T 8112 E (i) 202,866 -

— Investment in a wealth management product (iii) ¥ &7 2 & 1% & (iii) 50,000 -

— Investment in structured deposit (iv) 1% & & #E 1417 3 (iv) - 100,000
252,866 100,000
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In June 2023, the Group invested in an unlisted limited
partnership enterprise (the “Partnership Enterprise”)
with consideration of USD10,409,000 (equivalent
to RMB73,870,000). The Partnership Enterprise is
specialized in equity investment. According to the
partnership agreement, the Partnership Enterprise is
managed by its general partner. The Group participates
in the Partnership Enterprise as one of the limited
partners who does not have power on selection nor
removal of assets manager or general partner of the
Partnership Enterprise. In addition, the Group does
not have any right on making operating, investing
and financing decision of the Partnership Enterprise.
The director is of the opinion that the Group does not
have any control nor significant influence to affect the
variable returns through its investment in the Partnership
Enterprise, and the investment’s contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, therefore, this investment
is accounted for as a financial asset measured at FVTPL.
The Group has an intention of holding such investment
as a long-term investment.

M2023F6 A AEEKRE —RIEEL
MERGRELE([EBLE]) @ ¥
/410,409,000 T (FHE N ARE
73,870,0007T) - A B EEPIEEAE
K& - RIBEAEHE 6BLERAEY
BABAEE - A£EBEEABREEA
Z—2HEERLE  MERABRAEE
BESREABRLENEETEASY
BEBA - I AEEERERER
TENEE KRERMERIK - EF2R
B AEETETREHEREATE
7 BBERABLEZRATED
#olw BRENAGHNBESREWLIEE
AEYNAERAEBEAESNFE @ Bt
ZIBEWINANARBETELESE
HAARHBERNEREE - AEEEE
BEZEREERBIKRE -
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13 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

(ii)

In December 2020, the Group invested in a trust
investment scheme (“Trust Scheme A”) established and
managed by a trust company as the trustee with the
principal of RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment
period of within one year. The Group subsequently
extended the investment period to November 2023.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Trust Scheme A is
designated to make the majority of its investments
in debt securities, while the principal and return of
the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as of June 30, 2023 was estimated to be
RMB101,600,000. As of December 31, 2023, the above
investment in Trust Scheme A has been redeemed.

In July 2021, the Group invested in another trust
investment scheme (“Trust Scheme B”) established
and managed by a trust company as the trustee
with the principal of RMB100,000,000 and an initial
investment period of within one year. The Group
subsequently extended the investment period to
January 2024. Pursuant to the agreement, the Trust
Scheme B is designated to make the majority of its
investments in debt securities, while the principal and
return of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value
of this investment as of June 30, 2023 and December
31, 2023 was estimated to be RMB103,729,000,
RMB101,437,000, respectively. As of December 31,
2024, the above investment in Trust Scheme B has been
redeemed.

In July 2023, the Group invested in another trust
investment scheme (“Trust Scheme C”) established and
managed by a trust company as the trustee with the
principal of RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment
period of within six months. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Trust Scheme C is designated to make the majority
of its investments in debt securities and funds, while
the principal and return of the investment are not
guaranteed. Fair value of this investment as of December
31, 2023 was estimated to be RMB101,429,000. As
of December 31, 2024, the above investment in Trust
Scheme C has been redeemed.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

13 HiRE (&)

(i)

M2020F12 8 + AEERER —KE
FARE (EAZFREAN)RLKEREMNET
BEE ([EETEIAD) - EAS2 B A
R ¥100,000,0007C ' #RIEEHR A
—FUA - BERASEBBIREHRIER
£2023F11 8 - IRIEZE W - E50aT
BAEERBOTRENERES - Mk
BEHAE R EHRERE - ZINEHE
2023F6 A0 BM AR BEMGTAAR
#:101,600,0007T ° #Z£2023F12 A 31
B - s SANRADHIER -

R2021F7 A AEEREN—RIET
REl(EAXTEAN)RINKERENS —1H
LI ERTEI([{E5E5T8IB)) - EA %
A AFR#100,000,0007T © #IEEEHIR
B—FLAR - BB ANEE R E BRE
RKZE2024%F1 A - REZWZE @ 55EaT
EBEERIBAORENREHRES - Mk
BRARE REHMAERE - ZIREHE
202346 A30H 2202312 31 HHY
ARAEEMETSRIAARK103,729,000
7T - AR#¥101,437,0007T ° E E2024
F12H318 ' L5 E8IBMIRERE
WEE D o

M2023F7H « AEEKENR —RI=5
2E(EAZFEAN)RILEENS —IA
LR &8I ([{E5E5T8IC)) - HAX S
A AR #100,000,0007T © FIIAEHAMR
BANEANA o RIEZWZE - (55518
CEEARANBENEBELFRES -
MTERNAS REIRRERE - ZIRE
HZE2023F12 A31 B A EBEGET
ABAR101,429,0007T ° & = 2024 F
12A31 8 » L5 8ICHIREE#
BE[ -
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

13 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

(i)

(iv)

On December 26, 2023, the Group invested in a wealth
management product managed by a bank in the PRC,
with the principal amount of RMB50,000,000, which
is with an original maturity of 35 days. The underlying
investment portfolio of the wealth management product
mainly includes money market instruments and other
financial instruments with fixed return. The principal
and return of the investment in the wealth management
product are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as at December 31, 2023 is estimated to be
RMB50,000,000. As of December 31, 2024, all wealth
management products have been redeemed.

In December 2024, the Group invested in structured
deposit managed by a bank in the PRC with the
principal guaranteed amounting to RMB100,000,000.
This structured deposit is redeemable every seven days
and the investment return is settled every seven days.
Investment return of the structured deposit is calculated
at variable rates determined by reference to intermediate
rates of Euro against US dollar.

Information about the Group’s fair value measurement is
included in Note 24(e).

14 INVENTORIES

13 Hfhig& (48)
(i) 7 2023F12H26H » REFKERFH
E—RFTEENEMER  KE&ABA
R #50,000,0007T * #48 EARR A35K o
BYEMNABREESEITEREE
MEITAREMESETRBNEHMT
B o B ERNIRE RS & B ARER
E o B HE2023F12 A1 BHIA
RBEGFT A ARES50,000,0007T © &
Z2024F12A31H - B EEEE
AR A o

(iv) 72024F12H @ AREBERERBAFE—
XETEENEBETER  HAS AR
#5100,000,000 TLIEIRTE © %A BT
AIg7HER - WECHRES7TALEE - &
BUTRNEELRIZELERITAET
P AR ERETRZBFETE -

ERAAREERAARBETENERI N
24(g) °

14 FE&

As at December 31,

Mm12H318
2023 2024
20234 2024 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEEF I AR¥T T
Finished goods R 1,917,133 2,742,092
Low-value consumables K18 5 & 5,108 8,297
1,922,241 2,750,389
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e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

14 INVENTORIES (continued) 14 78 (&)
(@ The analysis of the amount of inventories (a CERABMIZHETTABENEFESR
recognized as an expense and included in profit or HOMWMT -

loss is as follows:

For the six For the

months ended year ended

December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

HZ=2023F B 220245

12 A31H 1L/~ EA 12831 HILEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT T AREET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold & X7 E 2 BRE & 58 4,290,874 9,074,490
Write-down of inventories ¥ &Ji{E 1,932 25,053

Cost of inventories recognized in consolidated statements of
profit or loss
RiFEERRPRANTFERAR 4,292,806 9,099,543
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 B RHEMERKE

As at December 31,

M®12831H
2023

20234

RMB’000
AREFIT

Non-current 3£ &b

2024
20244
RMB’000
ARET T

Trade receivables & 5 fEUGIE 18,045 14,653

Less: loss allowance J& : &85 & (433) (18)

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance (jii)

B 5 WA (FORR B 1R R ) (i) 17,612 14,635

Amounts due from related parties f& U B85 75 ZUB 27(c) 10,760 16,708

Deposits & & 81,153 193,810

Prepayments for lease T &8~ 7 H - 72,000

Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable

FriEgER ([HRED]) 26,271 44,135

135,796 341,288

Current 7B

Trade receivables & 5 FEW K1 504,938 742,622

Less: loss allowance J @ E518# & (78,001) (67,699)

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

B 2 EUGRIR (MR EEREE) 426,937 674,923

Amounts due from related parties f&4 B85 7 ZUB 27(c) 27,836 45,424

Miscellaneous expenses paid on behalf of franchisees

WIIEEGEFRNENE I 336,497 642,073

VAT recoverable 13 EF 251,162 208,221

Rental deposits THE 1% & 98,141 71,001

Receivables due from online payment platforms

and banks (i)

JEWTE AR A7 & R BRITFRIE (i) 103,406 77,990

Prepayments for inventories 17 & 78 (< 18 51,084 73,538

Prepayments for licensing expenses 1% & & 718 43,996 65,040

Prepayments for promotion and advertising expenses

fie $4 K B 5 B < FR N 5RR 11,577 30,349

Prepayments for repurchase of shares [@8& (D T8 ZIE 87,324 70,518

Others Hfth 80,397 247,936
1,518,357 2,207,013
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e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 ESRHEMBYRIE (&)
(continued)

Notes: 5T

@)

(ii)

(i)

Receivables due from online payment platforms and banks
mainly represented the proceeds of online sales through
e-commerce platforms collected by and retained in third-party
online payment platforms. Withdrawal of the balances retained
in online payment platforms could be made anytime upon the
Group’s instructions. The amounts also included those due
from banks for offline sales made through customer credit/
debit cards and other online payment platforms that require
overnight processing by the collection banks.

All of trade and other receivables classified as current portion
are expected to be recovered or recognized as expense within
one year.

Trade receivables relating to certain sales of fixtures to
franchisees are collected by installments within the periods
ranging from 18 to 38 months and the portion which is
expected to be recovered after one year are classified as non-
current. All other trade debtors are due within 30 to 180 days
from the date of revenue recognition for domestic and overseas
customers respectively.

(ii)

EREENTERRTHEIZ/AE=
FERINFEEBREFRENEHER T A
REMEMSHIE - RERERIMNFAL
MREE R IRIBA R B RERER - 252
BENBERBREFPERR /BT RREME
BT BEITAR T SR EUERIT A -
ZE P IRT RUGRIRT TR TR IR

AR ARBE D K E 5 N H At FE Y RIRTE
FHE—F AR EI KRR

HEMEEEEE TREMBEENE S E
Wk IER 18 £ 3816 A HAR A 4 BRUKER + T8
HER —FRIEEINI S DB AIETE -
ARBINE R HME 5B I iE
R 2 BE30E 180K N EIH] »
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EZRHEHMEWRIE (B)
(continued)
Aging analysis BRile AT
As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of HESWREHR - ERNERAHRINREER
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss BEE SRWFIERERTOT ¢

allowance, is as follows:

As at December 31,
Mm12 8318

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
INES: S ARBF T

Non-current portion FE7R B 282

Within 90 days 90K 11,187 1,093
91 to 180 days 91180k 6,425 3,536
181 to 360 days 181 % 360K = 4,779
361 to 540 days 361 £540& = 5,076
Over 540 days #i8540K - 151

17,612 14,635

Current portion R E#8 5

Within 90 days 90X 367,560 508,247
91 to 180 days 91180k 51,516 119,343
181 to 360 days 181 %360k 7,327 34,987
361 to 540 days 361 £540:X 229 10,837
Over 540 days #8540 K 305 1,509

426,937 674,923
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e B RS IR AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 RERRESEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: ReRRELEEYERE
As at December 31,
M12A318
2023 2024
20234 20244
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AREET T
Cash on hand F3EIR & 783 4,465
Cash at bank $E1 717K 6,414,658 6,323,656

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position and in the consolidated statements of cash flows
FEPMBARRMGEEERERINTNRE LIRS EHEY 6,415,441 6,328,121

17 RESTRICTED CASH 17 ZRERE

As at December 31,
M®12H31H

2023 2024

20234 2024 £

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FIT AR#F T

Bank deposits held in an escrow bank account (i)

FEERITERSHFANRITENR 4,462 1,026
Bank deposits frozen for legal proceedings
L EFAM RGN RITIFK 3,508 -
7,970 1,026
Note: IS
()  The balance represented cash held in an escrow bank (i) ZEBRERTEIERTEFEENES
account in the PRC with designated usage of settlement with EERSAENERETER

franchisees.
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

18 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@)

186 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Reconciliation of profit for the reporting period to
cash generated from operations:

18 WEFRER

HEHRFE
iR

B 4%

s =

ERERENY

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
#HZE20234F HZE2024 45
12H31H 12A31H
LEREA LEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ARBT T
Profit for the period/year i F R F;E 1,256,077 2,635,428
Adjustments for: &L LA N =188 -
Interest on lease liabilities 1 & & &7 & 8 25,112 91,623
Depreciation and amortization 78 K # $5 6 285,241 808,694
Interest on loans and borrowings & Z 5 &2 & 8 90 1,292
Interest income FI| .U A 8 (123,969) (118,672)
Investment income from other investments
Hibir B E W= 7 (14,281) (81,145)
Net change in fair value of other investments
HRE QAN BEZEFHE 7 (14,270) (29,930)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
HENZE - BERZEUREFEENEE 7 1,632 2,534
Impairment loss on non-current assets
FEMBEEREEE 4,547 8,846
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
EIIMNE (W), EE (25,410) 8,258
Effect of lease contract cancellation BUSTE & & [FH 5 £ (4,821) (15,201)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries iz & [{& A al fy Uz - (8,759)
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
AR EARM IR E A RINFE - B FRE (268) (5,986)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
AR s s E R D AT IR 2 6 46,432 85,184
Income tax FT5%i 9(a) 396,665 712,104
Changes in working capital: & & & ¢ &8
Inventories 7 & (471,722) (828,148)
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E fth fE Y5k 1E (316,534) (836,820)
Contract liabilities & 418 (& 25,341 (6,545)
Trade and other payables & 5 K H1th & ZE 363,327 561,422
Restricted cash X R §I3 & 19,103 6,944
Deferred income JEIEY 75 (3,985) 4,486
Cash generated from operations L& Fi5H & 1,448,307 2,995,609
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18 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

At July 1, 2023 A202357H1H

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

18 REREH (FF)
(b) BEEBHEEABENLHR

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total

ERKER  EAFNE HEAE L

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Note 21
B EE21

7,215 269 885,734 893,218

Changes from financing cash flows: Bl & H &R &g :

Payment of capital element and interest element of
lease liabilities

XNHEERBENEARE S A SED

- - (236,519)  (236,519)

Total changes from financing cash flows
MERSTEBER

- - (236,519)  (236,519)

Exchange adjustments [E&RF&

44 - (21,071) (21,027)

Other changes: E % 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new
leases during the period
HAWRT AT E & & E3E N
Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition
RIFEREHEEa ERD
Increase in interest expenses | & 517 # N

= = 622,916 622,916

_ - (30,867) (30,867)
_ 90 25,112 25,202

Total other changes E th Z Eh4E %8

= 90 617,161 617,251

At December 31, 2023 42023F 12831 H

7,259 359 1,245,305 1,252,923
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

18 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 18 REREHR ()
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETEFELEEENWHER (&

activities: (continued)

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
BERRER EARE HEaE &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%Tx AR¥TR AR¥TxR
Note 21
Ffizt21

At January 1, 2024 4202451811 7,259 359 1,245,305 1,252,923

Changes from financing cash flows:

RMERESRBE
Proceeds from loans and borrowings from third party
KBEE=TERREROAEFIR 563,800 - - 563,800
Repayment of loans and borrowings &1 Bk & &7k (718) - - (718)
Payment of capital element and interest element of
lease liabilities 2 {J7H & & EHE AR5 FF| S E 5 - - (725,075)  (725,075)
Total changes from financing cash flows
MERSMEBER 563,082 - (725,075)  (161,993)
Exchange adjustments [E RF®& (76) - (14,885) (14,961)

Other changes: Hftt & &) :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new
leases during the period

HAET S A E A EIg N - - 2,093,794 2,093,794

Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition

BILFEREHMHEES BR - - (152,268)  (152,268)

Increase in interest expenses |5 5757 0 1,000 292 91,623 92,915
Total other changes B th & &) 42 %A 1,000 292 2,033,149 2,034,441
At December 31, 2024 7420245128311 571,265 651 2,538,494 3,110,410
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

18 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 18 BERER (&)
(c) Total cash out flow for leases: (c) HERSRLHERE:

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

HZE2023F HZE2024F

12 A31 B I/~ E A 12331 HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR¥ET T

Within operating cash flows

EENCEIRER (38,531) (123,069)
Within financing cash flows
FERRMERESR (236,519) (725,075)
(275,050) (848,144)
19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 19 ERERMER

As at December 31,
MR12H31H

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
VNS S ARBF T

Non-current liabilities JERE) & &
Borrowings from a non-controlling interest shareholder
KB IR i s AR A K 6,533 4,310

Current liabilities & & &
Current portion of borrowings from a non-controlling interest shareholder

KB TR SRR ERARENE S 726 2,155
Other borrowings (i) EAhE5R() - 564,800
726 566,955
()  During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group obtained () BZE2024F12A31HILFE  AEEES
certain bank facilities repayable in form of letters of credit to a ETHRITEE  UWERABEERAR—BRTE
bank with aggregate amounts of RMB575,578,000 and interest B el a AR¥S575,578,0007T
rate ranging from 2.066% to 2.2%. The letters of credit have a F2.066%E2.2% 7 [E ° 122024F12 A31
maturity less than 12 months as at December 31, 2024. H - ERZENIHERAR12EA -
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 EFRHMENKIEA

As at December 31,
Mm12H318

2023 2024

20234 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
NS i i ARBT T

Non-current 357 B
Payable relating to construction projects #8E87E % H B FE(S 5E 12,411 59,842

Current i B

Trade payables & 5 &+ 71H 855,914 1,278,535
Payroll payable fEff T & 166,079 148,352
Accrued expenses fExHFI S 309,951 375,588
Other taxes payable E i f& (< £ 18 43,850 58,899
Deposits #& 1,782,181 1,839,844
Payable relating to leasehold improvements 18 B30 & & & fE {7118 59,653 93,514
Payable relating to construction projects 18848 B FE 5/ 1E 33,051 25,579
Amounts due to related parties (Note 27(c)) FE1 B8 75 ZE (M 5E27(c)) 7,334 8,123
Others EAh 131,813 115,554
3,389,826 3,943,988
Information about the Group’s exposure to currency and FAREEEENEEFRBRERAE S
liquidity risks is included in Note 24. RiFE24 -
The credit period granted by suppliers is 30 to 90 days. HERKE THEERAS0EI0RK -
Deposits received from suppliers, distributors and franchisees BHRER - RIEFMNERKREIRNRES A A
may be repayable to suppliers, distributors and franchisees E—FREZTHER - RESAMINER - F7
after more than one year. All of the other trade payables, BEME FEMNFIE - HAERNFIE - BEHIE
other payables, accruals and amounts due to related parties B e B S SN M SR TR E—F
or franchisees are expected to be settled within one year or NEB R EEKEE o

are repayable on demand.
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 20 5 Kb EIE (&)

Aging analysis R DT
As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of HESMERR  ERNBEHHRELNESE
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NFRIBZREBRATAT -

As at December 31,

®12 8318
2023 2024
20234 2024 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARET T
Within 1 month —1{& A A 795,416 1,203,435
1 to 3 months — & =1& A 42,183 54,490
3 months to 1 year =@ A Z—4 8,296 14,210
Over 1 year —F A £ 10,019 6,400
855,914 1,278,535
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21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HERE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TREJIAEEHERENSHREARNKT
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting BHEIEBER
periods:

As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2024
2023%12 A31H 12024 12H31H
Present value Present value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHEE 5 REES RIEHES
B E TR AR NRBRE ES L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AREFRT ARKEBTRT AREBTT

Within 1 year —F AR 447,319 457,747 635,357 652,942
After 1 year but within 2 years —F&{ERER 373,712 403,679 623,330 667,829
After 2 years but within 5 years WE& 1B A FR 350,181 399,187 806,325 947,046
After 5 years LA+ 74,093 102,502 473,482 682,653

797,986 905,368 1,903,137 2,297,528

1,245,305 1,363,115 2,538,494 2,950,470

Less: total future interest expenses J& : 7 K Fl| 8 5 37 4258 (117,810) (411,976)
Present value of lease liabilities 1 & & {E3R & 1,245,305 2,538,494
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22 BXR#E
(@) Share capital and additional paid-in capital (@ BEREARQIE
As at December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company MR20234F K2024F12A31H » AR
authorized 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares, with a par A)E ##10,000,000,000 % & % &
value of USD0.00001 each. 0.00001 ZETTHY & EAR
As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, analysis of the H E2023F 22024F 12 H31H * AR
Company’s issued shares including treasury shares A E 1T (BIERRMDBEET SR
reserved for the share incentive plan, was as follows: BREFR) ST -

As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2024

M2023%12A31H 72024512H31H
Number of Share Number of Share
shares capital shares capital
BB EE &N R & E ;S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥T T

Ordinary shares @R 1,263,689,685 95 1,249,871,833 94

(i) During the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the (i) HZ=2023F12 A31 B IENEAREZE
year ended December 31, 2024, 636,608 and 2,320,360 202412 A31HILFE + 636,608%
of restricted shares, restricted shares units and options 12,320,360 88 Z R Hl A% {5 - SZBR il A%
were vested and exercised, and were released from BN RERECHEERITE - WHE
treasury shares into ordinary shares. FRinhE LB -

(i)  During the year ended December 31, 2024, 13,817,852 iy #HZE2024F12831HILEFE  ER
shares were cancelled under 2023 and 2024 share %2023 22024 F R0 fE B+ EIFE 88
repurchase program (see Note 22(b)(v)). 13,817,852 k%19 (R HizE22(b) (v)) °

(i)  As at December 31, 2023 and 2024, among the ordinary @iy  72023F K2024F12A31H - £ &2
shares issued, 20,356,896 and 15,878,028 shares BITHEBERA 20,356,896 18 &
were recognized as treasury shares (see Note 22(b)(v)), 15,878,028 R E » Rl ER REF
respectively. &t (RMFE22(b)(V)) °
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

194 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Nature and purposes of reserves

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve mainly represents the
difference between the consideration paid and
the paid-in capital acquired arising from business
combinations involving entities under common
control.

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
portion of the grant date fair value of restricted
shares, share options and restricted share units
granted to the key management personnel and
employees of the Group that has been recognized
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in Note 2(q)(iii).

PRC statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the subsidiaries which
are established in the PRC. The subsidiaries
being wholly foreign-owned enterprise or wholly
domestic-owned enterprises, are required to
allocate at least 10% of its net profits to a statutory
surplus reserve. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders can be made.

PRC statutory reserve can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to their existing
equity holdings, provided that the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such transfer is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

22 BEXRKf#HE ()

(b) f#EfE
@i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MMERER

BB
BHFEEERER—EH TEES
PR ERREMNERER
TR ZERE ©

BEGHRE
BEFEEERERINRBMBHR
REERFBINEERE -

PV EE S e
DRI AR (B R B R IRE AR
R RE2(c) i) B A BR D B2
TR B 3 BRTIRRE T
AREBREEARREROER
B - B R R R B
MIET ARABEDS -

FEEELES
FERZEAEEZIRIEFEC(AA
SR ) FFE AP BBk Sz B0 BT 8 X Bl AR
BERRBRIMRL - B RRR
SNBELEIANERERE - A
WAKEFMEHNZE D 10% 2B
EEREBBRARE - BEELER
BATRE VBT RERBIR D IR
BZAIES -

REIAE RTEE A AR WA AEF
EHER(E)  RARERAR
RELGIEBRER - BERERRD
EEBHRATES BN ER M
BEREN25% ©
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(v)

Treasury shares

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was administered
by twelve special purpose vehicles, and the Group
has the power to govern the relevant activities of
the twelve special purpose vehicles and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees
who were awarded with the shares under 2020
Share Incentive Plan, therefore, the twelve special
purpose vehicles were consolidated.

The balance of treasury shares mainly include
the considerations received from special purpose
vehicles for unvested and forfeited restricted
shares, and the cost of the Company’s shares held
by the Group.

On September 15, 2023, the board of directors
authorized a new share repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up
to USD200 million of its shares within a period of
12 months starting from September 15, 2023 (the
“2023 Share Repurchase Program”).

During the six months ended December 31,
2023, the Company repurchased 1,450,108
ordinary shares on the New York Stock Exchange
and 708,400 ordinary shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the 2023 Share
Repurchase Programs for total considerations of
USD6,981,000 (equivalent to RMB49,630,000) and
HKD26,290,000 (equivalent to RMB23,930,000),
respectively.

On August 30, 2024, the board of directors
authorized a new share repurchase program under
which the Company may repurchase up to HKD2
billion of its shares within a period of 12 months
starting from August 30, 2024 (the “2024 Share
Repurchase Program”).

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

22 EXKfHE(E)
(b) REHNEEREH ()
v) E=FEK
2020 F 1D Bt £ 12 R Bk
BERARERE  AEBEHZI12K
Bk B A RIMIEREBI A B ES
¥ BAIARE 2020 F B BB
STEER M E T HE TS
&= A#EZ12XK 5% B AR

A -

ERRMEHTERBRENSHKE M
NS EIES S Y8 R-E GO
IR EEHE - ARAEERFED
ARBIBADEIRAS

MN2023F9A15H  EEGIRME
—IEFR B EBREE - B AR
AR E2023F9 A15 AT AI12
EABM AT EE & %2008 &X7T
BIR% D ([2023 F %A BB EIETEI]) -

HZE2023F12 A31BIENEA -
NRFR R 2023 FE D HEE A2
EHKBARR 5 FIEE1,450,108
IR B AR DA R 7 B B B A PR B
708,400 L3@A% - Y EH
£6,981,000E T (HHERARE
49,630,0007T) 526,290,000 7T
(FHEM AR¥23,930,0007T) °

N2024F8H30H  EEEHERE
—IEFRR A BB RIETE Bt - AR
RN E20244F8 A30H#ETAI12
& B HAR a] B B & % 2018 B T &Y
B (2024 FRE BB ]) -

2024FFHRE o BAER 195




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22 EXRKREE(E)
(b) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued) (b) FHEHOMERER (E)
(v) Treasury shares (continued) (v) EEFERGE)
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the B ZE2024F12 A1 HIEFE - K
Company repurchased ordinary shares under the A AEIERE 2023 F £ 2024 F % 1n
2023 and 2024 Share Repurchase Program as BRI EIEO @R T - Mm%
follows, and the cost of these shares held by the BB ZERG K AT AEFR
Group was recorded in treasury shares: -

Shares repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange  Shares repurchased on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RENEER S FEERSD REEBRMEERG
Number of Highest Lowest Number of Highest Lowest
shares  pricepaid price paid  Aggregate shares  price paid price paid  Aggregate
repurchased  pershare  pershare  price paid repurchased pershare pershare price paid

AERRG RERRH AERRG RERRH
FrE B30 F30:] y FrEI S30:] i BXAH
RA#A BEE BI5E L BEE  BEE afg
HKD'000
E ; AT T
January 2024 202451 8 1,018,400 5.00 4.28 4,845 1,055,200 33.45 31.00 34,357
February 2024 20242 A - - - - 175,000 34.00 33.70 5,939
July 2024 20247 A 701,740 450 4.14 3,118 2,300,800 35.10 32.05 78,625
September 2024 20249 A 3,741,404 4,07 3.21 13,945 2,466,000 31.75 22.90 67,558
October 2024 20245108 200,800 4,07 3.75 m - - - -
Total B3 5,662,344 22,679 5,997,000 186,479
Equivalent to RMB'000
SEARBEET T 160,687 169,534
Under the 2023 and 2024 Share Repurchase BHE2023 F 2024 F ik H B[l
Program, 6,705,400 shares repurchased on the & HE2024F12A318
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and 7,112,452 shares RE BB R AT 6,705,400 %
repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange A& 10 K TE 4t 49 38 % 32 5) B 1B B Y
were cancelled as of December 31, 2024. 7,112,452 I EL 58 o
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base to maintain investors, creditors and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. There were no changes in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the reporting
periods. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

Dividends

During the six months ended December 31, 2023, final
dividends of USDO0.103 per ordinary share, amounting
to USD128,758,000 (equivalent to RMB923,664,000),
in respect of the year ended June 30, 2023, were
declared and paid by the Company. The dividends were
distributed from additional paid-in capital.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, special
cash dividends of USD0.0725 per ordinary share and
interim cash dividends of USD0.0686 per ordinary
share, amounting to USD90,635,000 (equivalent to
RMB643,176,000) and USD85,221,000 (equivalent
to RMB601,075,000), were declared and paid by
the Company. The dividends were distributed from
additional paid-in capital.

Final dividends of USD0.0817 per ordinary share,
amounting to approximately USD101.4 million, were
proposed and approved by the board of directors
of the Company on March 21, 2025. The dividends
will be distributed from additional paid-in capital. The
declaration of the final dividends is a non-adjusting
event after the reporting period and have not been
recognized as liabilities as of December 31, 2024.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

22 EXRNf#HE ()

(©

BEXEE

AEERERNIEERBEERNAA
ARERD - REBHBRZAERTRAN
BEARERE  AERIRESE  BRART
BIEL  MERFEBHRRER - RR
SHE AEENEAEE AW EE
B - AEEEBERITMAINDRIMNNE

BRE

HZE2023F12 A31HIEAEA » &AAQ
AIE IR MR E E2023F6 A308 |4
ERRAMR S FREMAR0.1033E T -
H5H128,758,000E T (HHE R AR
923,664,0007T) ° WEBFHEARNTEF
DK °

HZE2024F12831HIEFE » AR
AIERMEMFNREKREGRE R
f50.0725 % T R ER R BEERE
#P%0.0686% T © #£590,635,000
EZT(HENAR643,176,0007T)
85,221,000k L (HER AR
601,075,0007T) ° EBHEARQTEF
DK °

M2025%63A21 0 EEeEEWIE
RHARSE B AL EA%0.0817F T © 5
H10148BET - REBREALTESD
DIk - EEREIEEHREIHENIER
BEF - HEZE2024F12 A31 Bk
WHERABAE -
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 23 URERGEENRMG XA

PAYMENTS

The Group has adopted share-based compensation
arrangements to incentivize outstanding performance.
Pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended in
June 2022, restricted shares, options, restricted share units
or other approved awards may be granted to the Group’s
employees, directors, and consultants.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024, the
maximum aggregate number of shares that could be issued
under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan was 98,773,684.

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan will remain in effect for a period
of 103 months, commencing on January 7, 2020, unless
terminated earlier by the Company’s board of directors.

(@) Share options
In January and September 2020, the board of directors
approved the grants of share options to purchase
Shares of the Company to certain employees of the
Group.

Each of 20% of the options granted will vest on the 1st
trading day following each of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th and
5th anniversary of the grant date, respectively, on the
condition that employees remain in service without any
performance requirements. The options lapse on the
tenth anniversary of the grant date.

REBERMARD BEBROFT ML - A
BN RIR o B IE2020F %10 BB AT Rl (A
2022F6 A{&5])  AKEREE - EENE
BIAERZ R HIAD - BB - RSN E
Sk E Ath A HEE HEED o

72023412 8318 K&2024F12 8318 * 1R
E2020 F 0 BB ET IRl BITHR D R 42
81 /598,773,684% °

BRIERNREFTSRAINKIL - TRI2020F %
DR ETEI¥E B 2020F1 A7 HFEWBAR - B
WERA10318A o

(a) HERHE
R2020F1 AR » EFSHERTE
BFLLETHEE N AIRMDAEEIRE -

ElR T & 20% B9 B B HE R 0 B R R
TEBMNE— £ 5= FORSE
hBFENE—EXZARE - AR
BENEBEMRRARENEBERTREE
B BRERNE T B HRFERRM
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 23 LigESEENRG N (&)
PAYMENTS (continued)
(@) Share options (continued) (@) BRE(E)
The option activities during the six months ended B Z2023F 12 A31 HIEANAA REBZE
December 31, 2023 and the year ended December 31, 202412 31 A IEFERERESE
2024 are summarized as follows: BEaian T -

Weighted-average  Weighted-average
Number of exercise price grant date fair value
options USD per share USD per share

RTAHN
Bk MEFITHEE MEFHLREE

g2 2755 27510

Outstanding at July 1, 2023

202357 B1BRTHE 5,701,396 0.036 3.72
Exercised B1T{# (427,492) 0.036 4.20
Forfeited %1 (104,800) 0.036 4.74

Outstanding at December 31,2023
%2023F12 531 B R1TE 5,169,104 0.036 3.66

Exercisable at December 31, 2023

M2023F12 A31 HAI{TE 2,237,104 0.036 3.57
Non-vested at December 31, 2023
202312 A31 BREE 2,932,000 0.036 3.73

Outstanding at January 1, 2024

R202451 A1 BR1THRE 5,169,104 0.036 3.66
Exercised 217{# (1,040,440) 0.036 3.82
Forfeited )24 (221,200) 0.036 3.95

Outstanding at December 31, 2024
R2024F12 831 B K1TE 3,907,464 0.036 3.61

Exercisable at December 31, 2024

202412 H31 AAITT{E 2,585,464 0.036 3.54
Non-vested at December 31, 2024

R2024F12 A31 BRFE 1,322,000 0.036 3.73
Total compensation expense calculated based on the HZE2023F12 A31HIEANEAREE
grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture rate 202412 A31HIEFE « gt EMllE T
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit rEEEINEREMS @ REXLH
or loss for the above options granted to the Group’s NABEERGEERREROGHEL
employees were RMB7,593,000 and RMB5,879,000 for WERAEMEHWNA L RED R B AR
the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the year 7,593,000 T & A R#5,879,0007T °

ended December 31, 2024, respectively.
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)
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Restricted share units

U

Granted during the six months ended
December 31, 2023

In October 2023, the board of directors approved
the grant of RSUs to purchase 22,472 ordinary
shares of the Company to an independent
non-executive director of the Group at nil purchase
price. The RSUs were divided into four tranches.
The first tranche immediately vested on the grant
date, and the remaining tranches will vest on
January 15, 2024, April 15, 2024 and July 15,
2024, respectively, on the condition that director
remains in service without any performance
conditions.

The board of directors also approved the grant
of RSUs to purchase 103,200 ordinary shares of
the Company in aggregate to certain employees
of the Group at purchase price of USD0.036 per
share during the six months ended December
31, 2023. These RSUs were divided into three
to five tranches. Each tranche will vest based on
individual vesting schedules ranging from three to
five years from the grant dates, on the condition
that the employees remain in service without any
performance conditions.

23 LIEZAENRG M (&)

(b)

ZERFIRADE L

U]

HZE2023F12A31H1~EA
Edns)

R2023F108 ' EFCHHEUT
BEEMASE —ZBILIENITE
ERLZRERMDEBEL - UEER
NA22,472E B o Z R HI%
BB D BN - E—HHREFH
HARNESER B - MERA T HLXAE D BIR
202441 815H 20244 815
HN2024F7 B15HRE @ &
BHRESDER  WEREHESR
g o

EE=SREZ2023F12 A31H
1E751E A 1% & 3%0.036 E TTHY
BEEMNAKER TEERHZR
HIRK ) BRI LARE B & $£103,200/%
AATEBI - ZEXRFIZMDE
UnB=ZERt - FUBREAR
FEHEA == RENEREBR
MEFB BEGKUEE2ERENME
B - WA TR RAEIENE -
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

Restricted share units (continued)

(ii)

Granted during the year ended December
31, 2024

In March 2024, the board of directors approved
the grant of RSUs to purchase 20,871,490 ordinary
shares of the Company to certain employees of the
Group at purchase price of USD0.00001 per share
with the performance targets to be determined and
approved. For the service condition, 10%, 10%,
15%, 20% and 45% of these RSUs will vest on the
1st trading day following each of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd,
4th and 5th anniversary of the date of grant, on
the condition that the employees remain in service
and have fulfilled the respective performance
targets in respective calendar years of 2024,
2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028. As the Company has
discretion to set the relevant performance targets,
the grant dates for financial reporting purposes are
not considered established until the performance
targets are determined and approved.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group has
determined and approved the performance targets
for the calendar year of 2024 and the grant date
of the first tranche of RSUs to purchase 2,087,149
ordinary shares was considered to have been
established, while the grant dates of subsequent
tranches of RSUs to purchase 18,784,341 ordinary
shares in total were not considered to have been
established because the Group has not determined
and approved the performance targets. Although
the grant dates for the subsequent tranches
of the RSUs have not been established, the
respective service periods are considered to have
commenced as at December 31, 2024. As such,
the Group estimated and recognized equity-settled
share-based payment expenses in respect of the
subsequent tranches of the RSUs based on the
fair value of Company’s ordinary shares at each
balance sheet date and reduced by the present
value of the estimated dividends that the related
employees will not be entitled to during the vesting
periods. The amount of equity-settled share-based
payment expenses for the subsequent tranches
is being re-estimated at each balance sheet date
until the grant dates are established.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

23 LIESAENREG M (&)

(b) ZPRFIRMDEN (B)
(i) B=2024F12A31ALLEER

&

MR2024F3 A - EFEHIELEIR
0.00001ZE T B (& [ 2N & B
FREFEZBHRNDEMAEE
20,871,490 AR A E@AK - M
BB R REE RALE o RS
BEmE - ZEXREIRG B
10% * 10% * 15% * 20% [ 45%
BRETFTRHEMNE— - F= F
= ENERFRAFEMNE—ER
SERE  RRXSEENEE
72024 - 2025 ~ 2026 - 2027 &
2028 % B EHREK S BEKE
1= - AR ARBREAITRERED
EHEE - At sHe B Hm
T BT AEBEENE ERETE I
EZ BRI TR BE R -

HZE2024F12A31H - X&EE
BHETE LI AE2024F F B E X
BiE THREACHEEANEE
2,087,149 @M E —HZ R
B BMHETEE - MALE
B4 4£18,784,341 R E B ML B
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)
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Restricted share units (continued)

(ii)

Granted during the year ended December
31, 2024 (continued)

In October 2024, the board of directors approved
the grant of RSUs to purchase 39,300 ordinary
shares of the Company to an independent
non-executive director of the Group at nil purchase
price. The RSUs were divided into four tranches.
The first tranche immediately vested on the grant
date, and the remaining tranches will vest on
January 15, 2025, April 15, 2025 and July 15,
2025, respectively, on the condition that director
remains in service without any performance
conditions.

The board of directors also approved the grant of
RSUs to purchase 686,680 ordinary shares of the
Company in aggregate to certain employees of the
Group at purchase price of USD0.036 per share
during the year ended December 31, 2024. These
RSUs were divided into three to five tranches.
Each tranche will vest based on individual vesting
schedules ranging from three to five years from the
grant dates, on the condition that the employees
remain in service without any performance
conditions.

23 LIEZAENRG M (&)

(b)

ZERFIRADEAL (FF)

(ii)

HZE2024512A31HLEFER
(&)

R2024F108 » EFCLHHEUT
BEEMASE —ZBILIENITE
ERLZRERMDEBEL - UEER
AF]39,300E BT o X BR HIA%
BB D BN - E—HHREFH
HARNESER B - MERA T HLXAE D BIR
202541 A15H 20254 515
HN2025%7 15858 @ RilE
BHRESDER  WEREHESR
g o

HE2024F12A31HIEFE - &
EEIHERSAR0.086 TR
BEMAKEEAETEERLZRS
B BB LARE B & $£686,680 % 4
NE)ERE - ZEZREIRG B
NHE=-ZERH - FWHRIEART
AERET == AFMERFBRE

5B ARG RIEEDER
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Restricted share units (continued) (b)

23 LIESAENREG M (&)

ZREIR D EN (&)
(i) REWZRFROECBARES

(iii) Movements in the number of RSUs granted

and the respective weighted-average grant
date fair values are as follows:

Outstanding as of July 1, 2023

BNETSERFEAAEBESE N
T :

Weighted-average
purchase price

Weighted-average
grant date fair value
USD per RSU
IEFIRERE PR T A
IR AREE
ROEN EnEZRERPEN

Number of

RSUs USD per RSU

RRERGD
B HE

BZ202357 1B AT 6,165,460 0.036 4.22
Granted E& H 125,672 0.030 5.37
Vested 2538 (209,116) 0.024 3.55
Forfeited 2 (123,760) 0.036 3.16
Outstanding as of December 31, 2023

22023512 A31 AR {THE 5,958,256 0.036 4.32
Granted 2 H 21,597,470 0.001 5.47
Vested Z52B (1,279,920) 0.035 4.29
Forfeited 2 W (1,557,522) 0.005 5.25
Outstanding as of December 31, 2024

EZ2024F12831 B %17 24,718,284 0.008 5.27

The fair value of RSUs was determined with
reference to the market prices of the Company’s
ordinary shares at the respective grant dates.

The fair value of RSUs granted during the
six months ended December 31, 2023 and
the year ended December 31, 2024 was
USD674,000 (equivalent to RMB4,812,000) and
USD118,087,000 (equivalent to RMB847,747,000)
in aggregate. Total compensation expense
calculated based on the grant date fair value
and the estimated forfeiture rate recognized
in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss for aforementioned RSUs granted were
RMB38,839,000 and RMB79,305,000 for the six
months ended December 31, 2023 and the year
ended December 31, 2024.

XRFIED BN ARBETDZE
ARBEBENESETHNHERE
5 o

#HE2023F12 A31HIEAEA R
HE2024F12 A1 B ILFER L
NZREBROBEMNOAREER
H5674,000E T (HERARE
4,812,0007T) X.118,087,0003 T
(FEEN ARKS47,747,0007T) °
#HZE2023F12 A31HIEAEA R
#HE2024F12A31HIEFE ' 1R
P BL 1l 5T 8 S BR B AR D B AL 3%
FHAARBERRGEBERER
R ET R R ET E M H A 85
A AR #38,839,000 7T AR
79,305,0007T °
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term deposits
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which
the Group considers having low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables mainly derive from sales
of goods to distributors and franchisees. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At December 31, 2023 and
2024, 40% and 35% of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

Trade receivables relating to certain sales of fixtures
to franchisees are collected by instalments within
the periods ranging from 18 to 38 months. All other
trade receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 6 months past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

24 BEBREERAAEE

AEEEREEBBRTFAZEER

mEE

NEREERE - TX2INAEBPAZH £
i Ko AN SR B A 3R 5% B L B P B PR 9 B A

JE:

(@)

RERHRNER

FERRE
FERBREXZIHFRETHANEL
MEBFAKEELFBEROER - &
SENEERREIEFANE S REM
JEWRIR - R R ZEF RAKERR
EERREAAEAREEEENRITR
TRME  AEAKEERERERS R
ReFEY  XRHRE K EMFR
EERBAR -

g 5 EWFEIE
AEENESRWRFIEZTZERENRER
BERINEMEEEY - NEEHEERL
EERBREEZEEEFME R (M
IEFPREFMTENITERRR)ZE
EHit - EXEBERERREFEANFEER
B AIEHEERKRSEETRMNIENR
MR20234F K 2024F12A31H * E5JE&
I FRIB 4258 R40% N.35% 7 Bl ok B AN &
ERNRAKEBA °

BRMASHMEZRESBELE T BN
EEMNEFPETEREENE - ZF
&t ¥ 5 P B HY5& 7R 0 % N 3R B 8 5K RE
N YEREFHWABEEAREARS
REMERLERFEERNEES

HEnEEEES TREEMBEHENE
S FEN R IE R 18 % 38 A HARI A9 Bk
B EREMESERKFENREBFRAEZEAR
HA#E30 =180 AN EIHS - #EH B HA61E A
LA EBEBRES AN SRR T £
E—HEBEZAIZEENRBEHE -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Other receivables

In determining the ECL for remaining other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no credit loss allowance of other receivables
is considered necessary by management for the six
months ended December 31, 2023 and the year ended
December 31, 2024.

Liquidity risk

As at December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Group’s net
current assets amounted to RMB5,920,655,000 and
RMB5,928,312,000, respectively. Individual operating
entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realizable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

24 HBEREERAAEEE)

(@)

FERkE (&)

B 5 BWRIE (&)
REBRBENFERRBEEERE (&
R ERE R )N EE 5 RUGK
THEERE -

AEETREEAAEERRE @RS
SRR -

HithfE KR IE
ETRgnEMERFIETEBEESR
B AEEERECHT MBEEALR
MAEHER (IEA) - ARBEEEE
BTG - AR BEVIIAERE - EMEI
RERNEERRIEREZEN - BED
[B BN A EK - E AL E2023F12 A 31
BIENE B REZE2024%12 A31 81
FE - ERBRAET S H i EKRFE
TEHEE BB -

STRED 4 [ Pz
MR2023%F K 20244128318 K
SENRBEEFEINAARE
5,920,655,0007T & A R #5,928,312,000
T AEEATMERCEERBATHR
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)
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Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group relies on the cash generated from operating
activities as the main source of liquidity. For the six
months ended December 31, 2023 and the year
ended December 31, 2024, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB1,097,541,000 and RMB2,168,334,000 respectively.
In addition, the management of the Group monitors the
utilization of borrowings and ensures compliance with
borrowing covenants, if any. The Directors believe that
the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds
available from the operating activities to meet their
financial obligations in the foreseeable future.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period presented
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contracted rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of each
reporting period presented) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.

24 MBEREERAAEEE)

(b)

REVE RS (58)
REBKBEEEHEENRSERE
DRFHELHRR - HE2023F12 A31
BIENE A REZ=2024%12 A318 1
FE - AEEKETHEENESFE
DRI B A RE1,097,541,000 T R AR
#2,168,334,0007T ° It4) » AREEEE
EBEBEEBRNERBR - WERETE
REH(WE) - EFRE  AEBRAR
REIRAIFERRREETENEEED
AARESRBITHMBERLS

TRINAEENEBREBERARER
SHREREGARMRR LR (BHEEE
WM R HF BN - i RZEF
R BFERATIR SRS BARORITHE)
MRIGRANPREAREABENNER
SR

More than  More than Carrying

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 year but amount at

1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than December 31,

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years 2023

1420235

—fFrg  —FHE  WENL 124318

MEUT RESHE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARETT AREIT ARETR

Trade and other payables B % & H it (I FB 3,389,826 = 12,411 - 3402237 3,402,237
Loans and borrowings R A7 935 2,360 4,497 - 7,792 7,259
Lease liabilities FE S & 457,747 403,679 399,187 102,502 1,363,115 1,245,305
3,848,508 406,039 416,095 102,502 4,773,144 4,654,801
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

24

More than

Within 1
1 year or
on demand

—FRH

RMB’000
ARBF T

year but
less than
PACE S

—FH0E

RMB’000

ARBT T

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

BRREREERQAEBEE)

(b)

More than
2 year but
less than
5years

WAL

RMB’000
ARBF T

BN R ()

Carrying
amount at
December 31,
2024
R2024%F
12A31H
RESHE

RMB’000
ARBF T

More than

5years Total

RMB’000
ARBTF T

RMB’000
ARBTF T

Trade and other payables B 5 & E {178 3,943,988 - 59,842 - 4,003,830 4,003,830
Loans and borrowings B K &5 577,913 2,257 2,193 - 582,363 571,265
Lease liabilities HE & & 652,942 667,820 947,046 682,653 2,950,470 2,538,494

5,174,843 670,086 1,009,081 682,653 7,536,663 7,113,589
Interest rate risk () F=mEpz

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
does not account for any fixed-rate financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each
reporting periods. Therefore, interest-bearing financial
instruments at fixed rates do not expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from restricted cash and cash at bank
at variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group determines the appropriate
weightings of the fixed and floating rate interest-bearing
instruments based on the current market conditions and
performs regular reviews and monitoring to achieve an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure. The
Group does not enter into financial derivatives to hedge
interest rate risk.

FlEARRESMT AN L EELR
RE SRS ERHTRBE,
% o REBE IR - ARED R
BRI ST AKA A BB AR
i ° Rtk - RETHEH SHSBIA
FREAREEEA A EENEER -
AKEFIREREE RS ZRIRS
RINZBFIEE B ORITER - BEA
EEAGHSHENEAN - AEER
5 8 B0 5 B R M R BRI A B
RIS BT AMEYHE « B HEST
BEMEA - NERETHEAEHH
EEROBEAS - AEELHT IS
BT T AR EFIR AR -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 BIREKREERAAEEE)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(€) Interest rate risk (continued) () F==mEpe(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FI=RER
The following table details the interest rate TRAMNE 2V RERARTEE
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial ErEE R TEAFERR -
instruments at the end of each reporting period
presented:

Asat Asat Asat
June 30, December 31, December 31,
Interest rates 2023 Interest rates 2023 Interest rates 2024

R2023E R2023E R20A4E
12A31A Fiz 12A318

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Fixed rate instrument; BERIE 14 :

Loans and borrowings &5 R {5 30% (7.215) 30% (7.259)  2.07%~3.0% (571,265)
Cash at bank (Note 16) $R77%53% (Ff16) 3.08% ~ 5.25% 1,040,921 3.75% 103207 2.1%-~436% 3517
Term deposits E4775T 09% ~55% 681,715 09% ~6.02% 310759 1.05%-48% 409,135

1,715,421 406,707 (158,613)

Variable rate instrument: T8FI= 1A :

Restricted cash (Note 17) RIR#/%4 (&17) 0.3% -~ 1.8% 7013 0.2%~1.8% 7970 0.4%-095% 1,026
Cash at bank (Note 16) $R77%53% (Ff16) 0% ~ 35% 5447716 0%~52% 6311451 0%-431% 6,320,139
5,474,789 6,319,421 6,321,165
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBEDSWN
At December 31, 2023 and 2024, it is estimated 20234 22024512 4318 * £
that a general increase/decrease of 100 FrEHMEERBTIENBELT -
basis points in interest rates, with all other TERT R A g2 hn R A 100 fE £
variable held constant, would have increased/ 2h B SROAEB RS
decreased the Group’s profit for the reporting RN ERBFRED AIHNARE
periods and retained earnings by approximately 24,363,0007T & A K #£47,805,000
RMB24,363,000 and RMB47,805,000, respectively. JC °
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
United States dollars, Euros and Hong Kong Dollars.
The Group manages this risk as follows:

U

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting periods to currency
risk arising from recognized assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the end of the reporting
periods. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
24 BIRAMEERAAEMEE)

(d) E¥EMK

SN (B2 S ABRA S TN B S B LASNEY
B HENRBKRFE - BNFERRES
HEHRNEE  ELXZRBRNEEIEA
ET BT RBTT o AEBYHZERK
EBAHAMAT

() E¥EREHO
TRAJAKER & HREARAHE
ERAMERA BRI RE S AN E® AT
ENCEREEXRBEMELNE
BRE - BEHRENME - ES
[\ B0 & BRI ¥R S HAR Ay B A B
FREBAREIR - LA T B
HBINEB M BRI B RAE
B 2REEMELNER -
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 BIKRAKREERQAAEEE)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) d) EBXREE(E)
() Exposure to currency risk (continued) () EXERERR®HOE)

Exposure to foreign currencies

SNERBRMA

As at December 31, 2023
R2023%12831H

United

States Hong Kong

Dollars Euros Dollars  Renminbi Others

E BT BT AR# Hith
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT

Trade and other receivables & 5 & H ez E 141,973 20 23,814 - 3,889
Cash and cash equivalents £ & KR EZEY 309,966 37,492 7,868 3,068 19
Term deposits EFH 35,712 - - - -
Trade and other payables & 5 & H {58 (82,669) (5,151) (11,401) (820) (930)

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and liabilities
ERREERABELNFHO 404,982 32,361 20,281 2,248 2,978

Exposure to foreign currencies

SMERBHA

As at December 31, 2024
R2024F12H31H

United

States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Renminbi Others
ES B BT AR Hty
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT AR¥TT ARETT

Trade and other receivables & 5 & E At fE U F1E 189,003 43,965 66,782 - 18
Cash and cash equivalents B& R B £ SEY 173,001 93,281 2,112 8,928 1,687
Term deposits E2EH 359 - - - -
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b 78 (84,422)  (6,797) (14,616)  (5,616) (515)

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and liabilities
CRIAEENRABELNFHO 277,941 130,449 54,278 3,312 1,190
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
earnings that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of each reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

As at December 31, 2023
7A2023F12H31H

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
24 GIREREERAAEEGE)

ErEE ks (E)

(i) BREDSN
TRINREAE EMRREER
BAE  MAKERSHEHRA
HERRERAEENA BB HREE
B - XEE®ORTIRTEREF
W s B A MBI &L, o

(d)

As at December 31, 2024
12024%F12H31H

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) in  profit for the (decrease) in profit for the

foreign period and foreign year and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates earnings rates earnings

R HAFE

ExtHh FEREE EXt#H FEREE

(TR  WmMEE (FBE) WKaEmEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR IT ARMEFIT

United States Dollars 3t 1% 3,375 1% 2,311
(1% (8,375) (1)% (2,311)

Euros BJT 1% 270 1% 1,089
(1)% (270) (1)% (1,089)
Hong Kong Dollars /&7t 1% 208 1% 561
(1)% (208) (1)% (561)
Renminbi A K# 1% 19 1% 31
% (19) (1% 31)
Others HAtt 1% 25 1% 10
(1% (25) (1)% (10)
Note: R -

* The amount was less than RMB1,000.

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, and then
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting periods for
presentation purposes.

* ZeBOHNARE1,0007T

ERIRAODITERRRE A KE
ETSEBRTANEERAE
BRI AR Mg SR AR 2
B WRREHRNEXRBEDA
REAHESNZR -
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(if) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of each reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

(e) Fair value measurement

U
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of each reporting period presented on a
recurring basis, categorized into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 BIKEREERAAEE(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) DAAEEFEGE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BRAAREEFTENEBREERES
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DB EER ()
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVNWASEREREHEER
assets that are measured at fair value at the end of NARBEFENSHEE -

each reporting date:

Fair value at
December 31 Fair value measurements as at

2023 December 31, 2023 categorized into
RHooosE  M2023F12 AN AABEBIER

12A31HMH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AREE E—ER BB BE=BR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT  ARETRT AREFTT AR®ETT

Recurring fair value measurement
KEMDAEETE

Assets: B :

Other investments: EAhiZ& :

- Investments in trust investment schemes

- ERREFERE 202,866 - 202,866 -
- Investment in a wealth management product

- B ERRE 50,000 - 50,000 -
- Investment in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise

- FLTMEREERE 90,603 - - 90,603

Fair value at
December 31, Fair value measurements as at

2024 December 31, 2024 categorized into
Hoooate  M2024F12ANNAABENESER

12A31HH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
DMREE E—EBR E-ER BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI T AR®BFIRT ARBTRT AR®ETRT

Recurring fair value measurement £ E 4 2 A EEE
Assets: B :

Other investments: R4 :

- Investment in structured deposit

- REFZBUEERN 100,000 - 100,000 -
- Investment in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise
- FLTHEREERE 123,399 - - 123,399

2024 ERE o BAESR 213
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(€)
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Fair value measurement (continued)

U]

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continueq)

During the year ended December 31, 2024, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3. During the six
months ended December 31, 2023, the investment
in an unlisted Partnership Enterprise was
transferred from Level 2 to Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognize transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of each reporting
period in which they occur.

Other investments in Level 2 as at December 31,
2023 and 2024 mainly represented investments in
trust investment schemes, a wealth management
product and structured deposit. The fair value of
these investments was determined by the Group
with reference to the fair value quoted by the trust
companies or bank, that established and managed
the investments (see Note 13), using expected
return rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk, remaining terms and
other market data.

The Group invested in an unlisted Partnership
Enterprise in late June 2023 with a consideration of
USD10,409,000 (equivalent to RMB73,870,000). As
at June 30, 2023, the fair value of this investment
was measured at the investment consideration,
which represented the recent transaction price,
and was classified as Level 2.

At December 31, 2023 and 2024, the fair value of
the investment in unlisted Partnership Enterprise
was determined using summation method of cost
approach with the assistance of an independent
valuer, based on recent transaction price of the
underlying enterprise invested by this Partnership
Enterprise and the predetermined distribution
mechanism of returns set out in the agreement of
the Partnership Enterprise. This investment was
classified as Level 3 as no observable inputs for
which market data could be used to measure the
fair value. The movement during the year ended
December 31, 2024 in the balance of the Level 3
fair value measurement was attributable to the fair
value adjustment.

24 HBEREERNAEEGE)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

C

Fair value measurement (continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continueq)
The gains arising from the remeasurement of fair
value of other investments are included in other
net income in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss.

(ii) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost are not
materially different from their fair values As
at December 31, 2023 and 2024 because of
the short-term maturities of these financial
instruments.

25 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding as at the end of
each reporting period presented not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

24 HBEREERAAEEE)

(e) DR

U]

EstE (&)
NABEAENEREERER

i}

‘95\5 )

Spes
~

(&
RIEEER (&)

BNt ERMRENRREEME
RS RET AR R BERTAE
i ez F R o

>

(i) WERAAEBEIRNESMEER
BENANEE
ARZESm TEREHNEIE
A 1 A 5 [ LA BE SHR AR EHE R 2 Bt
TAMKRESEELN2023F &
2024F12 A31HHN AR BEL &
BEAER -

25 &

(@ REREHREARRIHEREPE
RORBITERFENT :

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2024
20234 2024 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFIT ARBEFIT
Contracted for construction projects Z:&1EH 2514 570,840 557,180
Authorized but not contracted for construction projects
EREERTNERER 266,333 76,366
Total &%t 837,173 633,546
2024F [EHRE o BAMER 215
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26 CONTINGENCIES

(@)
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The commitment of tax payments

On October 13, 2020, Mingyou Industrial Investment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Mingyou”), being a subsidiary of
the Group’s equity-accounted investee prior to October
27, 2021 and a subsidiary of the Group since October
27, 2021, was set up to acquire the land use right of
a parcel of land and to establish a new headquarters
building for the Group in a district in Guangzhou, the
PRC. In connection with the acquisition of the land
use right and the construction of new headquarter
building by Mingyou, on November 26, 2020, MINISO
Guangzhou entered into a letter of intent (“the Letter”)
with the local government of that district, whereby
MINISO Guangzhou committed to the local government
that the aggregate amount of tax levies paid by the
subsidiaries of MINISO Guangzhou in that district and
Mingyou would be no less than RMB965,000,000 for
a five-year period starting from January 1, 2021, with
RMB160,000,000 for 2021, RMB175,000,000 for 2022,
RMB190,000,000 for 2023, RMB210,000,000 for 2024
and RMB230,000,000 for 2025. If the above entities fail
to meet such commitment, MINISO Guangzhou will be
liable to compensate the shortfall.

In January 2021, April 2022 and March 2023, MINISO
Guangzhou provided performance guarantees
of RMB160,000,000, RMB175,000,000 and
RMB190,000,000 respectively issued by a commercial
bank to the local government in respect of the
commitments of tax payments for the calendar years
of 2021, 2022 and 2023. The above entities had met
the commitments for the calendar years of 2021, 2022
and 2023 and therefore MINISO Guangzhou was
not required to make any compensation to the local
government under the above performance guarantees.
The above performance guarantees expired on March
31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

26 HEEE

(@)

ANTR ARG
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26 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(@)

The commitment of tax payments (continued)

In March 2024, MINISO Guangzhou provided
performance guarantees of RMB210,000,000, issued by
a commercial bank to the local government in respect
of the commitments of tax payments for the calendar
year 2024, which was valid from April 1, 2024 to March
31, 2025. The directors have assessed that, based on
the relevant taxes paid and payable for the calendar
year of 2024, the above entities are expected to meet
the commitment for the calendar year of 2024 and it
thus is not probable that MINISO Guangzhou needs
to make such compensation to the local government
under the above performance guarantees. No provision
has therefore been made in respect of this matter as
at December 31, 2024. Subsequently in April 2025,
MINISO Guangzhou provided performance guarantees
of RMB 230,000,000 issued by a commercial bank to
the local government in respect of the commitments of
tax payments for the calendar year of 2025.

Securities class action

A putative securities class action lawsuit relating to
the disclosures in the Company’s IPO registration and
prospectus was filed against the Company and certain
of the Company’s officers and directors on August 17,
2022 in the United States. Plaintiffs purport to bring this
action on behalf of a class of similarly situated investors
and seek monetary damages on behalf of the class. The
lead plaintiff was appointed in November 2022 and has
filed the complaint to the court. The Company and other
defendants has filed the motion to dismiss the complaint
which has been granted by the court with leave to
amend in February 2024. The plaintiffs have filed and
completed briefing on a motion for reconsideration of
the court’s decision in April 2024 and intended to file a
further amended complaint. As at December 31, 2024,
the court’s decision on the motion for reconsideration
was pending. The directors and the Group’s litigation
counsel were still unable to assess the outcome of the
action or reliably estimate the potential losses, if any.

Subsequently in March 2025, the motion for
reconsideration of the court’s decision was rejected by
the court. Plaintiff has until April 28, 2025 to file a further
amended complaint.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBEBERS

TRANSACTIONS
(@) m £ SRR T R R

TRINE T EEREH R EEAREED

Name and relationship with related parties

(@)

The table below set forth the major related parties and
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their relationships with the Group:

Name of related parties

BA%

Relationship with the Group

Mr. Ye Guofu

RE=ETE

Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
BREM (BER)BRAERAT

Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited

HREE (BM)BRAT

Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.

B (L8 RHERBRAR

Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.
BNTREZEERRBERD A

Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
ENTEEEEREEGRLF

MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
ZRBR (BR)EXREBERLT

MINISO Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

Add a friend (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
MINISO Corporation)

A& (M) RDERRR (FIEERAIERROERAH)

Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

LERRRRRNBRERAT

ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

R HEBEARRERAE

Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Guangzhou Mingchuang Business
Development Co., Ltd.)

EMEERBERRERLR (BAS  BMNBABKRRE
BRAFE)

Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

EMEERECEEERRAF

KOURITEN LIMITED (i)

Miniso Winky Italy S.r.l. (ii)

7S 5= B 60 B8 (&

Controlling shareholder

BERRR

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
SRR R AL E 2

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
SRR AR R AL [E =

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
RERRRARES

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
R R AL E S

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
SRR R AL E =

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
RERRRARZS

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
R R AL E S

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

SRR R AL E =
Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
TERRREAZE
Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
RERRREAZE

Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

REREREATE

Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
ZERRREAZE

Subsidiary of an equity-accounted investee of the Group
REEEREARNBIRE R HNMEAE

An equity-accounted investee of the Group

AEEUERE A BN RRELT
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Name and relationship with related parties
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

U]

On October 26, 2023, the Group invested in the parent
company of KOURITEN LIMITED and acquired 25% of
its interest. KOURITEN LIMITED became a subsidiary of
an equity accounted investee of the Group since then.
The transactions between the Group and KOURITEN
LIMITED since October 26, 2023 and the balances with
KOURITEN LIMITED as at December 31, 2023 and 2024
were included in Notes 27(b) and 27(c), respectively.

On July 20, 2024, the Group invested in Miniso Winky
Italy S.r.I. and acquired 49% of its interest. Miniso Winky
Italy S.r.l. became an equity accounted investee of the
Group since then. The transactions between the Group
and Miniso Winky ltaly S.r.l. since July 20, 2024 and the
balances with Miniso Winky ltaly S.r.l. as at December
31, 2024 was included in Notes 27(b) and 27(c),
respectively.

Transactions with related parties

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation
comprised the following:

e P HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
27 EXBBM LIRS (&)

(@) A EBUREEET HEE
(%)
BEE

() 20235108260 @ AEFEKE
KOURITEN LIMITEDH & AT - i
H25% M ###m o 81t + KOURITEN
LIMITED & 7~ & B LA #E 2555 A BR Y
WA QA - AEBEHEKOURITEN
LIMITEDE 2023410 26 £/
SRR 20234 22024412 531 A £
KOURITEN LIMITED#H) #5845 Bl &7
MFE27(b) 22 27(C) °

(i) M2024%57H208  AEEKLE
Miniso Winky Italy S.r.l. - Y8 E49%
HHEZS ° Bt © Miniso Winky Italy
S.r.l. AAEEUEREARMNKIR
B A o N5 E B Miniso Winky Italy
S.rl.B20244%07 20 B AKX 5 K
72024412 A 31 B £ Miniso Winky
Italy S.r.l.KI&E88 9 RIE T 5227 (b) &
27(c) °

(b) EEHITHIRS
() BT ARH
MREEARFMEEL T RS -

For the six For the

months ended year ended

December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

B ZE2023%F B 220245

12 A31 HIEAEA 12831 HILFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Short-term employee benefits 5881 & T2 X! 8,171 10,510
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 23)

LS EENRO XX (HiEE23) 508 6,368

8,679 16,878

2024F EE o BAIER 219
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 ERBEARS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued) (b) EHEEBINRZ (&)
(i) Other transactions with related parties (i) EEEBANHMRS

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

HZE2023F HZ2024F
12831 HIE<EA 12831 HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT

Sales of products 7 m &

- MINISO Lifestyle Nigeria Limited 11,577 15,743
- MINISO (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

- ZREm (BE)EXREERLH 3,026 5,556
- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

- BREM (BR)BHERD - 3
- KOURITEN LIMITED 10,048 78,662
- Miniso Winky Italy S.r.I. - 5,581

Provision of information technology support and consulting services
RS SR I E AR
- Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. (i)

- BR (L) REERAF() 26 50
- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited (i)

- BREM (BR)BEERAF() 1,466 3,002
- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited (i)

— R B AR A E() 138 81

License fee income FHEZE WA
- KOURITEN LIMITED 87 4,138

Purchase of products Z %
- Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

- LT RRENEERAH 2,286 2,416
- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

- BREM (BR)BHERD 23 102
- Add a friend (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.

- EHR (BMN)ROERA R - 80
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 ERBEARS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued) (b) EEARFEER IR Z (88)
(ii) Other transactions with related parties (i) EEREBELMVHEHMR S (&)

(continued)

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

EHZE2023F HZE2024F
12831 HIE~EA 12A1BLLEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Purchase of catering services RSB &R
- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
-ENTREREREEARLAT 3,888 7,637

Rental and related expenses A€ & B35
- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd. (iii)

- BMNEEBHBERBRA (i) 4,016 8,016
- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

- 2RER (BE)EXREERAA 200 5,785
- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

-BMNEEEELEEEERAR 347 -

Payment of lease liabilities XA HEE &
- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (i)
- EZRIER (BE)EXREERAA() 19,271 43,417

Payment of rental deposits X1 HEES
- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (i)
- ERIER (BE) EXREBRAA) 113 5,947

Loan provided to I2EERF
- Miniso Winky Italy S.r.I. - 19,681

Payment of earnest money in connection with lease of a property
XNENFEEEERNRES
- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

-EBNEERELEEEERAT 1,000 -
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

222 MINISO e Annual Report 2024

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes:

@)

(ii)

Pursuant to the information technology support
and consulting services agreements entered
into between the Group and Haydon (Shanghai)
Technology Co., Ltd., Wow Colour Beauty
Guangdong Technology Limited and ACC Super
Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited, the
Group provided business management systems
deployment and support services to these entities
during the six months ended December 31, 2023
and the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Group entered into lease agreements with
MINISO (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
for lease of properties for storage of inventories
and employee dormitories with fixed lease
payments for two to five years.

During the six months ended December 31, 2023
and the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Group recognized right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB2,065,000 and RMB64,741,000
respectively at the commencement dates of these
new leases. The Group also paid rental deposits
of RMB113,000 and RMB5,947,000 in connection
with these leases during the six months ended
December 31, 2023 and the year ended December
31, 2024.

During the six months ended December 31,
2023 and the year ended December 31, 2024,
the Group made payments of lease liabilities of
RMB19,271,000 and RMB43,417,000 respectively
to MINISO (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co.,
Ltd. in connection with the lease of properties.

27 ERBEARS (B)

(b)

BREBL RS (&)
SRR T MEMX S ()

(ii)

Wi

(i)

(ii)

B £2023%12 A31 HIE/AEH
REE2024F12 A31 H IEF
B REAEEERER (L8R
BRATE - BREM (BER)BHE
BRAF RRYITBE SRR
PR RIZERTHME BT 345 Ik
ARG AEERZERE
REEBERRSHNERER
& o

ARERAEER (EE)ER
BEARARIRI M HE R - A
MENXARTENTFHIET
BE  BEEHENRAMEER
F o

B ZE2023%F12 A31 AL ~EA
REZE2024F12 A31 B 1IEF
B AEERZSHEERR
HEERETAREERTEES
B Bl A AREE2,065,000
M ARK64,741,0007T - BE
202312 A31 HIFNAB R &
E2024F12A31BLEE - K
SETHZSEHEINASRE
S AR¥113,000 R ARK
5,947,0007T °
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii) Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

In March 2023, the Group entered into a five-
year lease agreement with fixed lease payments
in respect of a property for store operation with
Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co.,
Ltd. In April 2023, the five-year lease agreement
was cancelled and replaced with a nine-month
lease agreement for the same property out of
commercial considerations. A right-of-use asset
and a lease liability of RMB35,993,000 were initially
recognized at the commencement date of the
five-year lease agreement and were subsequently
derecognized upon the cancellation of the
agreement. Total rental and related expenses
incurred in connection with the lease of this
property during the six months ended December
31, 2023 was RMB4,016,000, respectively.

In January 2024, the Group entered into another
twelve-month lease agreement with Guangzhou
Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd. for the
same property. Total rental and related expenses
incurred in connection with the lease of this
property during the year ended December 31,
2024 was RMB8,016,000.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

27 ERBEARS (B)

(b)

BB RS ()
ERBLNEMR S ()

(ii)

2024FEHE o REIEM

feE < (48)

(il

7202343 A + ANEE LA IEP]
JEE ) — B EEMN BB
BERRABRARZEEERE
NRORFEERZ - HREE
EfE - BR2023F4 AR IERF
HE I ARR RN NEA
HEwGHEIRA - RAFHEE
MR B VIR E AR E
RIEE & EARM35,993,000
T HERIBRBUS R E T
R o BZE2023F12 A31H IR
BA - szhEEEEENE
& MBI AED I/ ARKE
4,016,0007T °

R20245F1 A - NEEFE
EHEMNBBEBERARAR

AN —Hm+—EARE R -
%512024¢12ﬂ31 HIEFE
RZYENTREEENES ME
BF X 58 A AR 8,016,000

JC °
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBEHAERS ()
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEEER EEER

As at December 31,
®W12A31H

2023

20234

RMB’000
AR T T

Trade related: E 5 #8F3 :

Included in non-current trade and other receivables from related parties:
BEERREESNIEREE SN E A ERRES

- MINISO (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

2024
2024
RMB’000
ARET T

-EZRIBR (BE)EXREERAF 10,760 16,708

Included in current trade and other receivables from related parties:

BREETEUBBEORDE S NHEBEKRES

- Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.

—BR(L8)RRBRAR 54 53

- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

-BREM(BR)BRERAF 1,508 899

- ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

- AP BBHRRARRT 277 688

- MINISO Lifestyle Nigeria Limited 12,427 786

- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

-EZREm (BE)EXREARLF 3,339 6,271

- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.

-BNEEBBRRARLAE 1,710 3,173

- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Management Co., Ltd.

-EBMNEEERECEERBRARF 1,000 1,000

- KOURITEN LIMITED 7,521 12,629
27,836 25,499
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 ERBEARS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) CEHBFEEHMVAEER (BB)

As at December 31,
®W12A31H

2023 2024

2023F 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARH T ARBF T

Included in trade and other payables to related parties:
BREEENBHAINES NECRATED
- Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

- EBTRRENRERAT 319 162

- Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited

—BRAER(BR)BRERAR - 51

- Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited

—oRRE (BMN)BRAF 126 -

— ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited

- AP BBHRRARAT 9 9

— Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.

- ENHTRERERBRBAERAR 4,204 4,204

- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.

-BNTREEREREEBRAF 1,676 2,072

- Guangzhou Mingyou Business Development Co., Ltd.

-BNEEBBRRARLAT - 83

- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

- EZRIBR (BB EXREERAF - 542

- KOURITEN LIMITED 1,000 1,000
7,334 8,123

Included in lease liabilities due to related parties:

BEEEMGEHEINEERET

- MINISO (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

—ZEIBR (BE)EXREERAT 68,406 104,097
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBEHAERS ()
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) EHEEEFHVEEER (B)

As at December 31,
®W12A31H

2023 2024

2023F 20245

RMB’000 RMB’000
PN ARBF T

Included in contract liabilities due to related parties:

BREEMGBBAINSHNRED

- MINISO Lifestyle Nigeria Limited = 4,850
- Miniso Winky ltaly S.r.I. = 1,115
- KOURITEN LIMITED 2,388 -

2,388 5,965

Non-trade related: 3 & 5 1HE3 :
Included in current trade and other receivables from related parties:
BREEEVEAKTNASEZ N EtERRES :
- Miniso Winky ltaly S.r.I.
- 19,925
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 28 NRIBHEEKEER
INFORMATION
The following presents condensed parent company financial T AREBERARKERIBER

information of the Group.

() Condensed statement of profit or loss () fHERBER

For the six For the

months ended year ended

December 31, December 31,

2023 2024

HZE2023F HZE20245

12831 H1E75E B 12A31HILEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥T T

Other income E Uz A 10,433 12,719
General and administrative expenses —f& R 1T B X (20,345) (20,138)
Other net income/(loss) EAthFUR A (E518) 5,558 (554)
Operating loss & & &8 (4,354) (7,973)
Finance income BA U A 44,400 8,750
Profit before taxation %t & 5/;H 40,046 777
Income tax expense FTSHiHX (3,137) -
Profit for the period/year i, R |5 36,909 777
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 28 ATEBEHUMBEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(i) Condensed statement of profit or loss and other (i)
comprehensive income

ERRE R EMEERER

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
HZ 2023F HZ 2024F
12831 HEAEA 12A31BLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T
Profit for the period/year #i, & R #|E 36,909 777
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
MRURENRSEEIBRNIER
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of the
Company
BREAR DR ERKRAE L ERE (86,224) 36,184
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period/year
B/ fFREM2E (BB (86,224) 36,184
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period/year
B/ ER2E (HE) WELE (49,315) 36,961
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 28 ATEBEUMBEER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Condensed statement of financial position (i) FFBAEIFEAR R R

As at December 31,
R12831H

2023 2024

20234 2024

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AR T IT

ASSETS EE&
Non-current assets FERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB R TIHIRE

- Cost-accounted investments in subsidiaries — Kt B T AIZE R E 2,259,187 2,288,729
- Amounts due from subsidiaries — FEY B 2 T FE 1,508,405 723,420
3,767,592 3,012,149

Current assets REIEE

Other receivables E i FEUFIIE 2,450 4,094
Cash and cash equivalents & R IEEZEY) 372,459 8,706
Term deposits EEHIFER 145,587 -
520,496 12,800
Total assets BEEEE 4,288,088 3,024,949
EQUITY #&#
Share capital I&Z< 22(a) 95 94
Additional paid-in capital EA&R A& 22(a) 6,333,584 4,686,201
Other reserves E i (1,401,580) (1,290,819)
Accumulated losses E51/E12 (689,901) (689,124)
Total equity S #5E 4,242 198 2,706,352

LIABILITIES & &
Non-current liabilities JE R EI & &
Deferred income iEFELN % 5,297 -

5,297 -

Current liabilities REI & &

Other payables E b fE {5118 33,950 313,221
Deferred income iEFELN % 6,643 5,376

40,593 318,597
Total liabilities & E44%8 45,890 318,597
Total equity and liabilities & & & 58 4,288,088 3,024,949
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 28 AEIEEEMBER (B)
INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (v) FHEARERBER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FEARARNEERR
Addttional Share-based
Share paid-in Treasury payment  Translation Other  Accumulated
capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses

IRt AERE
WAHEE  AGRE  HiEG

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETT  ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Note22(a)  Note22(a) Note22(b)(v) Note 22(b)fii) Note 22(b)fi)
fizE 20(e) M3k 90(a)  HfEE 2000)) [hf3E 2(o)ii) ik 200

Balance at July 1, 2023 14202357 A1 B4 6 9% 7,257,080 (84,051) 2,956 380056  (1541546)  (726,810)  5.287,780

Changes in equity for the period ended

June 30, 2023
BENNF6ANALABNEESD
Profitfor the period 2RI - - - - - - 36,909 36,909
Qther comprehensive loss for the period
BrEt2EsE - - - = (86,224) = = (86,224)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period
HN2E (BR) EE% - - - - (86,224) - 36,909 (49,31)
Dividend declared BERIRE 22d) - (923,664) - - - - - (923,664)
Exercise of options and subscription of

restricted share units
FEBRERIRERIRAEL + 168 - - - ; _ 168
Repurchase of shares EIE& R 3 22(b)v) - - (73,560) - - - - (73,560)
Equity settled share-based transactions
NEREENRRZARS - - - 789 - - - 789
Balance at December 31, 2023
R2023% 1231 iR 9% 6333584 (157,611) 3,745 203832 (1541546)  (689,901) 4,242,198
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 28 AEEEIMKER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (iv) FERAREREEIXR ()

(continued)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRREAANERRR
Additional Share-based
Share paid-in Treasury payment  Translation Other Accumulated
capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses

IRt AER
WG

RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBUOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
Note  Note22(2)  Note22(a) Note22(b)y) Note22(b)fii) Note 22(b)i)
Wi WEE2oa)  MiEE22(a) E 20(0)(v)  MYEE 22(0)iil) YRk 2200)i

Balance at January 1, 2024
R2024%1 B1 B ILE 95 6,333,584 (157,611) 3,745 203832 (1,541,546) (689,901) 4,242,198

Changes in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2024
HENUERAN ALERENERSD

Profit for the year 7RI - - - - - - m m
Other comprehensive income for the year
EREtRENE - - - - 3,184 - - 3,184

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year
EneElE/ (5B)4% - - - - 3,184 - m 36,961

Dividend declared and paid to equity shareholders

of the Company
EEREZAFALABRRRNRE 22(d) - [1,244,251) - - - - - (1,244,251
Exercise of options and subscription of

restricted share units
EERER IS RARAEN - 649 - - - - - 649
Repurchase of shares B R 22(b) (330,221) - - - - (830,221
Cancelation of shares &R 22(a)( (403,781) 403,782 - - - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions

WEREFNROARS - -

=
1
1

=
=

1,016 - - - 1,016

Balance at December 31, 2024
R2024E12831 BIEE 94 4,686,201 (84,050) 4,761 330016 (1541546)  (689,124) 2,706,352

Note: M=t -

03

& The amount was less than RMB1,000. * Ze BN ARE1,0007T ©

o
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28 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL
INFORMATION (continued)

(v)

232 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

Condensed statement of cash flow

28 QREEMBER ()

(v EHRSRER

For the six For the
months ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2024
B Z2023F HZ2024F
12831 HIEA{EA 12A31HLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Net cash used in operating activities &% ;%8 ff AR & B4 (22,277) (19,192
Net cash from investing activities &R & EEI TSR € F48 259,852 932,096
Net cash used in financing activities B& EEI FT AR & F4E (1,083,077) (1,276,775)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
ReRBeESEMHDFE (845,502) (363,871)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period/year
8B/ FORERALEEY 1,225,474 372,459
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held
EXSBHMERENTE (7,513) 118
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period/year
H/ ERASRELEEY 372,459 8,706
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29 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

Issuance of USD550,000,000 equity linked
securities

On January 6, 2025, the Company has entered into a
subscription agreement in connection with the issuance
of equity linked securities due January 14, 2032 (the
“Equity Linked Securities”) with an aggregate principal
amount of USD550,000,000 and an interest rate of 0.5%
per annum. The holders of the Equity Linked Securities
have the right to require the Company to exchange
their securities for cash with the settlement amount
calculated based on the applicable price per share of
the Company.

On January 7, 2025, the Company has further entered
into a call spread comprising a lower strike call and
a upper strike warrant (the “Call spread”), which will
enable the Company to defer potential dilution of the
Equity Linked Securities to a higher effective exercise
price. The Call Spread is structured such that the
exercises under the Call Spread is able to match the
exercises under the Equity Linked Securities, and
may be exercised: (a) for the lower strike call, if the
Equity Linked Securities are exercised and the lower
strike exercise price is met; and (b) for the upper strike
warrant, if the lower strike call is exercised and the
upper strike exercise price is met. The lower strike call
will be settled wholly in cash whereas the Company may
only issue shares under the upper strike warrant. The
Call Spread is separate from, but is part and parcel of,
the Equity Linked Securities. No security holders will
have any right under the Call Spread.

As of January 14, 2025, the issuances of the Equity
Linked Securities and the Call Spread have been
completed.

e IR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

29 HEHKRIFARSH

(@)

3£17550,000,000 3 JT AR M 078 5

R2025F1A6H + NAGE R RER
& NAEBETN2032F1 A14HE|
HMRR R ES ([REEEFES]) -
H R 4$ 44%55550,000,0003 7T @ FF=
50.5% - HHEREHBBTENREESR
BERARFTNRERBEES  #£E8
CRERBEARRRNBERERERTE -

R2025%1A7H » KNAR#E—HEIIL
ERBEEE ([BRAEEZ]) &
BETRERAER FRABIRER - 28
HEHE 2N A Bl BE 508 B 1E MO IR R MR B 5
BEERET aNERITHEE - BARE
BEENEBESERIEEZETH
ITERE N B IR ERMATE A TE T TE R
IR - 3 B A] LURB T HIERATE : (a)
EREHBBEHFETERME TRITE
B RESTRARAE  b)ETRE
REAEELTE R ERITEEE - AT
B LIRRAKEE - TRAERDESS
BUBRSHEE - MARRMERE ERR
AEAERE T AT D - BIREEEBT
R REMIFEH#ETT - BX ZRER
BEMNBBEMEKELD - BEHEFBEATE
ZEERBPEEEE THERESR -

HZE2025F1 148  REHHEEN
ERPEEENEITESTK °
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29 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

234 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2024

The acquisition of the shares in Yonghui
Superstores Co., Ltd (the “Target Company”)

On September 23, 2024, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group (the “Purchaser”) entered into the
share purchase agreements (the “Share Purchase
Agreements”) with THE DAIRY FARM COMPANY
LIMITED, Beijing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd.
and Sugian Hanbang Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (together, the “Sellers”), pursuant to which,
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire
and the Sellers have conditionally agreed to sell
the 2,668,135,376 shares of the Target Company
(representing 29.4% of the entire issued share capital of
the Target Company), at the consideration in the amount
of RMB6,270,118,000. As at December 31, 2024, the
Share Purchase Agreements has not taken effect as part
of conditions precedent have not been fulfilled.

On January 17, 2025, the Share Purchase Agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved on the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company. In March 2025, with all conditions
precedent set out in the Share Purchase Agreements
fulfilled and the settlement of the consideration of
RMB6,270,118,000, the acquisition of 29.4% equity
interest in the Target Company has completed.

Changes in tariff policies

On April 2, 2025, the U.S. Government announced a
34% tariff on Chinese imports, on top of the existing
20% tariff on Chinese imports. On April 10, 2025, the
U.S. Government further increased the tariffs to a total
of 145% on Chinese imports. The directors are currently
assessing the impact such tariffs would have on the
Company’s operations for the year ended December 31,
2025.

20 HEPRIFAREE (B)

(b)

Wi kEBTROERLRE ([BE
YNGR %)

R2024F9 A23H » AEBMH—HE2E
WBAR (TERDEFPERAFR - 4t
FRREELESHHRAGREBRIE
BEERBRAR (HBIEH DB HG
EEWE((BRBED Bt 58
BHEREWE mEABKERELE
B1Z /A5 2 2,668,135,376 A% (5 (15 B
ENREHEBEITRAMN29.4%) - RE
ABANR6,270,118,0007T ° 720244
12 318 - BRpEEARER - BAE
D FERIG R AR ERK o

R2025F1 A17H - AR E R EER
AeHEBRE MEBE N RETH
X5 o 202543 A © B EFTHE 2
R ke gEEz) - BREARK
6,270,118,000 L2 + ¥ BIZA A
29.4% P REWIEE SEAK ©

BT BRIV &b

£2025F4 A28  EBBUFEMEHH
EORERINBI4% R - LRI E ¥
Bl O 7 mEUk20% R BE TR - £20254F
47108 @ ERBAT#E— T+ B#ED
BmHERIES E451145% - EE
B Al EERHEE L EH E A R E 22025
F12A3MHILFEEENTE -
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(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

30 AMENDMENTS AND NEW STANDARDS 30 EEMEMKRERNIEET RFHTZEL
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
A number of new standards are effective for the annual ZIBFAERIR 202551 A1 B AR EEH
periods beginning after January 1, 2025 and early application RER - WAFTRATERM - AW - XEBER
is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the RIZELRE B IR R I AR IR AT ER AN 5T A
new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated 1BRT4ER -

financial statements.

The following amended standards and interpretations are TEEI TR F BT R R AR BT S WA K B4R
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s EUBRREEERTE -

consolidated financial statements.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on or

after

T BEIs
ZEHABN
SETAIE A

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates — Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
BIFR S ETERISE21 5% (BRI R A B R F B i) 7/ — R = A 5L 1214 2025F1H1H

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments and IFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures —

Amendments to the classification and measurement of financial instruments 1 January 2026
BRI SR AE RIS O5E (ER] A 2M T AR BRI EEAETIR BTN EHITA - KE-H=
BT AR 7R EHIIEET 20261 A1H
Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 1 January 2026
B BRELENNFESE-F 115 2026518 1H
IFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in financial statements 1 January 2027
BUFREA RS R HE RSB 1855 - B AN 2SR IEE 2027F1A1H
IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures 1 January 2027
BIFR R ELERIE195E - TEARZTEFINEL A - #E 20271 A1H
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(BR4FBIBBASN - UARBFTTES)

31 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 31 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Rules RIBCEBBRMES EMAA) - FE(AH
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock 1&/51) 25383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) K (MEIA KA T]
Exchange, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong (BEEEFZER)RA) F2iEENES
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies T -

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

For the six months ended December 31, 2023
#Z22023F12 431 HIE~EA

Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity-settled
and other  Discretionary scheme  share-based

Directors’ fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
£ RE Rike £
i BB ATEIfR A B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARMTT  ARETIE  ARETR  AREIE  ARET

Executive director I{TES
Mr. Ye Guofu Bl %4 - 1,341 878 17 - 2,236

Independent directors B E%E

Ms. Xu Lili #3852 & + 537 - - - - 537
Mr. Zhu Yonghua & 25t & - - - - 789 789
Mr. Wang Yongping Tk F 5t 4£ 537 - - - - 537

1,074 1,341 878 17 789 4,099

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZ22024F12A3 BILEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Equity-settled
and other  Discretionary scheme  share-based

Directors’ fees benefits bonuses contributions payments
- 1 BiRe DEREHE
MEAEF miETEA HE e R X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T

Executive director ITES
Mr. Ye Guofu B & &4 - 2,683 764 35 - 3,482

Independent directors B EE

Ms. Xu Lili R3304+ 1,067 - - - - 1,067
Mr. Zhu Yonghua &L & - - - - 1,120 1,120
Mr. Wang Yongping Tk 5t 4£ 1,067 - - - - 1,067

2,134 2,683 764 35 1,120 6,736
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32 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 32
EMOLUMENTS

During the six months ended December 31, 2023 and the
year ended December 31, 2024, of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments, 1 is a director whose emolument is
disclosed in Note 31.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 4
individuals are as follows:

(BR4FRIBBASN - UARBTFT TR

REEFMAL

#HZE2023F12 A31 B IE/8ME A RE =2024 4
12A31BILFE G5 ZmmALTH @ 1
HREMNEIIFHEETINES -

BRAEMAB ATHFMEEZ500T ¢

For the For the
six months ended year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024

#HZE20234F HZE2024F
12 A31 HIE/~E A 12831 HILEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT AR T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & ~ 2B R E b 1E F) 2,689 7,804
Discretionary bonuses BJ15 AT 3,443 2,484
Retirement scheme contributions B K4 st 3k 68 122
Equity-settled share-based payment LA%E s 45 8 #9021+ 34,652 7,007

40,852 17,417

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

Lt ESHMA LM BELNT -

For the For the

six months ended year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024

HZ=20234F HZE20245

12 A31B1ENEA 12A31HILEE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AZL A B

Nil to HKD5,000,000 Z % 5,000,000/& 7T 3 2
HKD5,000,001 to HKD10,000,000 5,000,001 7 2 10,000,000 7T - 2
HKD35,000,001 to HKD40,000,000 35,000,001 ;% 7T 2 40,000,000/ 7T 1 -
4 4
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFUHREE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mERE

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

HZE6A30H LHHEE
2021 2022 2023
20215 20224 2023
(RMB, in thousands)
(AR®T )

Revenue JA 8,978,986 9,071,659 10,085,649 11,473,208

Cost of sales &/ A (6,246,488)  (6,640,973)  (7,015,888)  (7,030,156)

Profit/(loss) before taxation i g1,/ (E518) 80,818 (1,216,192) 906,813 2,333,614
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREGFANZE (BB Wals (256,583)  (1,429,621) 677,667 1,803,797

LA

For the

For the twelve
six months months
ended ended

December 31, December 31,
8z Bz
12A31H 12A31H
IE+=18A

2023 2024

7,632,467 16,994,025
(4,391,428)  (9,356,965)
1652742 3,347,532
1217,804 2,635,833

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

GeEEREE

As of June 30, As of December 31,

HZ6H30H HZ12A31H

2021 2022 2023 2023 2024

20224 2023
(RMB, in thousands)
(AR¥Tx)

Current assets JGE & & 4,986,599 9,199,087 8,072,562 9,904,005 10,327,634 11,655,501
Non-current assets 3EREI A& 849,652 1505943 3209226 3543708 4,157,675 6,464,627
Total assets EEH4 % 5,836,251 10,705,030 11,281,788 13,447,713 14485309 18,120,128
Current liabilities FE 8 (& 3,309,643 3,482,855 3,788,671 3,885,595 4,406,979 5,727,189
Non-current liabilities 3E7E) & & 2,849,654 570,021 465,717 643,850 887,113 2,037,417
Total liabilities & &% 6,159,297 4,052,876 4,254,388 4,529,445 5,294,092 7,764,606
Total (deficit)/equity (JE4h) /#5858 (323,046) 6,652,154 7027400 8918268 9,191,217 10,355,522
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“2020 Share Incentive Plan”

[ 2020 5 R ADE A=+ & |

“ADS(S)”
[XEFER]

“Articles of Association”
[HSZERAA

“associate(s)”

[BREA

“Audit Committee”

[EHEEE ]

“Authorised Representative”

[RERE]

“Board”
[EEg

lleI”
[KEHEEAES

“China” or “the PRC”

[FRE ]

“Companies Ordinance”

[ BB

“companyu’ “we”, 73
“MINISO”

[ARDE ] THRMIHERIER ]

us”, “our” or

“Compensation Committee”

[HHESS ]

Definitions

the share incentive plan our Company adopted in September 2020, as
amended from time to time

KA BIR202049 A SRR B Bh AT &) (ETRHERT)

American Depositary Shares, each of which represents four Shares

XBFRER - B REEFERARILBRARD

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
ANRBEERAR (BREHERT)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BBCEMARAD BT & AR HE

the audit committee of the Board

EXgETLRBe

the authorised representative under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules

CEMRRI) 53.05 R E HRERER

the board of Directors

S

British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purposes of this annual report
only, except where the context requires otherwise, references to China or
the PRC exclude Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan

hEARANE - ERAFRNE - HPENERATEESE - hEARKM
BURPIRRITTR M B E - EXESEMIBERIN

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEEDIE622F (R ENEDI) (EARHERT « TRk AR T E2k)

MINISO Group Holding Limited (%88 m&EEEAR AR A7), a company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7, 2020
FEEREEERARAR - —KN20205F1 A7TAEHERSTMKRIHE
REELQA

the compensation committee of the Board

EFEeVMEES
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Definitions

“connected person(s)”

[BZEAL

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ B R

“core SKU”

[ SKU |

“Corporate Governance Code

[(iexERA)]

“Director(s)”

(&=

“EBITDA”
[EBITDA

“ESG Report”
[R5 - HERERRE]

“first-tier cities”

[—#&R3E |

“Global Offering”
[2IRBE |

IIGMV”

[GMV ]
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has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HACEMRAD BT & meRsE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the
context otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Ye, Ms. Yang and the intermediary
companies through which Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang have an interest in the
Company, namely, Mini Investment Limited, YGF MC Limited, YGF
Development Limited, YYY MC Limited and YYY Development Limited
BERCEMRAD B TPZANRE  BXESEMEIN  BEEE B
REAR (AL RBLT@EAZSARNEEARRATEL - EIMini Investment
Limited * YGF MC Limited * YGF Development Limited * YYY MC Limited }z
YYY Development Limited)

SKU that generates over RMB100,000 in sales for over a consecutive
12-month period
EE1210 A HE R B AR 100,000 7THISKU

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

(EMRAD MERC1 B EEASTRI) (B EFHER])

the director(s) of our Company

RRRES

earnings before interest, depreciation and amortization

BRE - ITE REIHAAE

environmental, social and governance report
B g kERmE

Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen
Em - BF - BINARY

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
FEARBERBEREE

the total value of all merchandises sold by us and our MINISO Retail
Partners and distributors to end-customers, before deducting sales rebates
and including the value-added taxes and sales taxes collected from
consumers, as applicable, regardless of whether the merchandises are
returned

BPRBEMOBEIEEARREERKLGEPHEE (HIREE T 2ER
HEEHEWRMNRERMFEEN WER)  ERtattRE)NAERmNR
BE




“Group”, “our Group”, “the Group”,

“we”, “us”, or “our”

S-S AN

“HFCAA”
[HFCAA ]

“HKD” or “HK$!!
%]

“HKEX”
[ B# 3P

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“Hong Kong Public Offering”

[BEBARBE]

“Ichiban Kuji”

[—&&]

“IFRS(s)”
[ BB 5 o5 2 R |

“International Offering”

[EFREE

Definitions

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time, and where the context
requires, in respect of the period prior to our Company becoming the
holding company of its present subsidiaries, such subsidiaries as if they
were subsidiaries of our Company at the relevant time
RRRREDKHMBAT - RIIXEME AR AR REREWNE AR
ERAT 2 ATHABM S BIEZEMB A8 (EZE AR ERREE AR
AIBVPTE A R])

Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act
OMARARIMEER)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BRAEERET

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARXSMARAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBRFITHE

the offer of the Hong Kong Offer Shares for subscription by the public in
Hong Kong at the Public Offer Price (plus brokerage of 1%, SFC transaction
levy of 0.0027%, FRC transaction levy of 0.00015% and HKEX trading fee
of 0.005%) on the terms and subject to the conditions described in the
Prospectus, as further described in the section headed “Structure of the
Global Offering — The Hong Kong Public Offering” in the Prospectus
RIFHER BRI PR IRAERER T - R AREEE (SIN1% K418
&~ 0.0027%FEEFRHEE + 0.00015% & HX S E K 0.005% 8 X Fr
REGB)VREVLEDTABLERMUEBTELZRE - FBERBRERZ 2
BENRE-BBAREE] -

one of the categories of products sold under the TOP TOY brand that
mostly feature manga characters and that are typically sold by lottery

[TOP TOY |miE THENERMmBZ— HIBRHEREEAY - —RAMH
B ARE

the International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued from time to time
by the International Accounting Standards Board
B & et LRI F g T M a0 (BIFR B F5 S 2ER 1)

the conditional placing of the International Offer Shares at the International
Offer Price pursuant to the shelf registration statement on Form F-3ASR
that was filed with the SEC and became effective on March 31, 2022,
and subject to the terms and conditions of the International Underwriting
Agreement

RIEN2022F3 A31 B AEEEEGRRIW A MAF-3ASRR BN E & L
B I A2 B R A EE i AR R S AR VAR IR T R BIRR B E (B A IR Ad & AV B
BERD
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Definitions

“IP”
MeJ

“Latest Practicable Date”
[REERRTTAH]

“Listing”
[Em]

“Listing Date”

[Em B

“Listing Rules’
[{EmHmEAD]
“Main Board”

[ 4R

“Mini Investment Limited”

[ Mini Investment Limited |

“MINISO Retail Partner”

[BRIERBA

“MINISO store”

[ BRME P ]

“Model Code”

[RZEF AL
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intellectual property

AR

March 16, 2025
2025%3 A16H

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the HKEX
PRADTABSE S P £ AR £

July 13, 2022, on which the Shares are to be listed and on which dealings in
the Shares are to be first permitted to take place on the HKEX
202297 4138 - BIIR L AR (0 & R IE TR B 22 PRI a6 22 5 ) B B

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

(BEABARIMAERRARES LMARRD) (EAEHERT - FRal AR T2
20

&

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the HKEX
which is independent from and operates in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the HKEX

MR EENZESR M (TRERETS) - LB Growth
Enterprise Market 3 £2E 32 FTGrowth Enterprise Marketif 1738 1

Mini Investment Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of BVI on November 26, 2019

Mini Investment Limited * —X 2019411 A26 AR IZ A BH R m At 852
AMKZNBREEAR

franchisee under our MINISO Retail Partner model, a franchise-like store
model with chain store characteristics, where the franchisee bears the
store opening capital expenditure and store operating expenses to join our
“MINISO” or “TOP TOY” branded retail store franchise
ZRIEH AR TOINER - ZEXEGEHNBEF - E2KEAT - &
A AFERARMIZEIERILITOP TOY )R EEFE S & A ERIE
BARRS MM EEEER

any of the stores operated under the “MINISO” brand name, including those
directly operated by us, those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
model, and those operated under the distributor model
EAATBEIER | mEEBELnFIE - BREMNEZE - BAIEEAM
JE RARIEPYE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
CETHRAND HERC3EC LM EITAEFETEF R HHIRESTRID




“Mr. Ye”

[E54E

“Ms. Yang”

Bzt

“Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee”

[REREXEREZES

“NYSE”
423X Fr |

“020”
[020]

“PCAOB”

[REARAREHEEREE

“Prospectus”

[ERER

“Reporting Period”
[REH

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

[ARH]

“RSUs”
[ 5% PR I B 15 B 1 |

HSEC”
[XEEES

“second-tier cities”

[ &3 |

Definitions

Mr. Guofu Ye, an executive Director, chairman of our Board, the chief
executive officer of our Company, the founder of our Group and a
Controlling Shareholder of our Company

EEERE  PTES EFSFF  ARAERITE - AEBEEIRARKE
NENERRAR R

Ms. Yunyun Yang, spouse of Mr. Ye and a Controlling Shareholder of our
Company
BEEL L ERANRBRARRFZERRER

The nominating and corporate governance committee of the Board
ExgRELEXERZES

the New York Stock Exchange
HEFEFZ 5T

online to offline, a business strategy that draws potential customers from
online channels to make purchases in physical stores

REFGT  — BRI EEBRENG L REBEERAEREBE MK LR

The Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
ERNRARGHEELZES

the prospectus of the Company dated June 30, 2022
AN A E /2022456 A30 H M BR EIZ

the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12 A31 H LT HFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China

REEEERARKE

restricted Shares units
PR B BB AL

the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States

mainly include capital cities of provinces and autonomous regions,
centrally-administered municipalities, and other cities of China that the
Company considers to have a similar level of development potential
IZERPEEASENESUMRBEERE PREENEEMARERFR
REERLUKFERE R EAR T
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Definitions

“SFO”
[R5 R BEFH) ]

“Share(s)”
[ B3]

“Shareholder(s)”
[BRR ]

“SKU”
[SKU

“SSE”
[ B3RP

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries”

R 7

“SZSE”
[ R3]

“third- or lower-tier cities”

[ AT ]

“TOP TOY store”

[TOP TOYF9JE |

“United States” or “U.S.”
E3EH

“US$” or “U.S. dollars”
E3A

“o/p

%]
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Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FREDIEST ECEZ LB RD]) (ETRHERT - Mz sk A M7 g2

the ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each in the share capital of the Company
RN AR AN & R%0.00001 £ T A & B A%

holder(s) of our Share(s)

[ESUES PN

stock keeping unit, a unique identifier for each distinct product and service
that can be purchased

EFEEAL - RIHRE B A S I o S RS RO ME— 1R A

Shanghai Stock Exchange
PEESRZSM

has the meaning ascribed to it in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance

EACRARNED) F15 16 T HORSE

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
RYNBHZ G

cities other than first- and second-tier cities in China

BRAP B — « —ART 2 S B A kT

any store operated under the “TOP TOY” brand name, including those
directly operated by us and those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
model

EAILA[TOP TOY |miE BB LHPIE - BRAMNVELEREEIEHE AP
&

United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject
to its jurisdiction
ENBRERE - BB - B R EMEE S

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

EE

per cent
Bot
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